about the cover:

As Pakistan’s premier fertilizer company, Engro Fertilizers is seen as an icon
among farmers countrywide. Our scope of business has not only helped
increase the yields and hopes of millions of growers, but has also helped to
transform the lives of families who use our products to build their livelihood.
We're proud to bring you a report that features a wide array of unique visual
icons from across the spectrum to highlight the significant contributions we
make 1o yields and harvests. Today, as we stand taller, our commitment to

improve lives — both on and off the field — continues to grow and benefit our
collective ambitions.




about this report

Furthermore, at a group level Engro has been
pushing ahead with a strategy to inform its
shareholders and readers of how the Company
creates value over time by showcasing both
financial and non-financial information. Guided by
this philosophy we launched our first integrated
report last year that incorporated elements of our
sustainability and annual reports as per the newly
launched Integrated Reporting Framework.

To read more about our value creation process as
per the new framework you can visit our group
website www.engro.com and access the Integrated
Report 2014 in the Downloads section. Altematively
you can also view a digital version of the report by
visiting www.engro.com/integratedreview2014.
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notice of the meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at Pearl Continental Hotel, Club Road, Karachi on
Wednesday, April 29th, 2015 at 10:30 a.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

{1} To recelve and consider the Audited Accounts for the year snded
31st December 2014 and the Directors' and Auditors” Reports
thereon;

{2) To declare a final dividend at the rate of Rs. 3:00 per share for
the year ended December 31, 2014;

(3) To appoint Auditors and fix thelr remuneration.

{1) The share transfer books of the Company wil be dlosed and no
transfers of shares wil be accepted for registration from
Wadnesday, April 15, 2015 to Wednesday, April 28, 2015 (both
days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of our
Registrar, Messrs FAMCO ASSOCIATES (PVT.)LTD, 8F, nextio
Hote! Faran, Nursery, Biock 6, PECHS, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi
PABX Nos. (92-21)34380101-5 and email
Inio.shares@famco.com.pk, by the close of business (5:00 pm.jon
Tuesday, Apri 14, 2015 wil be treated to have been intime forthe
purpass of the entitiements, attendng and 1o vote at the meeting.

{2) Amemberentitied to attend and vots at this Meeting shal be ertlitied
fo eppoint another person, as his/ her proxy to attend, speak and vote
instead of himy/ her, and a proxy so appointed shal have such rights, as
respects attending, speaking and voting at the Meseting as are
availebie to a member. Prosdes, inorder to be effective, must be
raceived by the Cormpany not less than 48 hours befors the Meeting. A
praxy nead not be & member of the Compery.

{3) Submission of Copy of CNIC/NTN Detalls (Mandatory)
Pursuant to the directives of the Securities end Exchange
Commiasion of Pakigtan CNIC number of individuals is mandatorily
required to be mentioned on dividend warrants and pursuant to
the provisions of Finance Act 2014, the rate of deduction of incorme
tax under saction 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 from
dividend payment heve been revised as: for filers of Income Tax
retum 10% and Non filer of Income Tax return 15%. In case of Joint
account, each holder is to be treated individually as sither afileror
norHiler and tex wil be deducted on the basis of sharsholding of sach
Jaint holder as may be notified by the sharsholder, In wiiting as tllows,
to our Shere Registrars, orif no notification, each joint holder shallbe
assumed tohave an equal numbers of ghares,

Compeny | Folo/CDS Tatsl Princical Sharehoider Jont Sharencider
Name AccourtNo, | Shares

Name& | Sharshoking |Neme& | Sharehoking

No. of Shares No. of Sheres

The CNIC number/NTN details is now mandatory and is required
for checking the tax status as per the Active Taxpayers List (ATL)
issued by Federel Board of Revenue (FBR) from time to time.

Individuals Including all joint holders holding physlkcal share
certificates are therefore requested to submit a copy of their valid
CNIC to the Company or Its Reglstrar If not already provided. For
sharehokders other than individuals, the checking will be done by
matching the NTN number, thersfore the Corporats sharsholders
having CDC accounts are requested In thelr own Interest to provide
acopy of NTN certificate to check their names in the ATL before the
book closure date to thelr respective particlpants/CDC, whersas
corporate shareholders helding physical share certificates should
send acopy of their NTN certificate to the Company or its Share
Registrar, The Shanshoiders while sending CNIC or NTN certliicates, as
the case may be must quote their respective folio numbers.

In case of nonreceipt of the copy of a valid CNIC or NTN, the Comperty
would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1Y2012 dated July 05 2012
of SECP and thersfcre will be constrained under Section 251(2} () of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 to withhold dispatch of dividend
warrants of such sharsholders. Further, all shareholders are advisad to
immediately check their stetus on ATL and may, if required teke
necassary action for inclusion of their names in the ATL. The Comparty
as per the new Law, shall apply 15% rate of withholding tax If the
shamholder's name, with relevant dstails, does not appearon the ATL,
avallable on the FBR webslte on the first day of book closure and
deposit the same in the Government Treasury as this has to be done
within the prescribed time.

Zakat Declarations (CZ-50)

The Zakat wil be deducted from the dividends at source at the rate of
2.5% of the paid-up value of the shares (Rs. 10/~ each) under the Zakat
and Ushr Laws and wil be deposited within the prescribed percd with
the relevant authority. Please submit your Zaket Declarations under
Zalat ard Ushr Ordirancs, 1980 & Ruls 4 of Zakat (Daduction &
Refund) Rules, 1881 CZ-50 Farm, In cass you want to claim exemption,
with your brokers or the Central Depository Company Lid. (in case the
sharas ars hekd In Investor Account Services an the CDC)ar to our
Registrars, FAMCO Associates {Pvt) Lid., at their address mentioned
abave (in cass the shares ams held in paper cerdificate form). The
sharshciders while sending the Zakat Declarations, as the case may be
musst quiote company name end their respective folio numbers.

By Order of the Board

FAIZ CHAPRA
Compary Secrstary

Karachi,
Dated: February 08, 2015
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our history

As the nation’s first branded fertilizer manufacturer, the
Company helped modemize traditional farming practices
and boost farm yields, directly impacting the quality of life for
farmers and their families, and for the nation at large. Farmer
education programs increased consumption of fertilizers in
Pakistan, paving way for the Company’s branded urea
called “Engro’ —an acronym for “Energy for Growth”.

Our story begins with one company’s enterprising decision
to strive ahead and invest when another had bowed out. In
19567, Pak Starwac —an Esso/Mobll joint venture —stumbled
upon vast deposits rich in natural gas in Mari whils pursuing
vigble oil exploration in Sind. With Pak Starwac focused
exclusively on oil exploration, the discovery shifted the
impetus to Esso which decided to invest on the massive
Industral potentlal of Mar gas fleld. Esso proposed
establishment of a giant urea plant in Daharki, about ten
miles from the Mari gas fields, which would use natural gas

produced as its primary raw material to tum out urea fertilizer.

Talks with the Government of Pakistan bore fruitin 1964,
and an agresment was signed allowing Essotoset up a
urea plant with an annual capacity of 173,000 tons. Esso
brought in state-ofthe-art design; commercially tried
facilitiss; and a highly distinguished pool of technical
expertise to ensure a smocth start up. Total investiment made
was US$ 46M —the single largest forsign investment in
Pakistan to date then. The plant started productionon 4
December 1868.
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To boost sales, a full-fledged marketing organization
was sstablished which undertook agronomic programs
to educate farmers of Pakistan. As the nation's first
branded fertilizer manufacturer, the Company helped
modemize traditional farming practices and boost farm
yields, directly impacting the quality of life for farmers
and their families, and for the nation at large. Farmer
educatlon praograms Increased consumptlon of
fertilizers in Pakistan, paving way for the Company’s
branded urea called “Engro" —an acronym for “Energy
for Growth”.

In 1978, Essc became Exxon as part of an International
name change. The Company was, therefore, renamed
BExxon Chemlecal Pakistan Limlited.

In 1991, Bxxxon decided to divast its fertilizer business on a
global basis. The employees of BExxon Chemical Pakistan
Limited —in partnership with leading intsmational and local
financlal Institutions —bought out Exxon's 75% equity. This
was, and perhaps still is, the most successful employee
buy-out in Pakistan's corporate history. Renamed Engro
Chemicals Pakistan Limited, the Company went from
strangth to strangth with its consistent financial
performance; growth of its core fertilizer business; and
diversification into other enterprises. A major plant capacity
upgrade at Daharkl colnclded with the employee led
buy-out in 1981, Engro also relocated fertilizer
manufacturing plants from the UK and US to its Daharki
plant site —an intermational first. As years followed, Engro
Chemicals Pakistan Limited started venturing into other
sectors namely: foods, energy, chemical storage and
handling, trading, industrial automation and
petrochemicals.

L e ]

By 2008, Engro was fast growing and had already
diversified its busginess porifolio in as many as seven
differsnt industries. The continuous expansions and
diversifications in Company’s enterprises necessitated a
broad raestructuring in Engro Chemicals Pakistan Ltd.
which subsequently demerged to form a new Engro
subsidiary —Engro Fertilizers Limited.

Aftsr the neceseary legal procedurss and approvals, the Sindh
High Court sanctionad the demerger on December 8, 2009. The
demerger became efiective from January 1, 2010. Subsequently,
allfertiizer business assets and liabiities have been transfemed to
Engro Fertiizers Limited against the Issue of shares to the parent
compearty Engro Corp.

The Company undsrtook its largest urea expansion project
in 2007.

The state of the art plant enVen 3.0, stands tall at 125
meters —dubbed the tallest structure In Pakdstan. The total
cost of this expansion is approximatsly US$ 1.1 Billion, with
the expanded facility making Engro one of the largest urea
manufacturers in Pakistan, besides substantially cutting the
cost of urea imports to national exchequer.

Last year, the Company forayed into the capital markets
and tapped them 1o ralse the necessary capltal required to
fund development capex on securing additional gas
supplies along with restructuring of the balance shast to
optimize the capital structure of the company. The IPO was
a rogaring sucesss being oversubscribed four times in the
book building process whilst being oversubscribed for
three times at the time of public issus.

As we forge ahead we aim to buid on our world class
experience of aimost five decades to forward our purpose
driven growth strategy of being a lsader in the fertilizer
industry with a global presssncs.




Mari gas field discovered by
Esso Mobil joint venture

1965

The company was incorporated as Esso
Pakistan Fertilizer Limited, to manufacture
and market fertilizers

1991

Exxon divests its equity from fertilizer
business globally; the Company is
renamed as Engro Chemicals Pakistan
Limited through an employee led buyout
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2010

Enven plant started producing urea. Demerger
of Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited and
transfer of fertilizer business to a separate
company, Engro Fertilizers Limited. Engro
Chemicals renamed Engro Corporation Limited

2013

Successful IPO conductsd.
Oversubscribed 3x during the process
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core values

At Engro Fertilizers, we support our leadership culture
through unique systems and policies, which ensure open
communication, foster an environment of employee and
partner privacy, and guarantee the welHoeing and safety of
our employees.

Qur core values form the basis of everything we do at Engro Fertilizers; from formal decision making to how we
conduct our business to spot awards and recognition. At Engro Fertllizers we never forget what we stand for. Following
are our core values:

Health Safety & Environment

We will manage and utilize resources and operations in such a way that the
safety and health of our people, neighbors, customers, and visitors is
ensured. We believe our safety, health and environmental responsibilities
extend beyond protection and enhancement of our own facilities

Ethics & Integrity

W do care how results are achigved and will demonstrate honest and ethical
behavior in all our activities. Choosing the course of highest integrity is our
intent and we will establish and maintain the highest professional and
personal standards. A well-founded reputation for scrupulous dealing is itself
a priceoless asset.
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Innovation & Risk Taking

Success requires us to continually strive 1o produce breakthrough Ideas that
result in improved solutions and services. We encourage challenges to the
status quo and seek organizational environments In which Icdeas are
generated, nurtured and developed. Engro appreciates employees for well
thought out rsks taken In all realms of business, and for the results achleved
due to them, acknowledging the fact that not all risks will result in success.

Qur People

We strongly believe in the dignity and value of our peopla. We must consistently
treat each other with respect and strive to create an organizational environment
in which individuals are fairly freated, sncouraged and empowsnsd to contributs,
grow and develop themssives and help to develop each other. We do not
tolerate any form of harassment or discrimination.
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Community & Society

We belleve that a successiul business creates much bigger economic Impact and
value in the community, which dwarfs ary philanthropic contribution. Hence,
sustainable business devalopment is to be anchored in commitment to engage
with key stakeholders in the community and society.
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board of directors

Shabhbir Hashmi, Khalid Sirgj Subhani, Naz Khan, Aliuddin Ansari,
Ruhail Mehammead, Shahid Hamid Pracha, Abdul Samad Dawood & Javed Akbar
















directors’ profile

Muhammad Aliuddin Ansari

Chairman

Muhammad Aliuddin Ansari is the Presidert & Chief Executive
Officer of Engro Corporation since May 2012. He Is a graduate
of Business Adminisiration with a speciglization in Finance &
Investments.

Ali started his carser as an Irvestrnent Manager at Bank of
Ametica in London which later became World Invest after a
managemsnt buyout. Prior to joining Engro, he has also worked
as CEQ Pakistan and later as CCO Emerging Europe for Gredit
Lyonnais Securities Asia (CLSA).

He has also waorked as CEO AKD Securities and was instrumental
in launching Onine Trading, Verture Capital and Private Ecuity
nvestments. In 2006 he parinerad with an Cil & Gas company to
form Dewan Driling, Paldstan’s first independent Driling company
which he led as its CEO befors joining Engro.

Ali is a member of the Board of Directors of Engro Corporation
Limited and the Chairman of Engro Corporation’s subsidiaries
along with being a member on Sindh Engro Coal Mining
Cornparny, Dewan Drilling Limited, Pakistan Chermical & Energy
Sector Skill Development Company, and Pakistan Business
Council. He has ¢haired a number of SECP committees,
NCCPL and also served on the Boards of the Karachi Stock
Exchangse, Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited, Hubco,
Lucky Cament and Al Meeazan Investment Management
amongst others. He joined the Engro Fertilizers Board in 2012,
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Ruhail Mohammed

Cheif Executive Officer

Ruhail Mohammed is currently the Chief Executive Officer of
Engro Fertllizers Umited. Pror to his current posltion, he was
the Chief Financial Officer of Engro Corporation Limited and
also the Chief Exacutive Officar of Engro Powergen Limited.
He holds an MBA degree in Finance from the Institute of
Businass Administration Karachi, and is also a Charterad

Financlal Analyst (USA).

Ruhail has 25 years of Financial & Commercial experiencs and
prior to becoming CEQO has worked in areas such as treasury,
cormmodity & cumancy trading, derivatives, merger &
acquisitions, risk management, strategy & financial planning. He
has worked in thesse areas in Pakistan, UAE and Europe.

He is on the Board of Engro Corporation Limited and its
various subsidiaries. In addition, he is also on the Boards of
Hub Power Company Limited, Sincdh Board of Investment
and Pakhtunkhwa Energy Development Organization. He
joined the Board in 2008 and became CEQ in 2012.




Abdul Samad Dawood

Dirsctor

Abdul Sarmad is a graduete in Economics from University
College London, UK and a Certified Director of Corporate
Governancs from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Govemance. He Is the CEO of Dawood Corporation (Private)
Limited and Patek {Private) Limited. He is also a Director on
the Board of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited, The
Hub Power Company Limited, Dawood Lawrencepur
Limited, Engro Foods Limited, DH Fertilizers Limited, Tenaga
Generasl Limited, and Pebbles (Private) Limited. Hels a
member of Young President Organization, Pakistan Chapter.
He joined the Board in 2010.

Javed Akbar

Director

Jeved Akbar has undergraduats and post-gradusate qualification
in Chemical Engineering from the United Kingdom, and has
over 40 ysars of experience in fertilizer and chemical business
with Bocon, Engro and Vopak. He has managed Exxon and
Engro fertilizer plants and their exgansions in Pakistan, worked
in Bxxon's Chermical Technology divisions in USA and Canada,
and served as Human Resources Manager in Becon Pakistan.
He was part of the buyout team when BExxon divested its stake
InEngro.

Prior to his retirement in 2006, he was Chief Executive of Engro
Vopak Terminal Limited, a joint venture between Engro and
Royal Vopak of Holland. After his rstirerment, he established a
consutting company speciallzing In analyzing and forecasting
petroleum, petrochemical and snergy industry trends and
providing strategic insight. He is on the boards of Dawood
Hercules Corporation Limited, DH Fertilizer Limited, Engro
Fertilizers Limited, Engro Powergen Limited, Engro Powergen
Qadipur Limited, Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, and Javed
Akbar Assodiates (Private) Limited. He also serves on the panel
of Energy Experts Group and environmental experts of Sindh
Environmental Protection Agency. He joined the Board in 2010.
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directors’ profile

Khalid Siraj Subhani
Director
Khalld S. Subhani Is the Chief Executive Officer for Engro

Polymer & Chemicals Limited, and Senior Vice President for
Engro Corporation Limited.

He is a Director on the Boards of Engro Corporation Limited,
Engro Fertilizers Limited, Engro Eximp Private Limited, Engro

Polymer & Chemicals Limited, The Hub Power Company
Limited and Laraib Energy Limited. Ha is Chairman of the
Board of Engro Polymer Trading {Pvt) Lid. He has also
served as Chairman of the Board of Avanceon in the past.
Mr. Subhani began his career in the Manufacturing Division
at BExxon Chemical Pakistan Limited In 1983 and has held a

variety of leadership roles within the Company, including long

termn assignment with Esso Chemical Canada. He has
served as Manager for New Projects, General Manager for
Operations, Vice President for Manufacturing, Senior Vice

President for Manufacturing and New Ventures and as Chisf

Executive Officer for Engro Fertilizers Limited.

He Is a member of the Pakistan Englneering Councll, Busliness

Advisory Council of the Socisty for Human Resource
Management (SHRM) Forurn Pakistan, Academic Council of
Institute of Business Administration — Sukiur, Faculty
Selsction Board of Institute of Business Administration -
Sukkur and Standing Committsa on Erwironment of

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce & Industry. He

has recsntly been elscted Vice President of Overssas
Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry (OICCI).

He graduated from NED University of Engineering and
Technolkogy, Pakistan with a degree In Chemical Engineering
and has completed programs on advance management from
MIT and Hass School of Business Management, Univarsity of
Berkeley, USA. He joined the Board in 2009.
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Naz Khan

Director

Naz Khan Is the Chief Financlal Officer at Engro Corporation
Limited. Prior to her current position, she also worked as
Chief Executive Officar of KASB Funds Limited. Her
association with Pakistan’s capital markets spans over 19
years during which she has been actively involved in primary
as well as secondary markets for both debt and equity
gecurities. She has also held key positions of Executive
Director, Head of Money Market and Fixed Income, Head of
Investment Advisory Division and Co-Head of Investment
Banking Division at KASB Securities Limited, where she led
major capital market transactions on the debt and equity
side. Ms. Khan hag also worked as a consultant for the
Asian Devslopment Bank on Mortgage Backed Securities.
She is a graduate from Mount Holyoke College, MA, USA.
She joined the Beard in 2013.




Shabbir Hashmi

Director

Shabbir Hashmi is an engineer from DCET, Pakistan and
holds an MBA from J.F. Kennady University, USA. He has
more than 25 years of project finance and private equity
experience. Until recently he led the regional operations of
Actls Capltal (formerty CDC Group Plc) for Pakistan and
Bangladesh. Prior to joining Actis he worked for 8 years with
the World Bank and USAID specializing in the energy sector.
He joined the Board in 2010.

Shahid Hamid Pracha

Director

Mr. Pracha chairs the Board of DH Fertilizers Limited,
Dawood Lawrencepur Limited, Tenaga Generasi Limited and
Reon Limited. In addition to Engro Fertilizers Limited, heis a
Director on the Boards of Engro Comporation Limited, Hub
Power Company Limited, Engro Powergen Limlted, Engro
Powergen Qadirpur Limited, and e2e Business Enterprises
(Privata) Limited. Ha recently retired as Chief Exscutive of
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited and hag also served
as the CEO of The Dawood Foundation, the philanthropic
am of the Dawood Hercules Group. Whilst In that role, he
was concurrently the first CEO of The Karachi Education
Initiative, the sponsoring entity of the Karachi School for
Business & Leadership.

Mr. Pracha s a graduate electrical engineer from the University
of Salford, UK and prior to joining the Dawood Hercules Group,
spant a major part of his caresr with ICl Ple’s Pakistan
operations in a variety of senior roles including a period of
imemeational secondrment with the parsnt compary in the UK.
He |olned the Board In 2013.
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board committees

The Board has established following two committees:

Board Compensation Committee

The committee meets multiple times through the year to
review and recommend all elements of the Compensation,
Organization and Employee Development policias relating to
the senior executives' remuneration and to approve all
matters related to the remuneration of the executives of all
companles and members of the management commiites.

The Chief Executive Officer attends Board Compeansation
Committes meetings by invitation. The committee met four
times during 2014.

Mambers

Muhammad Alluddin Ansari - Chalrman
Abdul Samad Dawood - Director
Javed Akbar - Director

The Secretary of the Committea ia M. Asif Tajik, VP HR &
Adminletration.
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The Board Audit Committee

The committee meets atleast once every quarter and asslists
the Board in fuffilling its oversight regponsibilitiss, primarily in
reviewing and reporting financial and noninancial
information to shareholders, systems of internal control and
risk management and the audit process. It has the power to
call for Information from management and to consult directly
with the external auditors or their advisors as considered
appropriate.

Tha Chief Financial Officar regularly attends the Board Audit
Committee meetings by invitation to present the accounts.
After sach mesting, the Chairman of the Committee reports
1o the Beard. The Committee met four imes during 2014.

Membars

Javed Akbar- Chairman

Shabbir Hashmi - Membar

Abdul Samad Dawood — Member

The Secretary of the Committee is Saleem Lallany, Manager
Corporate Audit.



functional committees

These committees act at the operational level in an advisory
capacity to the Chief Executive, providing recommendations
relating to businesses and employee matters.

MANCOM

MANCOM Is headed by the President & CEO, and Includes
the functional heads of all departments. The committes
meets to discuss Company's performance and works in an
advisory capacity to the President & CEO.

Committee Members

Ruhail Mohammed (Chairman)
Ahmad Shakoor

Asim Butt

Imran Anwar

Inamullah Naveed Khan

M. Asif Tajik

Mudassir Yagoob Rathore

The Secretary of MANCOM s Khusrau Nadir Gllanl.

Six Sigma Divisional Council

This committee oversees the implimentation of Six Sigma. It
Is gulded by Six Sigma Corporate Councll whose members
are same as COED.

Committee Members
M. Asif Tgjik (Chairman)
Imran Anwar

Salman Abdullah Gora
Rabia Wafah Khan
Salesm Lallary
Sarmesar Amin

Wajid Hussain Junejo

The Secretary of both Six Sigma Counclls Is Adeel Anwar.

Committee for Organizational
and Employee Devselopment (COED)

The COED is responsitle for the review of Compensation,
Organtzation, Training and Development matters of all employees.
The members of COED &t Engro Fertilizers are as follows:

Committee Members

Ruhail Mohammed (Chairman)
Ahmad Shakoor

Asim Butt

Imran Arnwar

Inamullah Naveed Khan

M. Asif Tajik

Mudassir Yagoob Rathore

The Secretary of the COED Is M. Aslif Ta|lk.

Corporate HSE Committes

This committes is responsible for bringing in exsllence in the
sectors of Health, Safety and Environment.

Committee Members

Ruhail Mohammed {Chairman)
Ahmad Shakoor

Asim Butt

Imran Arwar

Inamullah Navead Khan

M. Asif Tajik

Mudassir Yagqoob Rathore

The Secretary of the Corporate HSE Committee is
Mahmood Siddiqul.
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our govemance framework

With a strong legacy system spanning over four decades,
Engro Fertilizers continues to optimize its govemance
framework by institutionalizing its core values, policies and

principles across the board.

Compliance Staterment

The Board of Directors has throughout the year 2014
complled with the '‘Code of Corporate Governance' as per the
listing requirements of the stock exchanges and the
'Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework' of the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Risk Management Process

Management at Engro Fertiizers petiodically reviews major financlal
and operating risks faced by the business. We also continue o
oparate an Enterprise-wide Risk {ERM)system to proactively
highlight risks associated with the business and deploy mitigation
strategies that feed into our govemance framework.

Internal Control Framework

Responsibliity:

The Board Is uttimatsty responslble for the Company’s system of
imbernal contral and for reviewing its effectiveness. However,
such a system s designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of faiure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board, whilst maintaining its overall responsibility for
managing risk within the Company, has delegated the detailed
design and operation of the system of irfemal controls to the
Chief Exscutive.

Framework:

The company maintains an established corvrol framework
comprising cear structures, authority imits, and accountabiities,
wel understood polcles and procedures and budgeting for review
processas. Al policies and control procedures are documentsdin
manials. The Board establishes corporate strategy and the

these objectives into divisional business strategies with supporting
financial objectives.

Review:

The Board meets quarterty to consider the Comparny’s financial
perfiormance, financial and operating budgets and forecasts,
business growth and development plans, capital expenditure
propaosels and ather key performance indicetors.
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The Board Audit Committes recaives reports on the system of
intermal financial controls from the external and intermal auditors
and reviews the process for monitoring the effectiveness of
irmemal controls.

Thera is a companywide policy governing appreisal and
approval of investment expenditure and asset disposals. Post
completion reviews are performed on al material imnvestment
expenditure,

Audit:

Engro Fertilizers has an Internal Audit function. The Board
Audit Committes annually reviews the appropriateness of
resourcss and authority of this function. The Head of Intermal
Audit functionally reports to the Audit Committee. The Board
Audit Committee approves the audit program, basad oanan
annual risk assessment of the operating areas. The Intermal
Audit function carries out reviews on the financial, operational
ard compliance controls, and reports on findings to the
Board Audit Committee, Chief Executive and the divisional
management.

Directors:

As at December 31, 2014 the Board comprises of one
axecutive Director, two Independent Directors, five
nonexecutive Directars of whom thres are executives in
other Engro companles, who have the collective
respansibility for ensuring that the affairs of Engro Fertilizers
are managed competently and with integrity.

Anonexecutive Director, Mr. Aliuddin Ansari, chairs the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer Iz Mr. Ruhal Mchammed. Blographical
detais of the Directors are given earfierin this section. A Board of
Directors’ meeting calendar s Issued annualy thet schedules the
matters reserved for discussion and approval. The ful Board met G5
times this year and discussed matters relating to inter alialong term
planning, giving consideration both to the oppaortunities and risks of
future strategy.

All Board members are given appropriate documentation in
adthvance of each Board meeting. This normally includes a
detailed analysis on businesses and full papers on matters
where the Board will be required to make a decision or give
Its approval.



statement of compliance with
the code of corporate governance

This statement is being pressnted to comply with the Code of Corporate Govemance (the CCG) contained in Regulation No.
5.18 of the listing regulations of Karachi Stock Exchange Limited and Regulation No. 35 of chapter X contained in the Listing
Reguiation of Lahore and lslamabad Stock Exchanges for the purpose of establishing a framework of goocd govemance,

whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate govermnancs.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The Company encouragses represeantation of independent non-executive directors and dirsctors representing minority interests
on its Board of Directors. As at December 31, 2014 the Board included the following members:

I S I —

Indepandent Directors

Shabbir Hashmi
Javed Akbar

Executive Directors

Ruhail Mohammed

NorExecutive Directors

Abdul Samad Dawocod

Shahid Hamid Pracha
Naz Khan
Muhammad Aliuddin Ansari
Khalid S. Subhani

The independent directors meet the criteria of independencs under clause i (b) of the CCG. Of the non-executive directors,
Ms. Naz Khan, Muhammad Aliuddin Ansar and Khalid S. Subhani ara exacutives in other Engro Group Companies.

2. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies, including this
Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable.)

3. Althe resident Directors of the Companies are registered as Tax payers and none of them has defaulted In payment of anylcanto a
banking company, a DA or an NBH, or being 8 member of a stock exchange has been declared as a defautter by that stock exchange.

4, No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” comprising of Ethkes and Business Practices pollcles and has ensured that
approprigte steps have been taken o disssminats it through the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has devsloped a visiorymission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company.
A record of particulars of significant policias has been maintained.

7. Allthe powers of the Board have besn duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and the meeting fees payable to the
non- executive directors, have been taken by the Board .

8. Al meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chainrman and the Board met at least oncs in svery quarter. Whitten notices
of the Board meetings, along with the agenda and working papers wers circulated at kast seven days before the meetings. The
minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. Fourofthe directors attended the directors tralning course conaucted by the Pakistan Institute of Comarate Govemance (PICG)
this year. Three directors have already completed this course earlier.
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10. The Board has approvad appointment of GFO, Company Sacrstary and Head of Intemal Audit, including their remuneration and
terme and conditions of employment.

11. The Directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully describes the
salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Comipany were duly endorssed by CEQ and CFO before approval of the Board.

13. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the pattem
of shareholding.

14. The Gompany has complied with all the corporate and financial reparting requirements of the CCG.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committes comprising thres members of whom two members are indepsndent dirsctors and
one is a non-executive director and the Chaimnan of the Committes is an independent director.

18. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final resufts of the
Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the commilttee have been formed and advised to the
Committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resourcs and Remuneration Committes. It comprises three members, ofwhomoneisan
indepandent director and two ars nor-executive dirsctors and the Chainman of the Committes is a norrexscutive director.

18. The Board has set up an sffective imternal audit functiocn manned by suitably qualified and experienced personnel that are
Involved In the Intemal audit function on a full time basls and are conversant with policles and procedures of the Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have bean given a satisfactory rating under the quality control
review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (CAP), that they or any of the partners of the firm, their
apouses and minor children do not hold shares of the comparty and that the firm and all its pariners are in compliance with
Intemational Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory audttors or the persons assoclated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except In
accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confimed that they have cbserved IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The ‘closed period”, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may materially affect the
market prics of the Company's securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employses and stock exchanges.

22, Material/price sensitive information has besn disseminated among all market participants at once through the stock exchangss.

23. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

// / il ﬁ 1. v') _—.( ’

Aluddin Ansari Ruhail Mohermmed
Chalrman CEO
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CEQO’s message

As the Company continues to evolve, we are now
effectively hamessing even more the power of
innovation to manage risks, create opportunities,

Today's business world is complex and
fastpaced, and looking forward, the impetus
of change will continue. The best organizations
are those that challenge themselves 1o look at
their role in the world, and to re-affirm their
sense of purpose. Engro Fertilizers goal
remains to dedicatedly build a sustainable and
profitable organization, which is a good
investment for our shareholders, whilst at the
same time, provide a positive working
environment for cur employees.

History has proven that the greatest challenge
for acompany is to stand the test of time, and
we have managed to accomplish this by
focusing and prieritizing our goals and
business interests — a fact reflected in our
stellar revenue and profit growth. 2014 saw
Engro Fertilizers raise the bar as we set out to
do bigger things and accomplish greater feats.
This year has been one where we successfully
operated both our urea plants, posted a sharp
improvement in eamings, strengthened our
financial position and invested in our people,
who are our main assets, We also surpassed
all previous urea production and sales records,
maintained the existing Dupont ratings on
HSE, and saved favorably by utilizing the 6
Sigma platformes.

it is my firm belief that the success of every
organization is dependent solely on its
employees and throughout the year at Engro
Fertilizers, we took a great number of steps

/
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and meet our sustainability goals
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that bear testimony to our resolve to work
towards the betterment of our employees. We
connected with our people in a significant way
as we rolled out a comprehensive employee
engagement strategy. In 2014 wemade a
conscious effort to improve our Employee
Engagement Index (EEI) through an enhanced
HR strategy including new policies, employee
training, out breaks and communication
activities. Engagerment surveys and focus
group discussions helped develop an action
plan focused on helping employees connect
the dots between their individual roles and the
goals of the organization, and bringing
positivity into the worlkgplace. These efforts
ulimately led to EFERT becoming the
subsidiary with the highest EEIl score.

As the Company continues to evolve, we are
now effectively hamessing even more the
power of innovation to manage risks, create
opportunities, and meet our sustainability
goals, Each year will bring its own mix of
successes and challenges, and our aim
remains to continue to focus intently on what
we can control, expand and diversify our
business interests, strengthen the Engro
legacy creating value for a wide category of
stake holders, leave our imprints with value
added CSR activities, and preserve our
philosophy of creating inclusive growth for now
and generations to come.
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busINESS review

Following the turnaround in 2013, Engro Fertilizers Limited
delivered another year of robust operational and financial
performance in 2014 on the back of the first full year of 2
plant operations in the Company'’s history.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Engro Fettilizers
Limited, we are pleased to submit the Directors report and
the audited financlal statements of the Company for the year
ended Decsmber 31, 2014.

Qverview

Following the tumaround in 2013, Engro Fertilizers Limited
dellvered another year of robust operational and financlal
performance in 2014 on the back of the first full year of 2
plant operations in the Company’s history.

The Company posted a profit after tax of Rs. 8,208 miillion in
2014 representing an increase of 49% over Rs. 5,497 millicn
posted in 2013. As highlighted, the performance wasina
large part led by the continuous operation of both urea
plants, as the Company continused to receive temporary gas
allocation of 60 MMSCFD from Mari throughout 2014, With
improved profitability, the Company also managed to
dedeverage its balance sheet by implementing its cash
sweep to lenders well ahead of the agreed timeline in the
terms of restructuring and prepayment of TFC.

The Company alsc adhsred to its tradition of focusing on
Health, Safety & Environmant with a Total Recordable Injury
Rate (TRIR) of 0.10 as against 0.16 in 2013.

Market Review

Pakistan's 2014 urea industry shrank by 4.5% vs. 201310 5,628
KT. The decline was mainly attributable to lower application of
ursa on rice due to poor farmer economics, a dslay in wheat
sowing in 4Q 2014 and dealer unwillingness to take delivery of
product in 2Q 2014 on account of interim uncertainty on dealer
margins. Though the industry shrank, shars of locally produced
branded urea Increased to 86.6% as compared to 81.8% last
year. Domestic urea production increased to 4,891 KT whers
higher preduction by Engro Fertilizers Lid was partly offset by
lower production of other players.

Domestic urea prices were largely stable In 2014, Average
domestic urea price rosse by only 5 % in 2014 despite the
sham Increase In Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
{GIDC}, where GIDC on feed and fuel gas was raised by
Rs.103/MMBTU and Rs. 100/MMBTU respectively during the
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course of the year. The domestic fertilizer industry continues to
absorb a substantial portion of the cost increase.

Despite the recent meltdown in global oil pricss, international
ursa pricas remain largely stable where the swing factor for
global urea prices is now China coakbased producers.
Intemational urea pricas averaged USD 322/ton in 2014
{CFR Karachl), translating Into local cost of Rs. 2,264/bag
(inclusive of all ancillary charges) as against average 2014
local price of Rs. 1,793/bag. The fettlizer Industry continues
to make significant contribution to the agricultural economy
by keeping domestic pricas substantially lower than
intemational prices.

Gas Scenario

Engro Fertilizer Ltd continued to receive the temporary gas
allocation of 60 MMSCFD gas from Guddu / Mari Shallow
throughout the year 2014 as a result of which both urea
plants remained in operation. Whils there was no progress
on the Long Term Gas Supply plan to four fertilizer
manufacturers, approved by the Economic Coordination
Committee (ECC) In December 2012, the Company alse
continued to receive ECC approved 22 MMSCFD and 12
MMSCFD gas from Mari SML and Reti Maru fields
respectively through the year. As a result, the Company’s
overall urea capacity utilization in 2014 was 80%.

In August 2014, the Supreme Court deermed the GIDC Act of
2011 as unconstitutional, subsequent to which, the govemment
appealed the decision and also reimposed GIDC under a
Presidential Ordinancs. The Company has challenged the
validity and promulgation of GIDC Ordinance, 2014 before the
Honorable High Court of Sindh, wherein the court has been
pleased to grant a stay order.

Despite the formal approval of the ECC in January 2014 and
best efforts by the Company, concessionary feed gas pricing
{at USD 0.70/MMBTU) was not implemantad in 2014, The
Company has formalized the commercial agreement
regarding the same with key staksholders and awaits OGRA
ratification of the same.



Segment Analysis

Urea

Engro Fertllizer Ltd produced 1,819 KT of urea, 16% higher
than 1,562 KT produced in 2013. Engro continues to
operate the highsest capacity ursa plant of Pakistan at an
impressive energy index making it one of the most efficient
plants of the country. The Company reported a urea sales
volume of 1,818 KT in 2014, 16% higher than 2013,
Resultantly, Engro’s 2014 urea markst share increased to
32% from 26% last year while market share In branded urea
rose to 37% from 32% a year ago.

Zarkhez

The Company’s blended fertilizers’ (Zarkhez & Engro NP)
sales for the year Increased by 32% to 125 KT compared to
95 KT during 2013. Increasae in blended fertilizers sales was a
dirsct result of the Company’s focused sfforts on developing
the potash and phosphate nutrient markets in the country.
Efforts to this and included formulation and sals of new grades
of blended fertilizer, farmer education, consumer incentive
schemes, exploring new markets for different grades and
cost-driven Inttlatives taken by the Company. Engro closed
2014 with an overall potash nutrient markst share of 42%,
slightly lower than 50% share in 2013 given higher competition
vs. low priced imports.

Financial review

Sales revenue for 2014 was Rs. 61,425 million which was
higher by 23% as compared to the coiresponding perlod
(2013: Rs. 50,129 million).

Gross profit for the year 2014 was Rs. 22,603 million as
compared to Rs. 22,121 million for the same pericd. The
decrease In GP margln Is attributable to Increase In GIDC
which was not passed on to the end consumers.

Financial charges decreased by Rs. 3,283 million to Rs.
6,625 million {2013: Rs. 8,918 million). This variation is
mainly on account of lower interest rates in the country and
repayment of loans by the company. Other income rose to
Rs. 2,448 milllon from Rs. 1,151 millon In 2013 as surplus
cash from higher EBITDA generation was invested in ghort
term instruments.

As a resuit of above, EPS improved to Rs. 6.28 as compared to
EPS of Rs. 4.66 last year.

Dividend

The Board is pleased to proposs a dividend of Rs. 3 pershare for
the Yeear ended Decarmber 31, 201 4 for approval of the members gt
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 28 Aprd 2015.

Capital Structure

To overcome the burden on the Company’s cash flows as a
result of gas curtailment, the Company had approached the
majority of its lenders for re-profiling of various finance faciliies
In 2012. The reprofiled terms allowed an Increase of 2.5 years
in loan tenor, with some interim payments in the initial period, as
wall as sweep of surplus cash over and above debt servicing,
recurring capex and altemate gas capex on a one-off basis.
This sweep was applicable on Decamber 31, 2014, howsver,
on account of Improved cash Inflows, the Company
implemented the cash sweep inJune 2014.

As part of debt re-profiling, the Inter-Craditor Agresment
(ICA)was also amended. The armended ICA allowed
dividend payment only after the repayment of 33% of the
senior loans outstanding as at June 30, 2012. During the
year the Company has fuffilled this condition by making
repayments that exceeded 33% of outstanding amount of
senior debt as of June 30, 2012.

Long term borrowings at ysar end 2014 were Rs. 44,003
million {2013: Rs. 58,821 million).

During the year, the Karachl, Lahore and Islamabad Stock
Exchanges approved the Company's application for formal
listing and quotation of shares. Accordingly, shares of the
Company are now listed at all three stock exchanges of the
country. During the year on June 25, 2014, the Company
recelved a notlce from the Intematlonal Finance Corporation
(IFC) for exercise of option on USD 5 million loan and
accordingly 20,541,667 ordinary shares of the Company
were allotted to the IFC. Subsequent to the year end, on
January 8, 2015 the Company recsivad a notics from IFC for
exercise of further USD 3 million loan out of the remaining
USD 4 million of Tranche A2. Accordingly 12,580,625
ordinary shares of the Company have been allotted to the
IFC on January 14, 2015.

The shareholder's equity as at December 31, 2014 stands at
Rs. 34,478 miilion (2013: Rs. 25,088 million).

During the year, PACRA has upgraded the long term credit
rating from A to A+. The short term rating Is Al.

Sacial Investments

At Engro Fertilizers, we understand that our future success
hinges on making corporate decisions that positively impact
the Iives we touch and the environment we share.

The social investments of Engro Fertilizers constitute of variety
of programs primarily centerad around the Daharki plant site.
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TTG (Technical Training College)

The Technical Training College (TTC) in Daharki is a non-profit
Iniflative that offers, the local youth from rural communities In
Sindh, an opportunity to acquire technical expertise that will
afford them access 1o employment options. This equips them
with an effective msans to eamn a sustainable livelihood. By
awarding a 3-year associate diplomain the fiekds of Chemical
and Mechanical Engineering, not only are we contributing to the
smpowerment of individugls but we are also positively
Impacting the comimunity at large by ihcreasing the skill level of
the labor force in the area.

Total enroliment at the TTC in 2014 was 240 students, with the
induction of a new batch of B0 students. Additionally, 100
tralnees successiully completed short-term vocational training
courses in Welding; Advanced Welding; Carpentry; Fabrication
& Plpe Atting; Motoreycle Repalr and UPS Repalr.

Education

Our Education program has grown to include 22 schools
serving more then 2500 students. The program includes 10
govemment schools (under the Govemment School Adoption
Program)and 1 NGO school (with Sahara Wetfare Society)in
Daharki as well as 11 schoals in the Kalcha (riverine) bett of
Ghotki. This year, an additional school has also been adopted
in the Jing village and the Sahara Community School weas
upgraded from a Middle to a High scheal. It was registered with
the Sukdair board and a new secondary block constructed to
accommaodate the higher classes.

Community Physical Infrastructure (CPI) Schemes

We continue to invest in improving the quality of the physical
infrastructurs in our stakeholders’ communities. A particular
area of focus has been 'green’ and ecologlcally sustalnable
infrastructural projects. Three RO (reverse osmosis) plants
and 35 solar street lights were installed in Daharki this year.
Engro Fertilizer spent Rs. 40 million in CSR to ensurs
positive impact on our stakeholder cormmunities and the
environment we share with them.

Qur Family

Historically, Engro Fertilizers is known for its strong
commitment to nurturing talent and creating opportunities of
growth for its employees. The Company attracts, hires and
retains some of the most talented peopls in Pakistan.

Engro Fertilizers promotes inclusivensss and diversity and
belleves that this creates high performance teams and
bresds a culture of professionalism and excellsnce. In 2014,
we finalized a 3-ysar plan to mest diversity targets that
promote gender equity, multi-cultural/regional inclusion as
wall as the inclusion of physically challenged individuals.
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Employees remained the kay factor in the succass of our
company. During 2014, numerous policies were revamped
to focus on the developmert and welbeing of our employees.
This was based on feedback regarding our policies and
resulted in employes engagement improving significanthy.
Engro Fertllizers had a total of 1136 employees and recorded
an employes sngagemsnt index of 73% this year.

Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)

During the year, the Compariy camied out extensive trainings
and focused even further on kdentifying and Implementing best
practices, conducting a series of audits culminating in the
achievement of 5S certification from the National Productivity
Organization {NPO) for its mechanical shacks and workshop
and recertification for the Clinic and Warshouse at Daharki with
even higher scores.

To further align with Du Pont best practices, Process Safety
Risk Management and Personnsl Safety Management
systerns werse merged into PSM (Process Safety Management)
and the concept of PSM Element Champions was effectively
launched. OHIH (Occeupational Health and Industrial
Hygiene) key performance indicators were developed and
implemented this ysar and the British Safety Council (BSC) 4
Star ratlng was achleved once more. Moreover, phase one
of the Community Awareness and Emergency Response
(CAER) was completed and now all nearby villages in
Daharki have been trained in emergency response.

In 2014, the Green Office Certlfication was achleved for two
new buildings and three others achieved recertification
through an extemnal Audit by the WWF (World Wide Fund for
Nature). Recertification was also achieved for IMS&SAB000
(Integrated management systems and

Social accountability).

The TRIR (Total recordable Injury rate) and LWI (Loss work
injuries) for Engro Fertilizers this year were 0.10 and 1
respectively.

Pension, Gratuity and Provident Fund

The Company contributes to plans that provide
post-employment and retirsment benefits for its employees.
These Inciude defined contribution (DC) and defined benefit
(DB) pension plans {(both curtailed), DC provident fund, DC
gratuity plan and DB gratuity plan. The valus of total assets of
Provident Fund {as at June 30, 2014), Gratuity funds {as at
Decemnber 31, 2013} and Pension Funds {as at December 31,
2013) based on thelr respective audlted accounts are:

Provident Funds: Rs. 2,037 million
Pension Funds: Rs. 652 million
Gratuity Funds: Rs. 1,217 miillion



Auditors

The existing auditors, A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants
retirs and being eligible, have offered tharmselves for
re-appointment. The Board Audit Committee recommends their
appaintment as auditors for the year ending December 31, 2015.

Pattern of Shareholding

Major sharsholder of Engro Fertiizers Limited is Engro Comporation
Limited. A statement of the general pattem of shareholding along
with steterment of purchasa and sale of shares by Directors,
Bxecutives and spouses induding minor children during 2014
shown laterin this report.

Statement of Director Responsibilities

The dirsctars confirn compliance with Corporate and Financial

Reporting Framework of the SECP Cade of Corporate
Governance for the following:

1. Thefinanclal statements, prepared by the management of
the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accourts of the comparnty have been maintained.

Board Meetings and Atiendance

. Appropriate accourting policies have been consistently applied

In preparation of the financlal statements. Accounting estimates
are based on reasanable prudent judgment.

. International Accounting Standards, as applicable in

Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and any departures there from have
been adequately disclosed and explained.

. The system of intemal contral is sound in design and has

been effectively Implemented and monltored.

. There are no significart doubts upon the company's ability

to continue as a going concermn.

. Therels no material departure from the best practices of

corporate governancs, as detailed in the listing regulations.

. Four of the directors attended the directors training course

conducted by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Govemance (PICG) this year. Thres dlrectors have already
completed this course earlier.

In 2014, the Board of Directors held 5 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The attendance record of the Directors is as follows:

Muhammad Aliuddin Ansari
Ruhall Mohammed

Syed Khalid Siraj Subhani
Nez Khen

Abdul Samad Dawood
Shahid Hamid Pracha
Javed Akbar

Shabbir Hashmi

G668 658 6

The Board Audit Commities hekd 4 mestings during 2014, The attendance record of the Commilitee Is as follows:

The Board Compeansation Cammittse met 4 imes during 2014, The attendance record of the Commiltiee Is as follows:

Muhammad Alluddin Ansar

Javed Akbar
Abadul Samad Dawood

Mestings Attended
44
474
44
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horizontal and vertical analyses

balance sheet

Horizontal Analysis (Rs. in million) 2014 14Vs.13 2013 13Vs. 12
Rs. % Rs. %
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 13,183 78 12,228 14.0
Share Premium 2,261 20,454.5 11 -
Advance against issue of sharss - {100.0) 2,118 100.0
Hedging reserve {40) {73.0} (148) {54.3)
Remeasurement of post employment benefits {14) {33.3) (&) 100.0
Unappropriated Profit 18,088 754 10,880 10241
Employee share option compsnsation ressrve - - - -
34478 375 25,088 58.7
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bomowings 36,091 {31.8) 52,896 a1
Subordinated Loan from Holding Comparny - {100.0) 3,000 -
Derivative Financlal Instruments 7 {£9.5) 1,531 207.4
Deferred Liabilities 5,227 12.3 4,855 377
Employee houslhg subsldy - - - -
Servica benefits obligations 113 8.7 104 5.1
41438 33.4) 82,188 1241
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 24,472 358 18,012 126.4
Accrued interast / mark-up 1,362 8.0) 1,480 (17.2)
Taxes payable 876 100 2 =
Current portion of
Borrowings 7.913 170.6 2,924 (80.4)
Retirement and cther service bensfits obligations 43 - 44 10.0
Short term bomowings - - - (100.0)
Dertvative financlal Instruments 1,080 411.7 213 (62.4)
35,5568 56.8 22,673 (13.8)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 111,472 14 109,928 12.7
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and sgqulpment 74,863 5.5} 79,315 (4.3)
Intangible assets 118 {14.5) 138 (14.8)
Long term loans and advancss 94 (13.76) 108 20.8
75175 6.5) 79,562 (4.3)
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 4,714 78 4,369 6.4
Stock-ntrade 1,101 {20.3) 1,382 (18.1)
Trade debts 757 {01) 758 {(27.5)
Deferrad employee compensation expense - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - {100.0) 130 100.0
Loans, advances, depoalts and prepaymerts 432 {30.8) 626 58.5
Cther receivables 28 - 28 (54.1)
Taxas recoverable - {100.0) 557 (72.2)
Short-term Investments 25,076 38.8 18,058 585.3
Cash and bank balances 4,188 (6.0} 4,458 82.0
36,207 18.5 30,368 111.2
TOTAL ASSETS 111,472 14 108,928 12.7
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2012 12ve. 11 2011 11Vs. 10 2010
Rs. % Rs. % Rs.
10,728 . 10,728 5 10,728
11 = 11 = 11
(324) (34.9} (428) (43.9) {887)
5,383 (35.3) 8,317 1230 3,729

- (100.0) 58 (.7 50
15,798 (15.1) 18,616 36.5 13,640
48,482 (14.0) 56,308 (10.0) 62,660
3,000 - 3,000 100.0 1,500
498 8.6} 545 {48.7) 1,062
3,381 (25.2) 4,521 75.2 2,581
- (100.0} 19 (94.5) 348

99 13.8 87 611 54
55,460 (14.1) 64,570 5.3) 68,205
7,957 54.4 5,154 318 3,911
1,788 (14.4) 2,088 53 1,982
14,808 49.2 9,987 15.4 8,852
40 212 33 574 21
1,000 24,9000 4 (99.8) 970
588 332 425 (36.8) 873
26,247 484 17,601 91 16,209
97,505 (3.3) 100,877 29 98,054
82,878 (4.0} 86,332 23 84,370
162 20.0 135 0.4) 149
84 151 73 (34.8) 112
83,124 B.9) 86,540 23 84,631
4307 @2.4) 4,210 241 3,392
1,687 {8.0} 1,834 104.7 896
1,048 636.6 142 (59.8) 353

= = = (100.0) 4

1 (99.5) 184 6,033.3 3

ags 1147 1,41 (©2.9) 2,809

61 (95.7} 192 1,206.5 108
2,000 9417 1,869 (89.2) 1,770
2,635 410 3,802 (23.8) 2,452
2449 (37.2} 593 112.5 1,836
14,381 03 14,337 8.8 13,423
97,505 (3.3} 100,877 29 98,054
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horizontal and vertical analyses

balance sheet
Vertical Analysis (Rs. in million) 2014 2013
Rs. % Rs. %
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capltal 13,183 11.8 12,228 111
Share Premium 2,261 2.0 11 -
Advance against issue of shares - - 2,119 18
Hedging reserve (40) - (148} 0.1}
Remeasurement of post employment benefits (14} - (21} -
Unappropriated Profit 19,088 171 10,880 g8
Employes share option compensetion reserve - - - -
34,478 30.9 25,069 22.8
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 38,001 32.4 52,896 481
Subordinated Loan from Holding Company - - 3,000 27
Derivative Financial Instruments 7 - 1,531 14
Defarred Liablites 5,227 4.7 4,655 42
Employee housing subsidy - - - -
Sarvice benefits obligations 113 0.1 104 0.1
41,438 37.2 82,186 58.8
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 24,472 22 18,012 184
Accrued interast / mark-up 1,362 1.2 1,480 13
Taxes payable 676 0.6 - -
Currert portion of
Bormowings 7,913 71 2,824 2.7
Retiremant and other service bensfits obligations 43 - 44 -
Short tenm bomowings - - - -
Dertvative financlal Instruments 1,080 1 213 0.2
35,556 318 22873 20.8
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 111,472 100 108,828 100.0
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 74,963 67.2 79,315 722
Intangible assets 118 0.1 138 DA
Long term Icans and advances 94 0.1 109 01
75,175 67.4 79,6562 724
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loosa tools 4,714 4.2 4,389 4.0
Stock-ntrade 1,101 1.0 1,382 1.3
Trade debts 757 0.7 758 0.7
Deferred employee compensation expense - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - 130 DA
Loans, advancaes, deposits and prepayments 432 0.4 628 0.6
Other receivables 28 - 28 -
Taxes recoverable - - 557 0.5
Short-term Investments 25,076 22.5 18,058 18.4
Cash and bank balances 4,188 3.8 4,458 4.1
36,207 az.6 30,366 276
TOTAL ASSETS 111,472 100 109,928 100.0
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2012 2011 2010

Rs. % Rs. % Rs. %
10,728 1.0 10,728 10.6 10,728 10.8
11 . 11 _ 1 =
(324) ©.8) {498) 0.5) (887) 0.8
5,383 = 8,317 8.2 3,729 3.8
2 5 58 o1 59 0.1
15,798 18.2 18,618 18.5 13,840 13.89
48,482 49,7 56,398 55.9 62,660 63.9
3,000 31 3,000 30 1,500 15
498 0.5 545 05 1,062 11
3,381 35 4,521 45 2,581 26
- 2 19 i 348 0.4

99 04 87 01 54 01
55,460 56.9 64,570 640 68,205 696
7,957 82 5,154 51 3,911 4.0
1,788 1.8 2,088 241 1,882 2.0
14,896 15.3 9,087 8.9 B,652 8.8

40 0.0 33 . 21 =
1,000 10 4 5 970 10
566 0.6 425 0.4 673 0.7
26,247 26.9 17,601 7.5 16,200 6.5
87,505 100.0 100,877 100.0 88,054 100
82,878 85.0 86,332 85.6 84,370 B86.0
182 02 135 01 149 0.2
84 0. 73 04 112 0.1
83,124 85.3 86,540 85.8 84,631 88.3
4,107 42 4,210 42 3,392 3.5
1,887 17 1,834 18 896 0.9
1,046 14 142 041 353 0.4

= = = - 4 =

1 - 184 0.2 3 -
395 0.4 1,411 14 2,609 2.7
&1 0.1 192 0.2 108 041
2,000 2.1 1,869 18 1,770 18
2,635 2.7 3,002 3.9 2,452 25
2,449 2.5 593 0.8 1,836 18
14,381 14.7 14,337 14.2 13,423 13.7
97,505 100.0 100,877 100.0 98,054 100
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horizontal and vertical analyses

profit and loss account

Horizontal Analysis (Rs. in million) 2014 14Ve. 13 2013 18Vs. 12

Rs. % Rs. %
Net Sales 61,425 225 50,128 63.7
Cost of Sales 38,822 386 28,008 34.8
Gross profit 22,803 2.2 22121 124.3
Seliing and distribution expenses 4,441 26.5 3,51 404
Adminlstrative expensesa 772 28.5 601 31
Other operating expenses 1318 53.6 858 1113
Other income 2,449 112.8 1,151 203.7
Cperating profit 18,521 1.2 18,302 152.6
Finance cost 6,625 {33.2) 9,918 {7.3)
Profit/ (loss) before taxation 11,895 419 8,384 3121
Taxation 3,887 27.7 2,887 383.8
Profit / (loss) after taxation 8,208 49.3 5,497 287.3
Vertical Analysis (Rs. in million) 2014 2013

Rs. % Rs. %
Net Sales 61,425 100 50,128 100.0
Cost of Sales 38,822 B63.20 28,008 55.9
Gross profit 22,603 36.80 22,121 441
Selling and distribution expenses 4,441 7.21 3,51 7.0
Administrative expenses 772 1.3 801 1.2
Other operating expenses 1318 241 858 17
Other incoms 2,448 4 1,151 2.3
Operating profit 18,521 30.2 18,302 38.5
Flnance cost B,625 10.8 9018 19.8
Profit/ (loss) before taxation 11,885 18.4 8,384 16.7
Taxation 3,687 6 2,887 5.8
Profit/ (loss) after taxation B,208 184 5,497 10.8
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2012 12 Vs. 11 2011 11Vs. 10 2010
Rs. % Rs. % Rs.
30,627 2.3) 31,353 64.9 19,018
20,786 420 14,620 448 10,109
9,861 @) 16,733 87.8 8,900
2,500 114 2,245 30.0 1727
583 8.2 548 @.2) 587
406 {30.2) 582 12.8 516
379 (87.4) 1,164 1541 458
6,751 (53.5) 14,521 1215 6,557
10,703 400 7,644 485.8 1,351
{3,952) (157.5) 8,877 321 5,208
{1,017 (144.4) 2,280 551 1,476
(2,935) (164.0) 4,588 23,0 3,730
2012 2011 2010
Rs. % Rs. % Rs. %
30,627 100.0 31,353 100.0 19,018 100
20,768 67.8 14,620 48,6 10,109 53.2
9,861 32.2 18,733 534 8,008 288
2,500 8.2 2,245 7.2 1,727 a1
583 1.9 549 18 567 3.0
406 13 582 18 516 2.7
379 1.2 1,164 3.7 458 24
8,751 22.0 14,521 462 6,567 344
10,703 34.9 7.644 24.4 1,351 71
3,952) 2.9 6,877 218 5,206 27.3
(1,017) (3.3) 2,289 7.3 1,478 7.8
{2,935) (©.6) 4,588 145 3,730 185
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summary

Rs. in million 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Summary of Balance Sheet

Share capital 13,183 12,228 10,728 10,728 10,728
Reserves 21,285 12,841 5,070 7,888 2,912
Shareholders’ funds / Equity 34,478 25,069 15,798 18,616 13,640
Long term bormowings 36,091 55,896 51,482 £9,398 64,1680
Capiltal employed 78,481 83,889 82,176 88,001 88,452
Deferred ligblitties 5,227 4,655 3,381 4,521 2,581

Property, plant & equipment 74,963 79,315 82,878 86,332 84,370
Long term asssis 75,178 79,563 B3,124 86,540 84,361

Current agssts 36,297 30,366 14,381 14,337 13,423
Surnmary of Profit and Loss

Sales 61,425 50,129 30,6286 31,353 18,017
Groas profit 22,603 22,121 9,861 16,733 8,810
Operating profit 18,521 18,302 6,762 14,521 6,556
Profit before tax 11,885 8,384 {3,8562) 6,877 5,207
Profit/loss) after tax 8,208 5,497 {2,935) 4,588 3,730
EBITDA 23,278 23,259 11,741 17,673 7,385
Summary of Cash Flows

Net cash flow from operating activities 19,083 24,813 8,371 9,279 4,359
Net cash flow from investing activities {22,604) (580) (1,857) B,517) {14,854)
Net cash flow from financing activitics (13,892) 5,821) {4,920) {4,589) 12,803
Changes in cash & cash equivelents (17,233) 18,432 {408) 1,173 2,609
Cash & cash equivalents — Year end 5,283 22,516 4,085 4,491 3,318
Summary of Actual Production

Urea 1,818,837 1,661,675 974,425 1,279,378 871,913
NPK 117,183 92,839 67,755 113,172 100,270
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financial ratios

Ratios 2014 2013 2012 2011
Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit ratio % 36.80 4413 32.20 53.37
Net Profit/loss) to Sales % 13.36 10.97 (8.58) 14.63
EBITDA Margin to Sales % 37.89 46.30 38.34 58.37
Retum on Equity % 27.57 28.80 {17.05) 28.45
Retum on Capital Employed % 22.81 22.04 913 14.02
Liquidity Ratics

Current ratlo Times 1.02 134 0.55 0.81
Quiick / Acid test ratio Times 0.86 1.09 0.32 0.47
Cagh to Current Liabilities Times 012 0.20 0.08 0.03
Cash flow from Operatlons to Sales Times 0.31 0.49 0.21 0.30
Activity / Tumover Ratios

No. of Days Inverttory Days 12 20 31 34
Inventory tumover Times 31.28 18.25 11.78 10.70
Total Assets tumover ratio % 55.1 46 31 31
Fixed Asssts tumover ratio % 81.8 63 37 36
Investment / Market Ratios

Eamings per Share (Restated) Rs./ share 6.29 4.66 (2.59) 4.05
Eamings per Share (Historical) Rs./ share 8.29 4.66 2.74) 4.28
Breakup valus per share Rs./ share 2615 18.32* 14.73 17.35
Capital Structure Ratios

Debt to Equity ratio % 56 70 81 79
Interest Cover ratio Times 2.80 1.84 0.63 1.80

* Calcuated on the basis of revised paid up share capital including 75 million shares issued through IPC.

2010

48.85
18.61
38.73
27.34

5.88

0.83
0.58
D11
0.23

32
11.28
19
23

3.29
3.48
12.7
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snapshots

Sales Revenue year-wise (s. in million) EBITDA and Principal Debt Repayments (Rs. in millian)
W EBITDA W Principal Debt Repayments

70,000 ~ 25,000
60,000 —
20,000
50,000 —
400001 15,000 -
30,000 ~ 10,000 -
20,000 —
5,000
10,000 —
[
Eamings/Loss Per Share Gross Profit and Net Profit @s. In milion)

¥ NetProfit W CrossProfit -—#- Gross Profit Ratio -~ Net Profit Ratio

25,000 - - 80%
7.00
20,000
6.00 -
5.00 - 15,000
400 |-
2,00 10,000
2,00
5,000
1.00
Y T T T T 1 0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
.00 -
200 5.000-  am10 2011 2012 2013 2014
a00l - 20%
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Revenue Analysis (Rs. in million) Capital Structure

B Costofsales ™ Seling & Distibution expenses Debit

B Adminisiretive expensss B Other operating " W Ecy
B Fihancecost M Taxation ™ NetProfit/ (loss)

70,000 - 100%

80%
§0,000
80%

50,000 70%

60%
40,000

50%

30,000 40%

20,000 o
20%

10,000 10%

200 2011 202 2013 2014

Production and Sales Volumes K Tons) Liquidity Analysis (s. in milion)
B CurentAsseiz ® Curent Liabiljes
B ProductionVolume ® SalesVolume B Markst Share -~ CurentRatio -¢- QuickRatio
2,000 - -140% 40,000 - 15

359 35,000
30% 30,000 -
25% 25,000 -
20% 20,000
15% 15,000
S00

10% 10,000

5% 5,000
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Cash Flow Analysis [Rs. in milior)
B Net cash flow from opereting acthvities ¥ Net cash usad In Investing activitios
= Netcash flowfrom financing acthvitles ® Cesh & cash equivalent —yearend
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
V]
(5.000)
(10,000)
(15,000)

{20,000)

(25,000)

Variance Analysis (Rs. in million)

54987 481 ] {171} 1288 {46 3,283 {500 8,208
10,000 —

gl N |}
8,000 — -
7,000 —

8,000 — — -

=g ™

5,000 — —

4,000 —
8,000 —
2,000 —
1,000 —

0 I I I I I , I ,

PAT Gross Balingd  Adminisiraiiva Cther Other Anence Teccation PAT
2013 Profit Distribution Expenses Income Operating Cost 2014
Expenses
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statement of value addition

and distribution

(Rupess in Milion)
Wealth Generated
Total revenue inclusive of salestax and otherincome

Bought-in-materials and services

Waalth Distributed

To Government taxes, duties and development surcharge

To employees salaries, benefits and other costs

To Praviders of Capltal

To seciety towards education, health, environment and natural disaster

Retalned for relnvesiment, depreclation and amortisation

5.3% 0.1%

PKR. 56,567 0.1%
60%

Wealth Distributed

2014 21.5%

¥ To Society B To Providers of Debt Capital
H To Govemment B ToEmployees

M Retained for reinvestment,
depreciation and amortisation

2014 2013
74,497 59,8685
{17,930) (13,589)
56,567 46,076
33,929 23172

3,011 2,514
6,625 9,918
40 17
12,960 10,454
56,567 46,076

PKR. 46,076

Wealth Distributed

2013

5.5%

50.2%
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key shareholding and shares traded

Information of sharshokding required under reporting framework Is as follows:
Sharehokler's Catergory
1. Associated Companies, underiakings & related parties
Engro Corporation Limlted
2. Directors, CEO & their spouses & minor children

Muhammed Aliuddin Ansari
Ruhail Mohammesd

Javed Akbar

Abdul Samad Dawood
Shabbir Haghmi

Naz Khan

Shahid Hamid Pracha
Khalid Sirgj Subhari

Total,

3 Exscutives
(Approximatsly)

4, Public Sactor Companias & Corporations

5. Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non-Banking Financs Institutions, Insurance
Companides, Takaiul, Modaraba and Penslon Funds

6. Mutual Funds

ASIAN STOCKS FUNDS LTD.

CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND

CDGC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE APFEQUITY SUB FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ASKARI ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC -TRUSTEE ASKARI EQUITY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE CROSBY DRAGON FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND

CDC -TRUSTEE IGI STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE KASB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND

GG - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
CDC -TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND-|
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND- I
CDG - TRUSTEE NAFA MULTI ASSET FUND

CDC -TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST
CDGC -TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE PAK STRATEGIC ALLOC. FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND

CDG - TRUSTEE PAKISTAN SARMAYA MEHFOOZ FUND
CDC -TRUSTEE PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC STOCKFUND

CDGTRUSTEE NAFA ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

TRI. STAR MUTUAL FUND LTD.

Total.
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1141,673,048

20,001
102,845
26,524
6,832
14,555

1

i
236,572
407,231

1,705,475

3,779,064

22,277,902

q
44,000
714,500
513,390
40,000
100,000
60,000
215,000
63,000
73,000
40,000
1,216,000
61,000
927,500
299,000
400,000
315,000
447,031
855,000
325,827
773,614
2,080
206,810
100,000
3,460,350
150,000
568,180
o1

12,068,314



7. Sharsholders Holding five percant or more Vioting Rights In the Gompany:

Engro Corporation Limited

8. Details of purchase/sale of shares by Directors, Executives and their spouses/minor children during 2014

o

DB NDOMALDN S

SHRBRISBBNBRRERABVINBARBNRS

Syed Khalid Siraj Subhani
Ruhall Mohammmed
Imran Husain

Tasneam Kauser {spouss Syed Riaz Hussain Shah)

Malk Mohammead Nawaz
Fahim

Samear Amin
Muhamemd Alkdar Kaimkhani
Shahwad A, Faridy
Yasmine Rashid

Nusreh Asad

Syad Muhammad Raza
Bld Aziz

Muzaffar Ali Khan
Mohamimad Athar

Ali Javed Akhter
Mohammed Ateeq-uHHassan
Abdul Hafesz

Sameer Amin

Aftab Ali

Qamar Jaleel

Asra

Muhamamd Akbar Kaimkhani
All Akbar

Syed Ahmed Hasan
Anwar Hussaln Ansan
Kashif Farooq

Abdul Sattar

Mohammad Athar

Abdul Khalique

Shoukat Ali

Shahid Reshid

Fahd Khawaja

Tasnesm Ahmed

Wagas Sesed

Farhan Ansari

Asad Alesm

Mehmood Nezir

ABDUL SATTAR

MUHAMAMD AKBAR KAIMKHANI

FARHAN ANSARI

MUHAMMAD AKBAR KAIMKHANI

Asghar All Khan
NeorDin Burero
Muhammad Malld Ladif

Muhammed Wahaj Butt/Komeal Wahej Butt

7-Jar-14
7~Jarv14
7-Jan-14
20-Jar-14
30-Jan-14
a4
28-Jan-14
10Feb-14
10Feb-14
10+Feb-14
11Feb-14
10Feb-14
11Feb-14
12Feb-14
14+Fab-14
14-Feb-14
14+Feb-14
14-Feb-14
11Feb-14
14+Feb-14
14-Feb-14
17-4eb-14
17Feb-14
8Feb-14
14-Feb-14
17Feb-14
14+eb-14
14+ab-14
18Feb-14
18Feb-14
18Fab-14
18Feb-14
20Feb-14
18Fab-14
21+Feb-14
21-+Feb14
21Fab-14
21+Feb-14
25Feb-14
25Feb-14
24-Fcb-14
27Feb-14
27Feb-14
28Feb-14
28Feb-14
28-Feb-14

Bought
Bought
Bought
Bought
Sold
Bought
Sold
Bought
Soki
Bought
Bought
Sald
Sold
Sold
Sald
Bought

Bougrt
Sold

Sold
Sold
Bought
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Bought
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Bought
Sold
Soki
Sold
Sold
Bought
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold

150,000
100,000
150,000
10,000
12,000
12,000
11,500
10,000
3,000
5,000
11,500
21,500
3,000
1,000
5,000
1,000
4,000
7,000
38,500
4,000
9,240
10,500
20,000
500
40,000
10,000
5,000
15,000
55,000
13,000
6,000
40,000
7,000
4,000
10,000
20,000
9,000
5,000
10,000
2,500
5,000
7,000
34,271
8,000
20,000
40,000

1,141,673,048

28.26
28.26
455
47

47
445
49,73
50.3
48.7
50.24
515
515
54.03
58.61
58.86
5815
586
51.74
55
58.85
54.57
54.71
47
58.99
55.16
58,75
58.5
53.75
52.5
53.51
53.13

56.85
55.5
55.12
80.5
50.24
594

50.45
80.3
60.22
60.5

Annual Report 2014 | 51



BENB G RRR RS BE YRR AR ABIE N FINISBEIGRRAR2ABBEIBELBRIEESEN

Bilal Aziz

Ahgan Jawed

Noor Din Burero

Umed Ali Malizh
Muhammad Ashraf Choudhry
Muhammad Ashraf Choudhry
Farhan Ansari

wasesm Anwar

Fahd Khawgja

wasesm Arwar
Mohammead AtesecruHHassan
Mohammad Mumtaz Akhtar
Waqas Sased

Tajammul Hussain
Muharmmad Siddique
Anwar H. Ansarl

Asad Aleem

Masood A. Jafry

Hamid Anjum

Hamid Anjum

BILAL AZIZ

Hamnid Anjum

Zehra Mujahid

Rehan Sajad

Farooq Muhamimad Saleem
ABDUL SATTAR
Zehramujahld

Zehra mujahid

Ahmad Shakoor

Khald Hussaln Bhutto
Abdul Khalq Bhutto
Argalan urBub

Rafig Ahmed Saher

Harnid Anjum

Khawar Abbas Khan
Muhammad Asad Weheed
Wajd Hussain Jurejo
Muhammad Asad Waheed
Muhammed Tariq Sutten
Adedl Qamar

Mokz All

Zohaib Shaikh
Muhammad Adnan Tarky
Fehd Khawsija

Fahd Khawaja

Fahd Khawala

Bilal Mustefa

M Mushfiq Hussain
Muhammad Nauman
Muhammed Neurnan
Hassan ljgz Sased

Hessan ljaz Sased

Obaid Fahad Aziz

26+reb-14
HMar-14
HMar14
3Mar14
26Feb-14
HMar14
28Feb-14
28Feb-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
d-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
26-Feb-14
a4-Mar14
FHar-14
4-Mar-14
FMay-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
26Feb-14
4-Mar-14
5Mar14
4-Mar-14
6-Mar-14
5Mar-14
3Mar14
IMar-14
5Mar-14
IMar14
4-Mar14
17Feb-14
IMar-14
B-Mar14
4-Mar-14
3Mear-14
4-Mar-14
4-Mar-14
SMar-14
21Feb-14
12-Mar-14
12-Mar-14
12-Mar-14
12-Mar-14
12-Mar-14
10Feb-14
12-Mar-14
26+Feb-14
12-Mar-14
10-Mar-14

de
Sald
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sald
Sold
Sold
Sald
Sald
Sold

Sold
Sold
Sold

Sald
Sold
Sold
Sald
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold

Sald
Sold
Sald

Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold

Sold
Sold
Sald
Sold
Sold
Sald
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sold
Sald
Sold
Sold

Sold
Sald
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2.000
8,000
30,000
9,000
9,000
5,000
5,000
15,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
10,000
20,000
20,000
6,000
10,000
5,000
10,000
500
19,000
5,000
15,000
32,000
40,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
40,000
28,000
18,000
252,000
40,000
20,000
24,000
30,000
25,000
50,000
10,000
20,000
500
45,000
5,000
10,000
5,000
5,000
20,000
20,000
8,000
4,000
6,000
8,000
20,000

59
58.556
59.8
60.51
583
80.7
60.7
56
55.71
55.2
54.95
56
60
54.8
56.08
55.38
56.66
54.8
55.75
54.85
55.8
56.05
60.26
56.4
568.4
56.05
56.3
56.5
58.1
57.58

57.95
55.45
54.07

58.1
57.14

54.6
5813
56.23

55.5
56.51

57
58.5

58.35
58.33

58.7
61
50.5
56.81
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115
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125.
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127.
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129.
130.
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134.
135.
138,
137.
138.
139,
140.
141.
142.
143,
144.
145.
146,
147,
148.
149.
150.
151,
152.

Obaid Fahad Aziz

Syed Muhammad Raza
Umar farooq

Masood anwar

Usman Aziz Khan

Usman Aziz Khen

Usman Aziz Khan

Awals Mushtaq Paracha
Ali Murtaza Baloch
Khuram Ahbas Zaidi
Khuram Abbas Zald
Khuram Abbas Zaidi
Khuram Abbas Zald
Khuram Abbas Zaidi
Khuram Abbas Zaidi
JALALUDDIN AKBER
JALALUDDIN AKBER
JALAL UDDIN AKBER
JALALUDDIN AKBER
JALAL UDDIN AKBER
Nisar Ahmed Channa
Mirza Mumtaz Balg
JAL AL UDDIN AKBER
Targ Nawaz

Tarig Newez

Tarig Nawaz

Targ Nawaz
Mohemmed Bux Scomro
Muhammad Asif Ali
Muhammad Astf All
Sadaf Asif

Muhammad Ovals Majesd Jummani
Ammar Mursain

Zamir Hussain

Mirza Murmtaz Balg

Mirza Mumtaz Baig
MUZAFFAR ALl KHAN
Syed Noman Khaleseq
Zafar Altaf

Muhammad lsmail
Hassan llaz Sased

Naz Khan

Shahid Hamkd Pracha
Mohemmead Bux Soomno
Muhammad Idress

Fahd Khawala

Syed Muhammed Aimel
Syed Muhammad Ajmal
Hamid Anjum

Usman Mahmood Khan
MUHAMAMD AKBAR KAIMKHANI
MUHAMMAD AKBAR KAIMKHANI
Farooq Muhermmad Saleem

3Mar14
14-Mar-14
27Fab-14
27+sb-14
21-Mar-14
21-Mar-14
3Mar14
4-Mer-14
6-Mar-14
20-Jan14
21-Jarr14
4+Feb-14
6Feb-14
6Feb-14
12-Mar14
11-Mar-14
12-Mar-14
13-Mar-14
21-Mar-14
27-Mar-14
1-Apr-14
1-Apr-14
7-Apr-14
6-Mar-14
11-Mer-14
11-Mari4
4-Apr-14
11-Apr-14
14-Apr-14
15Apr-14
14-Apr-14
25Feb-14
15Apr-14
4-Apr14
BApr-14
11-Apr-14
15Apr-14
6-Mar-14
11-Apr-14
21-Apr-14
254pr-14
-May-14
30-May-14
30-Mey-14
30-ur-14
1-uH4
2- 14
10-Jur-14
5Aug-14
7-Aug-14
18-Aug-14
20Aug-14
20-Aug-14

20,000
18,500
18,000
8,000
14,000
500
40,000
32,000
40,000
150,000
100,000
29,500
12,000
8,500
50,000
40,000
20,000
50,000
20,000
55,000
50,000
4,000
20,000
1,000
500
500
2,000
2,000
10,000
10,000
500
8,000
450
20,000
1,000
2,000
7.000
4,000
3,000
10,000
4,000
5,300
1,825
1,000
10,000
72,000

412
3,500
100,000
17,500
10,000
215

56.8
584
59.8
89.77
57.08
58.96
80.35
56.45
54.75
35
34
471
4748
475
584

54.85
861
59.2

59.88

61.58

62.05

61.32

&7
57.55
5751
6125

66.65
69.5

73.45
89.5

72
61.2585
64.25
66.65
72.0021
54.5672

70.47
7025
84.80
838
63.8
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574
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83.74
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161.

167.

183.
154,
185.
186.

168.
168,
160.

162,
183,
184.
165.
168,

168.
169
170.

Muhammed Munawar Ahmed Shahid
Al Javed Akhiter

Abdu Samad Dawood
M.MUNAWAR AHMED SHAHID
Muhammad Asad Waheed
Khurshid Muhammead
Mohammad Asif Sultan Tajik
FARHAN ANSARI

SAIFULLAH

Salman Gora

Mazher lgbel Qureshl

Ghulem Qedir

Mohammad Ali

SHAFIG UR REHMAN

All Raza Arif

Arsalan ur Bub

Khald Hussein Bhutto
Muharnmad Asif Al

DATE SALE/PURCHASE| NO OF SHARES

28-Aug-14
2-5ep-14
15-Sep-14
23-Sep-14
30ct14
2-0ct-14
B-Now-14
11-Now-14
12-Now14
10-Now-14
18Now14
19-Now14
8-Aug-14
4Dec-14
11-Dec-14
16Dec-14
18Dec-14
31-Dec-14

Bought
Sold

Sold

70,000
1,000
30,000
25,000
21,000
3,600
125,000
17,000
7,000
3,500
332
7,500
12,000
38
5,000
449
10,000
500

RATE /

PER SHARE

54

53.01

54.42

538

56.26

556.35

81

62.08

62

60.64

65.01

6864

53.6

68

B7.17

66.1

86.02

78.18
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shareholder information

Annual General Meeting
The annual sharsholders mesting will be held at 10:30 a.m. on
April 29, 2015 at Pear-Continental Hotel, Club Road, Karachi.

Shaeholders as of Apri 15, 2015 areencouraged to perticipate and vobe.

Any sharsholdsr may appoint a proxy to vote on his ar her
behalf. Proxies should be filed with the company at least 48
hours befare the meeting time.

CDC Sharegholders or thelr Proxles are requested to bring
with them copias of their Computerized National |dentity
Card or passport alongwith the Participant’s ID number and
their account number at the time of attending the Annual
General Meeting in order to facilitate their identification.

Ownership
On December 31, 2014 there were 29,068 shareholders on
racord of the Company’s ordinary shares.

Dividend Payment

The proposal of the board of directors for dividend payment will
be considered at the annual general mesting. Provided the
propasal is approved, the dividend warrants will be sent soon
thereafter to persons listed in the register of members on April
15, 2015. Income Tax will be deducted In accordance with the
current regulations. Shareholders wha wish to have the
dividends depostted directly In thelr bank accourt should
contact our Registrars, M/s. FAMCO Associates (Private) Ltd.

Transmission of Annual Reports through E-Mail
The SECP has allowsd the circuletion of annual reparts to the
members of the Company through emall. Thexrefors, going
forward all members of the Company who want to receive a
soft copy of the Annual Report are requested to send their
email addreases on the consent form to the Company’s Shara
Registrar. The Company shall, however additionally also
provide hard coples of the Annual Reportto such members, on
requast, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such
request. The standard consent form for electronic transmission
is available at the Company’s website
www.engrofertilizers.com.

Altermatively, members can il up the Bectronic trensmission consent
Form given Inthe Annesure Section at the end of this report.

Holding of General Meetings through Video
Conference Facility

Members can also avail video conference facility in Lahore and
Islamabad. If the Company receives consent at least 10 days prior
to date of mesating, from members holding in aggregate 10% or
more shareholding and residing at either Lahore and/or Islamabad
to participate in the mesting through video conference, the
compeany mdy amange video conference facility in that city.

In this regard please fill up the Request for Video Gonferencing
Facility Form given in the Annexure Section at the end of this
report and submit it o registered address of the Company 10
days bsfors halding of the annual general mesting.

E-Dividend Mandate (Optional)

In pursuance of the directions given by the Securities and
Exchange Commigglon of Pakistan vide Clrcular No. 18 of 2012
dated June 5, 2012, we heraby give you the opportunity to
authorise the Company to directly credit in your bank account the
cash dividend declared by the Company now and in the future.

Please nota that this E-dvidend mandiatie ks optional and not compuisory,
incase you do notwish your dividena to be directly credited info your bank
account then the same shal be pald toyou directly.

Incese youwish that the cash dividend dedared by the Company is
diractly credited to your bank account instead ofissue of dividend
warrants to you, then pleass provide the information mentioned on the
Form placed onthe Company’s website www.engrofortiizers.oom
and send the same to your brokers or the Cantral Depository
Company Lid. (n case the shares are held on the COC)orto our
Registrars, FAMCO Associates {Pvt.) Ltd,, at their address mentiored
below [ case the shares are held in paper certificete form).

Quarterly Results
The Company Issues quarterly financlal statements. The planned
dates for releass of the quarterty results in 2015 are:

1stquarter:  April 24, 2015
2nd quarter:  August 10, 2015
3rd quarter:  October 26, 2015

The Comparty hokds quarterty briefings with Security Analysts to
discuss the resuits and the buginess envirchment. Thess seasions
are planned to be held on:

1stquarter: Apil 27, 2015
2nd quarter:  August 11, 2016
3rd quarter:  October 27, 2015

All annual/auarterty reports and presentations from quarterty
brisfings are regularly posted at the Company's websita:
wwwiengro.com and www.engrofertilzers.com

The Compary reserves the right to change any of the above dates.

Change of Address
All reglistered shareholders should send Information on changes
of address to:

M/s. FAMCO Associates (Private) Limited
8F, Next to Hotel Faran Nursery,
Block-6 PE.C.H.S. Shahra-o-Falsa Karacht-74000
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pattem of shareholding

As at December 31, 2014

No. of Sharehoiders S vodod Total Shares Held
4,806 i 100 150,004
14,435 101 500 8,562,785
4,754 501 1,000 4,393,897
3,426 1,001 5,000 8,192,904
660 5,001 10,000 5,160,326
229 10,001 15,000 2,873,332
141 15,001 20,000 2,657,575
) 20,001 25,000 2,307,932
78 25001 30,000 2,155,080
45 30,001 35,000 1,490,416
40 35,001 40,000 1,528,319
27 40,001 45,000 1,148,562
45 45,001 50,000 2222153
2 50,001 55,000 1176,704
20 55,001 80,000 1159,529

8 60,001 65,000 564,197
14 65,001 70,000 954,664
1 70,001 75,000 800,390
6 75,001 80,000 476,950
5 80,001 85,000 415,250
2 85,001 90,000 180,000
3 90,001 95,000 284,500
28 95,001 100,000 2,702,548
5 100,001 105,000 508,540
6 105,001 110,000 650,305
2 115,001 120,000 232,000
2 120,001 125,000 250,000
2 125,001 130,000 256,000
8 130,001 135,000 1,083,183
i 135,001 140,000 139,500
2 140,001 145,000 281,313
1 145,001 150,000 1,646,400
1 150,001 165,000 150,500
2 165,001 160,000 630,050
1 160,001 165,000 161,628
1 165,001 170,000 167187
i 170,001 175,000 171,000
1 175,001 180,000 176,000
2 180,001 185,000 370,000
2 185,001 180,000 378,500
2 195,001 200,000 705,404
1 200,001 205,000 200,812
3 205,001 210,000 620,335
1 210,001 215,000 215,000
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pattem of shareholding

As at December 31, 2014

No. of Sharsholders Total Shares Held
4 220,001 225,000 883,574
2 235,001 240,000 475,580
2 245,001 250,000 496,830
1 270,001 275,000 275,000
i 275,001 280,000 280,000
2 290,001 295,000 585,280
4 205,001 300,000 1,188,500
i 300,001 305,000 301,500
2 310,001 315,000 625,141
i 315,001 320,000 315,750
2 320,001 325,000 844,072
i 325,001 330,000 325,827
1 330,001 335,000 334,000
3 335,001 340,000 1,010,006
2 355,001 360,000 717,500
1 365,001 370,000 369,010
i 375,001 380,000 380,000
1 305,001 400,000 400,000
i 400,001 405,000 402,382
1 420,001 425,000 424,800
i 440,001 445,000 442,766
2 445,001 450,000 897,031
i 480,001 485,000 484,168
1 485,001 490,000 488,773
2 510,001 515,000 1,026,300
i 515,001 520,000 515,500
1 525,001 530,000 528,000
i 535,001 540,000 540,000
1 585,001 570,000 586,150
i 580,001 585,000 584,700
1 845,001 850,000 848,852
i 660,001 665,000 665,000
1 670,001 875,000 670,789
i 685,001 700,000 700,000
i 710,001 715,000 714,500
1 735,001 740,000 736,028
2 745,001 750,000 1,500,000
1 770,001 775,000 773,614
i 795,001 800,000 795,940
1 805,001 810,000 BOB,500
i 825,001 830,000 828,221
1 830,001 835,000 832,785
i 850,001 855,000 850,500
1 885,001 890,000 887,783

Annual Report 2014 | 57



pattern of shareholding

As at December 31, 2014

No. of Sharehoiders ooy Total Shares Held

1 910,001 915,000 914,001

1 925,001 930,000 927,500

i 950,001 955,000 955,000

1 975,001 980,000 980,000

i 1,085,001 1,040,000 1,037,553
i 1,095,001 1100,000 1,098,356
1 1,115,001 1,120,000 1,118,485

1 1,155,001 1160,000 1157105

1 1,185,001 1,170,000 1,168,018

1 1,215,001 1,220,000 1,216,000
1 1,275,001 1,280,000 1,275,079
i 1,555,001 1,560,000 1,567,667
1 1,735,001 1,740,000 1,735,070
; 1,095,001 2,000,000 2,000,000
1 2,180,001 2,165,000 2,163,500
i 2,275,001 2,280,000 2,275,006
3 2,340,001 2,345,000 2,341,020
1 2,495,001 2,500,000 2,489,990
i 2,620,001 2,625,000 2,623,000
1 2,840,001 2,845,000 2,843,491

3 2,995,001 3,000,000 9,000,000
1 3,010,001 3,015,000 3,010,482
1 3,045,001 3,050,000 3,046,332
1 3,255,001 3,260,000 3,260,000
1 3,460,001 3,465,000 3,460,350
i 4,230,001 4,235,000 4,232,330
i 4,560,001 4,565,000 4,561,500
i 8,890,001 8,895,000 8,893,050
1 8,375,001 9,380,000 8,378,500
i 9,595,001 9,600,000 9,509,099
i 246,870,001 246,875,000 248,873,049
1 894,795,001 804,800,000 894,800,000

29,068 TOTAL: 1,318,341,667
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category of shareholding

Az at December 31, 2014 is as follows:

No. of No. of

Sharaholders Category Shareholders Shares Percentage
Diractors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children. 15 407,231 0.03
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties. 2 1,141,673,048 86.60
NIT &ICP - - -
Banks Development FAnandial Institutions, Non Banking Fnancial institutions. 30 16,834,362 144
Insurance Companies 13 4,044,929 0.31
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 30 12,068,360 0.82
Share holders holding 10% 2 1,141,873,048 86.60
General Public {individuals)

a. Local 28,679 86,203,031 8.54

b. Forelgn - - -
Others 299 55,010,705 417

Qutlook

Global urea demand in 2015 is expected to remain steady to
moderately higher, while supply is expected to trend higher,
with new capacity coming on stream In Algeria and Egypt.
Global urea pricss are expected to remain stable in 1H 2015
and could dip somawhat in 2H 2015 as supply additions
ramp up. While urea prices have so far not mimored the
downtrend of intemational oil prices, continued sofiness of
the latter could pose a risk to intemational urea prices.
Significant gap between pricss of locally produced and
Imported urea Is expected to continug In 2015.

Domestic farmers were on the whole worsa off in 2014,
primarily due to a steep decline in profitability on rice and
cotton crops. It is estimated that farm eamings in cotton
declined by 23% from the previous year on account of soft
prices. At the same time, farm income from rice were
saverely dented by an estimated 75% YoY on account of
lower mill buying which exacerbated the impact of weak
global paddy prices. Resultart decline in 2014 urea offtaks is
evident and 2015 Is unllkely to witness a strong demand
recovery. That said local urea demand for 2015 is not
expected to slip below 2014 levels, supported by expected
improvement in wheat crop and support price. Gas
curtailment issues are likely to continue in 2015; hence the
fertilizer industry will continue to face challenges due to

TPl

Javed Akbar
Director

intermittent supply. Given the above limitation on domestic
production, local urea producers should be able to replicate
2014 performance and sell all they produce while Imports by
the government will be needed to meet the gap betwesn
local production and demand.

The Comparty will look to maximize production in 2015
subiject to gas availability. In December 2014, the ECC
approved the continuation of temporary allocation of 80
MMSCFD additional gas to Engro Fertllizers Ltd. In respect
of Engro installing gas compressors for Guddu Power Plant
(GENCO lI) at its own cost. It is understood that as a result of
the above agreement, 60 MMSCFD gas will continue to be
avallabls to the company till December 2015.

The company is pursuing the implementation of ECC’s
approval, communicated in January 2014, for provision of
Mari gas to the Company at the concessionary rate in order
to discharge the Govemment's contractual obligations.
Implrementation of hte declslon Is expected shortly.

Further, the Company Is also evaluating potential
opportunities to expand and realign its agri based business
with a key focus to provide complete solutions to farmers for
agricultural inputs.

g 1

Fuhail Moharmmed
Cheif Exacutive Officer
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awards and achievements

AR Wk

British Safety Council

Third Party Audit conducted
and 4 Star rating achieved
at the Daharki plant

%
®e

S

WWF

Engro Fertilizers was awarded
best coordinator for Green
Office by WWF Finland




T

In 2014, Over 9,600 patients were
vaccinated at the free Snake-bite
treatment facility funded by
Engro Fertilizers

In 2014, Engro Fertilizer’s
education program included 22
schools serving 2500+ students







our winning formula — our brands

At Engro Fertilizers, when we talk about our undying
commitment to deliver the highest standards of quality,
our focus goes well beyond how our brands will fare
amongst our target audience to how they will impact
customer lives by enriching their yield, and this is precisely
why we strive to combine innovation & quality with
customer needs and expectations.

Engro Urea

Engrois the first company to have setup urea production facility in Pakistan,
a landmark event in agricultural sector of the country. This together with the
fact that urea is the most widely used fertilizer in the country, gives Engro
Urea a special standing in the domestic fertiizer market. Engro Fertilizers
Limited started annual production of 173,000 tons In 1968. Through various
debotiienecking and expansion steps, the capacity has beenincreased to
975,000 tons per year. Inthe year 2011 the Comparty setup workd's largest
single frain urea plant of 1,300,000 ton capacity. In the year 2014 the
production share for urea stood at 32%.
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Engro NP

NP formulations that contaln Nitrogen and Phosphorus In almost equal
quantity have been sspecially important to Pakistani farmers, given the
peculiar deficiency of both components in most of the Pakistani soils. This
category serves the needs of a particular niche of farming community in
the country; where application of nitrogen and phosphorus is required in
almost equal propertions. Due to higher *N' content a few farmers also
use ENP for top dressing. Engro started producing NP in 2005 and has
been extensively marksting the product whilst especially anjoying a high
market share in lower Sindh.

Engro NP is available in 50Kg bags.

Engroc DAP

For a healthy growth the plant requires three major nutrients namsly
Nitrogen, Phosphorus and Potassium. Di-Ammonium Phosphate (DAP),
which contains 46% Phosphorus, is the most widely used source of
Phosphorus for the plant. DAP strengthens the roots of the plant and
Improves nutdent uptake. DAP was Imported In Pakistan by the fertliizer
import department urtil 1924 and since then the private sector has been
responsible for all imports.

Engro Fertilizers has besen importing and marketing DAP in the country
since 1996. Engro Fertilizers is the most trusted and one of the largest
Importer of DAP In the country. Engro DAP Is a product that malntalns
a high quality standard and is monitored through stringent quality
checks. Engro DAP has high water solubility and characteristic pH
which ensures optimal soil distribution. Engro DAP is marketed in
50kg bags. It is imported by Engro EXIMP and marketed by Engro
Fertlizers Limited as a selling agent.
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Engro Zarkhez

Plants requlre three major nutrients (.e. Nitrogen, Phosphorus and
Potassium) for quality & higher yield. Zarkhez, introducad in 2002, is the only
branded fertilizer in Pakistan which contains all three nutrients. Presanca of all
the macro nuirients results in synergistic plant nutrient uptake. The resultant
vield is of high quality; sucrose content of sugar cane increases, quality and
slze of potato Improves, frult and vegetables appear and taste better, Zarkhez
is a high quality fertilizer comtaining comect proportions of the three nuiriernts in
each of its granule thus meking the fertilizer application very corvenient for the
farmer. In addition to conveniencs, it also helps ensure uniform and balanced
nutrient application.

Zarkhez Is currently avallable In three different grades of S50Kg bags with
nutrisnt proportions suitable for sugear cane, fruit orchards, vegetablaes,
potato and tobacco. The grades ars popular among progressive farmers
due to it conveniencs, high crush strength, appropriate granule size and
free flowing nature.

Zingro

Zinc is a micronutrient, it is a nutrient which the crop requires in small
dosages and it compliments functions of major nutrients. Over the years
zinc deficiency has been well established on a variety of crops and inrice
specifically. Zingro brings to the markest the trust of Engro and high
quality standard which has made It distinct from all the competition. It Is
the markst leader in a highly fragmented industry. Zingro acts as a tonic
and gives quick responsa and & better yisld. Zingro contains 33%
Granular Zinc Sulphate Monochydrate and is 99.98% water soluble.
Zingro has evoived to become the leading brand in the micronutrient
category and is accredited to converting the image of the categoryto a
highty acceptable one. ZIngro has won the prestiglous "Brand of the
Year” award for 2008 in the micronutrient category.

Zingro is imported by Engro EXIMP and marketed by Engro Fertilizers
Limited as a selling agent.




Engro Envy

All plants requlre three major nutrents (.e. Nitrogen, Phosphorus and
Potassium) for healthy growth, good appearance and better yield in terms
of both, fruit and flowers. It contains Nitrogen, Phosphorus and Potassium
in an aqual percentage of 14:14:14 and is a 1kg packet. Furthermore it
contains the added advantage of 7% sulphur which helps plantg in protein
synthesls which contributes to the quallty of the vegetables or frult
produced by the plant. Engro Envy is therefore a premium fertilizer that
covers all your plants' nutritional needs. The granular nature of Ervy makes
it convenient for usage. In addition to conveniencs, it also helps snsure
uniform and balanced nutrient application.

Engro Envy Is a product desligned for urban markets. It s ideal for gardens,
leramis, flower beds, fruit plarts and omamental plarts. Engro Ervy has recently
been launched only in Karachi but scon it is being planned to expand its
distribution to include other urban markets like Lahore and Istamabad.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS







review report to the members on
statement of compliance with the code of
corporate governance

We hava reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the bast practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governancs {the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Engro Fertilzers Limited (the Campany) for the year erdled
Dacember 31, 2014 to comply with the Code contained in Regulation No. 5.18 of the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited
Regulations and Regulation No. 35 of Chapter Xl contalned In the Listing Regulations of Lahare and lslemabad Stock
Exchanges, where the company is isted.

The respansibilty for compliance with the Code s that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibiity is to review, to the extent whers
such complance can ba objectively vertiiad, whather the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisiona
of the Code and report if it doss not and to highlight any noncompliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of
the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As apart of our audt of the financlal statemernts we are required to obtaln an understanding of the accounting and Intema control systerms sufficient to planthe
audit and develop an sffective audit approacty, W ams not required to consider whether the Board of Directors” statsment on intemal control covers all risks and
controls, or to form an oplnion on the effectiveness of such Intemal contrals, the Company’s carporate govemance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Compary to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of
Directors for their review and approval its related party transections distinguishing betwoen transactions camed out on terms eguivalent to thoss that
preval in amm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using suich
alternate pricing mechanism, We are cnly required and have ensured campliance of this requireiment to the extent of approval of related pearty
transactions by the Board of Dirsctors upon recommendation of the Audit Committes. We have not carried out any procedures to determine
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at am's lsngth price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our ettention which causes us to belleve that the Staterment of Compllance does not apprepriately reflect the
Company's complancs, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Cade as applicable to the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

"
vl :ﬁ ol i
J
l/

Chartered Accountants
Karachl
Date: 03 March 2015

Engagement Parmer: Mohammad Zulfikar Akhtar
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auditors’ report to the members

W have audited the annexed balanca sheet of Engre Fertilizers Limited as at December 31, 2014 and the related profit and loss account, staterment of
comprehengive Income, statement of changes in aquity and statement of cash ficws together with the notes forming part theracf, for the year then
ended and we state that we havs obtained all the information and explanations which, to the bast of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
pumposses of our audtt.

Itls the responsibllity of the Compeany’'s managemant to establsh and maintaln a system of internal control, and prepare and prasent the above sald
staterments in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirernents of the Companies Ordinancs, 1884. Our responsioility is to
express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit ih accordance with the auditing standarda as applicable In Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said staternents are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes exarmining, on
a test basls, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the above sald statements. An awdlt also Includes assessing the accounting policles
and sigrificant estimates mads by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the abave said statements. We believe thet our audit
provides a raasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we repart that:

@} inour opinicn, proper books of account have been kapt by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1884;
(b) inour cpinion:

) the balance shest and profit and loss account togsther with the notes thereon have besn drawn up in comformity with the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, and ara In agraement with the books of aceount and are further In accordance with accounting polcies consistently appled;

@ the exgenciiure Incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Compary's business; and

{il) the business conducted, Infvestments made and the expendture Incurred during the year were In accordance with the cblects of the Company;
¢} Inour opinion and to the best of our Informeation and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account,

staterment of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows, together with the notes forming part thereof

conform with the approved accounting starklards as applicable In Pakistan, and, ghve the Informetion required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

in the manner so required and respactively give a true and fair view of the state of the Compary’s affairs as at December 31, 2014 and of the profit,
total comprahensive income, changes in equity and its cash fiows for the year then ended; and

{d) inour opinicn, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinancs, 1880 XVl of 1880} was deducted by the Comparny and deposited
In the Central Zakat Fund establshed under Saction 7 of that Ordinence.

Karachi
Date: 03 March 2015

Engagement Partner: Mohammad Zulfikar Akhtar
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balance sheet
as at december 31, 2014

{Amounts In thousand)

Note 2014 2013
—{Rupees—

Assets
Norn-Currernt Asssts
Property, plant and equipment 4 74,962 817 79,315,218
Imtangible asssts 5 118,338 138,464
Long term loans and ecvances 6 93,831 109,349

75,175,084 79,563,031
Current asssts
Stores, spares and kosa tools 7 4,713,746 4,368,863
Stockdnrade 8 1,100,922 1,381,665
Trade debts ] 757,044 758,253
Derivative financlal Instruments 19 - 130,207
Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments 10 432,843 625,832
Other recaivables 1 27,582 28177
Taxes recoverable - 558,314
Short term investments 12 25,075,776 18,058,054
Cash and bank balances 13 4,188,528 4,458,391

886,296,541 30,365,756
TOTAL ASSETS 111,471,625 109,928,787
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(Amounts In thousand)

Equity & Liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Advance agalinst lasue of shares

Hedging reserve

Remeasurament of post employment bensfits
Unappropriated profit

Total Equity

Liabllfiles
Norcurrent liabilitiss

Borrowings

Suberdinated kan from Holding Company
Darivativa financlal Ingtruments

Dsferred liabiities

Service bensfits obligations

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Accrued interest / mark-up
Texes payable
Gurrent portion of:

- bormowings

- sarvice benefits obligations
Dertvative financlal Instruments

Total Liabilities
Contingencies and Commitments

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

The annexad notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of thase financial statarmants.

L. wj“f ’

Ruhail Mohammed
Chief Executive

Note

14

18
16

17
18
19
20
21

22
23

17
21
19

24

2014 2013
—(Rupses—
13,183,417 12,228,000
2,260,784 11144
- 2,118,780
(38,831} (147,644)
(14,103} (20,886)
19,087,828 10,879,868
21,284,878 12,841,232
34,478,095 25,069,232
38,080,622 52,886,382
- 3,000,000
6,689 1,531,262
5,226,646 4,654,523
113,345 104,053
41,437,302 62,188,210
24,472,163 18,012,445
1,362,300 1,478,667
675,608 -
7,812,728 2,824,290
43,338 43,823
1,090,089 213,041
35,556,228 22,873,345
76,983,530 84,858,555
111,471,825 108,828,787
Javed Akbar
Director
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profit and loss account
for the year ended december 31, 2014

{Amounts in thousand except for samings per share) Note 2014 2013
——(Rupess)}—

Net sales 25 81,424,834 80,128,838
Cost of sales 26 (38,822,4283) {28,007,905)

Gross profit 22,602,511 22,121,031
Selling and distribution expenses 27 (4,441,379) (3,511,155)
Administrative expenses 28 {#72,1861) {800,890C)
17,388,971 18,008,886

Other Income 29 2,449156 1151117
Other operating expenses 30 (1,317,743) {858,013)
Financs cost 31 (6,625,397) (5,918,038)
{7.943,140) (10,776,051)

Profit before taxation 11,884,887 8,383,852
Taxation 32 (3,6887,027) {2,886,847)
Profit for the year 8,207,960 5,497.105
Eamings per share - basic and diluted 33 6.29 4.66

The annexsd notes from 1 to 48 form an imtegral part of thess financial statements.

I, P T Potnn
Ruhall Mohammed Javed Aldar
Chlef Exacuthve Director
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statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended december 31, 2014

{Amounts In thousand)

Profit for the year

Cther comprehensive incoms

ems potermtially re-classifiable to Profit and Loss Account
Hedging raserve - cash flow hedges

Loss arising during the year

Less: Adjustment for amounts transferred to profit and kxas account

Income tax (Deferred) relating to hedging reserve

Hems not potentially re-classifiable to Profit and Logs Account
Remeasurament of post emplkoyment bensfits obligatkon

Income tax (Deferred) relating to mmeasurement of

pest employment benefits obligation

Other comprehenalva Income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive Incoms for the year

The annexsd notes from 1 to 48 form an imtegral part of thess financial staterments.

L. w3~f ’

Ruhail Mohammed
Chief Executive

Note

2014 2013
—Rupees}—
8,207,960 5,497,105
(1,633,625) (84,687)
1,797,878 369,241
(56,440} (28,338)
107,813 176,238
11,221 (31,646)
{4,438) 10,760
6,783 (20,8886)
114,598 185,350
8,322,556 5,652,455
T Pcmfnn
Javed Akbar
Director
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statement of changes in equity
for the year ended december 31, 2014

{Amounts In thousand)
Reszarve
Capital Revenus
Shera Advence Shere Hedging Remsasurement  Unepproprieted Total
capital agalnst premium reserva of post profit
|zsue of amployment
shars capital benefits
{Fupess}
Balance as at January 1, 2013 10,728,000 - 11,144 (323,880) - 5,382,783 15,798,027
Transactions with owners
Share capital lssued during the ysar 1,500,000 - - - - - 1,500,000
Advenice received during the yeer - 2,118,750 - - - - 2,118,750
Total comprehenslve income for
the year ended December 31, 2013
Profit for the yeer - - - - - 5,487,105 5,497,105
Other comprehensive Income:
- cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - 178,238 - - 176,238
- remeesuraments, net of tex ) = - & (20,886) - (20,886)
- - - 176,236 (20,886) 5,497,106 6,862,466
Bealerxco es at Decomber 31, 2013 12,228,000 2,118,750 11,144 (147,644) (20,886) 10,870,868 25,068,232
Transactions with owners
Sheres lsaued during the yoer 750,000 {2.118,750) 1,868,750 - - - -
Share lssuance cost - - {87.920) - - - (87,820)
Shares lssued at exarciss of
corvearsion option 206,417 = 978,810 - = = 1,184,227
855,417 {2,118,750) 2,248,640 = = - 1,086,307
Total comprehensive income for
the year ended December 31, 2014
Profit for the year - - - - - 8,207,960 8,207,960
Other compratiensive incoms
-cash flow hedges, net of tex - - - 107,613 - - 107,813
- rerneasuramants, net of tax - - - - 6,783 - B,783
- - - 107,813 8,783 8,207,980 8,322,556
Balance a8 at December 31, 2014 13,183,417 - 2,260,784 (39,831) (14,103) 18,087.828 34,478,085
The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral pert of these financial stetements,
I, P T Ponbnn
Ruhall Mohammed Javed Akbar
Chlef Exacutive Director
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statement of cash flows
for the year ended december 31, 2014

{Amounts In thousand) Note 2014 213
—{Rupess}——

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from cperations 36 28,225 540 32,578,475
Retlrement and other ssrvice benefits paid {41,124) {30,567)
Finance cost paid (7,081,184) {7.250,836)
Transaction cost pald = {195,212)
Texes paid {835,474) (252,807)
Tax loss purchased from Engro Eximp Agriproducts {Private) Limited {1,210,522) -
Long term loans and advances - net 15,418 {25,586)
Net cash generated from operating activiles 18,062,854 24,812,887

Cash flows from Investing activitles

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PPE} (701,027) (1,452,656)
Proceseds from sale of PPE 45,688 80,968

Inviestments magdia during the year - net (23,739,109) -

Income on deposits / other financial assets 1,790,184 811,508

Nat cash utllised In Investing activities (22,603,953) {560,218)
Cash flows from financing activities

Procesds from bormowings - net 3,947,508 -

Repayments of borrowings (13,080,255) 9,439,470)
Settlement of IFC option {note 17.5) (1,495,080) -

Proceeds from sub-ordinated loan 1,485,080 -

Repayment of sub-ordinated loan (4,495,080) -
Proceeds from right Issue = 1,500,000

Shars issus costs paid (53,989) -
Advance agalnst Issue of shanes - 2118,750

Net cash utilised in fnancing activities (13,691,726) (5,820,720)
Net (decrease)/ Increase In cash and cash equivalents {17,233,025) 18,431,728

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 22,516,445 4,084,716

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 37 5,283,420 22,516,445

The annexed notes from 1 1o 48 form an Integral part of these financlal statements.

P e T Pofan
Ruhail Mohammed Javed Akbar
Chief Executive Director

Annual Report 2014 | 73



notes to the financial statements
for the year ended december 31, 2014

{Amaounts In thousand)
1. Legal Status and Operations

11 Engro Fertllizers Limited (‘the Company') Is a public company Incorporated on June 29, 2008 In Pakistan under the Companles Crdinance, 1984
as awholly owned subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Compeany). The principal activity of the Comparty is manufacturing,
purchasing and marketing of fertilzers. The Company’s reglstered office s stiuated at 7th & 8th floors, The Harbour Front Bulldng, Plot Number
HC-3, Bleck 4, Schems Number 5, Clifton, Karachi. During the year, Karachi, Lahore and Islamabeaid Stock Exchanges approved the Company's
application for formal listing and quotation of shares, accordingly shares of the Company are now listed at these stock exchanges. The Company
has also issued Term Financa Certificates which are listed at the Karachi Stock Exchange.

1.2 Effective January 1, 2010, the Holding Comgarty throwigh a Scheme of Arrangement, under Section 284 to 288 of the Companles Ordinancs,
1984, separated its fertilizer undertaking for cominuation therscf by the Company, from the rest of the undertaking which was retained in the
Helding Company. Further, the Holding Company wes renamad from Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited to Engro Comporation Limitad, the
principal activity of which now is to manags investmerts in subsidiary companies and joint venturss.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accourting policies applied in the preparation of thesa financial statemerts are set out below. Thess policies have been
conalstently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

21 Basls of prepanation

211 These financlal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for remeasurement of certain financlal assets and lablities
at fair value through profit or loss, derivative hedging instrument at fair value and recogrition of certain staff retirsment benefits at present value.

21.2 Thesefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, Approved
accounting standards compriss of such Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board as are notfled under the Companies Orcinance, 1884, provsions of and diractives lssued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Incase
requirements differ, the provisions or direclives of the Companies Crdinance, 1884 shal prevalil.

213 The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with the above requirermnents requires the use of cartain critical accounting estimates. Ht also
recuires management to exsrclss Its judgment In the process of applying the Company's accounting policles. The areas invoiving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or arsas whers azsumptions and sstimatss are significant to the financial statemerts are disclossed in note 3
and other relevant notes.

214 Initlal application of a Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation 1o en exdsting Standard
a) Standards, amendments to published standards and Interpretations effective In 2014 and relevarnt

The folowing standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations are mandatory for the financial vear beginning January 1, 2014:

- |AS 32 {Amendment), 'Financial instruments: Presentation’. This emendment updates the application guidance in [AS-32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation’, 1o clarify some of the reculirements far offsetting finandlal assets and financial llablities on the balance sheet
date. The amendment clarifiss that right of set-off must not be contingent on a futurs event. It must also be legally enforceable for al
counterparties n the normeal course of business, as well as in the evertt of default, insolvency or benleugstey. The Company's curmant
accourting treatment is already in line with the requiremerts of this amendment.

- |AS 38 (Amendment) Impaimment of assets’. The amendment addressss the disclosure of information about tha recoverable amount of

Impealrad assets If that amount Is based on falr value less costs of dsposal. The amendment only affects the disciosurss in the Compary's
financial statermnents.
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{Amounts in thousand}

- |IFRIC 21 ‘Levies'. This is an interpretation of IAS 37, 'Provisions, contingent labilities and contingent assets’. IAS 37 sets out criteria for the
recognition of a liabiity, one of which is the requirernent for the ertity to have a presant obligation as a result of a past event (known as an
obligating event). The Interpratation clarifies that the ablgeting event that gives ise to a llabllity to pay a levy ls the activity descibex In the
relevant legislation that triggers the payment of the levy. The Company’s cument accournting treatment policy is already in line with this
amendmant.

b) Standards, amendments o publishad standards and Interpretations that are sffective In 2014 but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to publshed standards and Intarpretations that are mandatory for the financlal year baginning on
January 1, 2014 are considersd not to ba relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations.

¢) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not bsen early adopted by
the Company

The folkwdng new standards and amendments to published standards are not effective for the financlal year beginning on January 1, 2014
arxd have not been earty adopted by the Compary:

- |IFRS 13 ‘Fakr value measurement' (effiective for pertods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 ). The stardard alms to Improve conslstency
ard reducs complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement ard disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of falr velue accounting but provide guldance on how it should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs . The Company is yet to assess the full impact of
the standard, however, Inltial Indication are that It Is unikely that standard wil have any significant Impact on the Company's financlal
staterments.

- |AS 18 (Amendment} Employes benefits' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014). The amendment appliss to
contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans and clartfies the treatment of such contributions. The amendment
distinguishes between contributions that ame inked to service only in the period in which they arise and thoss linkad to service in mors than
one period. The cbjective of the amendment Is to almplify the accounting for contributions that are Independent of the number of years of
employee service, far exampls smployee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. Entitiss with plars that
require contributions that vary with service will be required to recognize the benefit of those contributions over employee’s working ves. It
is unlikely thet the standard will have any significant impact on the Company's financial staterments.

- Amendments to following standards as a result of anrual improvements to Intemational Financial Reporting Starxdards issued by IASB:

- IFRS 7 Financlal Instruments: Disckesure' {effactive for annual paiods beginning on or after July 1, 2016). Interim financlal statements -
the amendmennt clarifies that the additional disclosure required by the amendments to IFRS 7, 'Disclosurs - Offsetting financial assels
and financial llabliities’ s not specifically required for all Interim pertods unless required by IAS 34. This amendment Is retrospective. It s
unlikely that the standard will have any significant impact on the Compary's financial statements.

- |AS 19, ‘Employee bensfits’ {effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2016). The amendment clarifies that, when
determining the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations, it Is the curency that the llabllittes are denominated In thet Is
important, not the courttry whers they arise. The assessmeit of whether thers is a desp market in high-quality corporate bonds is based
on comorata bonds In that curancy, not comerate bonds n a particular country. Simiarly, whene thers 12 no deap market In high-quality
comporate bonds in that currency, govemment bonds in thie relevant curmency should be used. The amendment is retrospective but
limited to the beginning of the earliest perfod presented. It I unlkely thet the standard wil have any significant Impact on the Company's
financial staterments.

- |AS 24 'Related party disclosures' (sffective for annual pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2014}, The standard has been amended o
Include, as a related party, an antity that provides key managament personnal sarvicas to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
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reporting entity {the 'management entity'). Disclosuns of the amounts charged to the reporting entity is required. It is unlikaly that the
standard will have any significant Impegt on the Company’s finenclal statements.

- 1AS 34 'Interim financlal reporting’ (effective for annual perlods beginning on or after July 1, 2016). This amendment clartfies what Is
meart by the referencs in the standard to 'information disclosed slsewhere in the interim financial report’. The amendment alzo amends
I1AS 34 to require a cross-reference from the Interim financlal statements to the location of that Informetion. The amendment Is
retrospective. This amendment wil only affect the disclosurss in the Company's financial statements.

There are numbsr of cther standards, amendmerts and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet sffective and are also not
relevant 1o the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

2.21 Owned assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses, if any, except freshald land and capital workin
progress which are stated at cost, Historlical cost Includes experxditure that s directly atirioutable ta the acquisition of the ftems Including
borrowing costs (note 2.22). The cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attrioutable to bringing the asset to a working condition for Its Intended uss, and the costs of dismeantling and removing the thems and restoring
the site on which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
squipment.

Where major componants of an tem of property, plant and equipment have cifferent ussful Ives, they are accounted for as separate tems of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefita assodlated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the ermn can be measured rellably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenancs are charged to the profit and koss account during the financial
period In which they are Incurred.

Disposal of asset Is recognized when significant risk and rewards Incldental to ownership have been transferred to buyers. Galns and losses on
disposals ars detemmined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within ‘Other operating expanses / income”
in the profit and loss account.

Dapreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using the straight line methad, except for catalyst whose depreciation is charged onthe
basis of numbar of production days, wharety the cost of an operating asset less Its estimeted resldual velue, If significant, ls written off over fis
estimated ussful life. Depreciation on addition is charged from the mornth following the month in which the asset is available for use and on
disposals up to the preceding month of disposal.

Depreciation method, ussful lives and resldual values are reviewed anrualy.

222 Leased assets
Leasss in terms of which the Comparty assumes substartially all the riskes arxd rewards of ownership, are classified as financs lease. Upon initial
recognition, the leased aaset Is measured at an amount equal to the lower of Its falr value and present value of minimum lease payments.
Subssquent to nitial recagnition, the asset is accounted for in accardancs with the accounting palicy applicable to similar owned assat,
Outstanding obligations under the lease less finance cost alocated to future perkods are shown as a llabliity.

FAnance cost under lkease agreements ars alocated to the periods during the lease termn so as to produce a constant periadic rate of finance cost
on the remaining balance of principal iability for sach period.
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23

24

25

2.8

2.81

Leased assats ame depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful ives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain
ownership by the end of the leasa temm.,

Intangble asssts
a) Computer Software and Licenses

Costs associated with mairtaining computer software programmes are recognized as an expense when incurred, However, costs that are
directly attributabia to Identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceading the cost beyond one year, are recognized as an
intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchass cost of softwars (icenss fes) and related overnead costs.

BEenditure which enhances or extends the psrformarnce of computer softwars beyond its original specification and useful life is recognized
as a capital Improvement and added to the original cost of the software.

Computer software and license cost treated as Intanglble assets are amortized from the date the software Is put to use on a stralghtine basls
over a period of 4 years,

b} Rights for future gas utlization

Rights for future ges utllzation represent premium pald to the Govermmesnt of Pakistan for alkecation of 100 MMSCFD natural gas for a petod
of 20 years for Enven plant. The rights are being amortized from the date of commercdial production on a straight-ine basis over the remaining
aliocation perod.

Impalmnent of non-financlal assets

Assets that ara subject 1o depraclation / amortization are reviewad at each balance sheet date to kientify clrcumstances Indicating ocourmence of
impaimmert koss or reversal of previous impaimment losses. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assst's carrying
amaount exceeds s recoverable amount. The recoverable amourit Is the higher of an asset'a falr value less cost to sale and value In use. Reversal
of impaiment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Non current assets {or disposal groups) heldHor-sale

Norrcurrent assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets hekd for sale when their carryirg) amcunt is to be recovered principally through a
sale traneaction and a sale is conaidenad highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sall if their
carying amount s to be recoverad princlpally through a sale transaction rather than through continuling uss. Impealkment kosses on Inttal
classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on remaasurement are recognized in the profit and loss account.

Fnancial assets
Classification
The Company classifies ts financial assets In the folowing categories: at falr value through profit or loss, held to maturity, loans and recelvables,
and available-for-sale. The classification depands on the purposs for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of Its financlal asssts at Initial recognition.
a) Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss

Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss are financlal assets held for trading. A financlal asset Is classified In this category If acquired

principally for the purpose of seling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as
hadges. Assats In this category are classifled as curment assets.
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b} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
areIncluded In current assets, except for maturtties greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting perod; which are classified as
non-current assets.

c) Held to maturity financial assets

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial asssts with ficed or determinable payments and fixed maturity with a positive
Intentlon and ablity to hold to maturfty.

d) Avallable-for-sale financlal assets

Avallable-for-sale financlal assets are non-derivatives that are elther designated In this category or not classtiled In any of the other categorles.
They are included in non-current asseis unless the mvestment maturas or management intends to dispose it off within 12 months of the end
of the reporting date. There were no avaiable for sale financial assets at the balance sheet date.

262 Recognition and measurement
Regular purchases and sales of financlal asssts are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Compary commits to purchese or sell
ihe asset. Infvestments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
koss. Financlal assets camed at fakr valus through profit or loss are Inltlally recognized at falr value, and transaction costs are expenssd In the
profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash fiows from the investments have expired or have besn
transfermed and the Company has transferred substantially all ks and rewards of ownership. Avallable-for-gale financlal asssts and financlal
assets at fair valus through profit or [oss are subsequently camied at fair value. Loans and receivables ame subsequently carmied at amortized cost
using the effective Interast method.

Galna or losses arlsing from changes In the falr value of the 'financlal aasets at falr value through profit or loss’ category are presented In the profit
and loss account within ‘other aperating income / expensss’ in the period in which they arise. Dividend incorme from finarcial assets at fair value
through profit or loss Is recognized In the profit and loss account as part of other Income when the Company’s right to recelve payments ks
estabiished.

Changss in fair valus of menetary and nor-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognized in other comprahensive income.
When sacurities classified as available-for-sale are sok or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in statement of
comprehensiva Income are Inciuded In the profit and kss account.

Interest on avallable-for-sale securities calculated using the effective Interest method la recognized In the profit and loss account as part of other
income. Dividends on available for sale equity instrurnents ane recognizad in the profit and loss account as part of other income when the
Company's right to recelve payments ls established.

Tha Company assesses at the end of each reporting perlod whether thers le objective evidance that a financlal asset or a group of financlal
assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sals financial assets, the cumulative loss is mmoved from equity and recognised in
the profit and lose account. Impairment losses recognised In the profit and loas account on equity Instruments are not reversed through the profit
and loss accourt. Impaiment testing of trade detsts and other receivables is described in note 212,

2.7 Financial Liabiities
Al finarcial liabiities are recognized at the time when the Comparty becomes a party ta the contraciual provisions of an instrument. Financial

liabiliies are extinguished when these are discharged or cancelled or expire or when there is substantial medification in the terms and conditions
of the original finarcial liabiity or part of il. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
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terms, including any fees peid net of any fees received and disccuntad using the original effsctive interest rate, is at least ten percent different
from the discounted prssent value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. if modification of terms is accounted for as an
axtinguishment, any costs or fees Incurred are recognized as part of the galn or loss on the extinguishment. H the exchange or madification ks not
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the camying amount of the liabilty and are amortized over the rermaining
term of the modified libllity.

2.8 Offsetiing financial Instruments

Ananclal assets and llablites are offsst and the nat amount reportad In the balance shaet when there ks a legally enforceable rght to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an imention 1o settle either on a net basis, or realize the assst and settie the liability simultanecusly. The legally
enforceable ight must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable In the normal course of business and In the event of default,
insoivency or bankruptcy of the Company or the courterparty.

29 Derivative financial instruments and hedgirg activities

Derivatives are racognized initially at fair value; attributable transaction cost ars recognized in profit and loss account when incurred. Subsequsnt
toinitial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair values, and changes therein are accounted for as describad below:

a) Cashflow hadges
Charyes In falr valus of derivative hedging Instruments designated as a cash fiow hedge are recognized i statement of comprshenshve
income to the axtent that the hedga is effective. To the extert the hedges is insffective, changes in fair value are recognized in profit and loss
account.

If the hedging Instrument no longer mests the criterla for hedge accounting, exglres or Is sold, terminated or axercised, the hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously defermad in equity remains thens until the forecast transaction occurs.
When the hedged ltem Is a noninanclal asset, the amount pravicusly deferred In equity Is transferrad to carying amount of the asset when it
is mcognized. In other casss the amount deferred in equity is transfered to profit and loss account in the same period that the hedgs item
affects profit and loas account.

b} Other nonrading dervatives
When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not designated in a qualifyirg hedge relationship, all changes in its fair
value are recognized immediately In profit and loss account.

The Company holds derivative financial instrumerrts to hedgs its forsign cumency and intenest rate risk exposure. Further, the Company has
Issued options to convert IFC kean on Its shares as disclosad In note 17.5. The falr values of various derivative Instrumenits used for hadiging
and the conversion options are disclosad in note 18.

210 Storss, spares and loose tools
Thess are valued at weighted average cost except for iterns in transit which are stated at invoics value plus other charges paid therson till the
balence sheet date. For tems which are siow moving and / or Identified as surplus to the Compeany's requirements, adeguate provision s made
for any excess book valus over estimated realizable value. The Company reviews the carying amount of stores and spares on a regular basis
and provision k8 made for cbsolescencs.

211 Stockdntrade
These are valued at the lower of cost and net reallzable value. Cost ks determined using welghted average method except for rew materials In transit

which am stated at cost {rvoics value) pius other charges incumed therson till the balance shest dats, Cost in relation to firished goods ncludes
appicable purchass cost and manufacturing expensas. The cost of work In process Incdudes mateda and proportionate corversion costs.
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212

213

214

215

216

217

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price In the ardinary course of business less al estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to be incumed in order to make the sales.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, if any and subsequentty measured at amortized cost using
effective interast rate method less provision for impairment, if ary. A provision for impaimment is established if there is cbjective evidence that the
Cornparty will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the orlginal terms of recetvables. The amount of provision Is charged 1o profit
and loss account. Trade debis and other recsivables conaidered imecoverable are written-off.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows includss cash in hand, balance with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturtiies of three months or lass, and bank overdrafts / short term bormowings. Bank overdrafts ara shown within short term
bormrowings in current liabiities on the balance shest.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue of new shares or
options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Bomowings

Bormowings ane recognized initially at fair value, net of trensaction costs incuned. Borrowings are subsequently camied at amortized cost; any
difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs)and the redemption vakie s recognized In tha profit and koss account over the perod
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Bormowings are classified as curent liabilities unless the Comparny has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12
montha after the balance shest date.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognized initlally at falr value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the efifective Interest method.

These are classlfied as current liabliities if payment Is due within one year or less (or In the normal operating cydle of the business If longer). If not,
they are presented as norrcurment liabilities.

Current and deferred income tax
The tex expenss for the perod comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it

retates to iterns necognized in the statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in the statement
of comprehensive Income or directly In equity, respectivety.

Currant
The currertt income tax charge is bazed on the taxable income for the ysar calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the belance sheest date, and any adjustrment to tax payable I respect of previous years.
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Deferrad

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance shest method, providing for all temporary diffierences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liekilitties for financial reporting purpesss and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferrad tax Is measured at the tax retes that are exgpected
to be applied to the temporary diffsrences when they reverss, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

raporting date.

A defarmed tax agsst Is recognized to the extent that Is probable that future taxable profits wil be avalable agalinst which temporary diffarence can
be utiized. Defermed tax assets are reviewsd at sach reporting dats and are reduced to the axtent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit wil be reallzed.

218 Employee benefita
2181 Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan Is a post-employment beneftt plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employes
benefit axpense in profit and loss account when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
ora reduction In future payments Is avaliable.

The Companty contributes to:
- defined contribution provident fund for its permanent employees. Monthly contributions are made both by the Comparty and employees to
the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

- defined contriburtion pension fund for the benefit of those management emgloyees who have not optad for defined contibution gratutty fund
as more fully explained in note 2.18.3. Monthly contributions ars made by the Caompany to the fund at rates ranging from 12.5% to 13.75% of

basic salary.

- defined contribution gratulty fund for the benefit of those management employees who have selected to opt out of defined benefit gratulty
furxd and dsfined contribution pension plans as more fully explained in note 2.18.3. Monthly contributions are made by the Comparty to the
fund at the rate of 8.33% of baslc salary.

2182 Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. The Comparny's net obligation in respect of
defined banefit plans Is calculated by sstimating the amaount of future benefit that employses hawve eamed In retum for thelr setvice In curent and
prior pariods; that benefit is discounted to determine its presant valua, The calculation is performed annually by a qualified achuary using the
Projected Unit Cradit method, related detalls of which are ghven In note 35 1o the financlal statements.

Remeasurements (actuarial galns / kosses) In respact of defined benefit plan are recognized diractly In equity through other comprehensive
incorme; consaquent to amendment in Intemational Accounting Standard (AS) 18 "Employee benefits”.

Contributions require assumptions to be made of future ocutcomas which mainly include increass in remuneration, expectsd kong-term retum on
plan assets and the discount rate used to convert futura cash fiows to curment values. Calculations are sensltive to changes In the underying

assumptions.
The Comparty also contributes to:

- defined benefit funded pension scheme for lts management employees.
- defined benefit funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management employess.
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The penslon acheme proMdes He time pension 1o retired employeea or to thelr spouses. Contributions are made annually to these funds on the
basis of actuarial recommendations. The pension scheme has besn curtailed ard effective from July 1, 2005, ne new members are inducted in
this scheme.

2183 In.June 2011, the Company gave a one time Imevecable offer to selected members of MPT Employees' Defined Benefit Gratulty Fund and
Defined Contribution Pension Fund 1o join & new MPT Emplkoyee's Defined Contribution Gratuity Furd (the Fund), & defined contribution plan.
The prasent value, as at Jura 30, 2011, of the defined benefit cbigation of those smployees, who accepted this offer, ware transferned to the
Fund, Furthermors, from July 2011 onwards, the monthly contibutions to Defined Contribution Penslon Fund of such employess wera
discontinued.

2184 Service incentive plan

Company recognizes provision and an expenss under a servica incertive plan for cartain category of experienced employses to continue inthe
Company's employment.

2185 Employees' compensatad ahssnces
The Company accounts for compensated absencea on the basls of unavalled leave balance of each emplayee at the end of the peried.

219 Provisions
Provislons are recognized when the Compary has a legal or constructivae obligation as a result of past events and It ks probabils that an outflow of
resources wil be required to settle the cbiigation and a refiable estimate can ba made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflact currert bast estimats.

2.20 Foreign cumency transaciions and translation
Thess financial statements are preserted in Pakistan Rupess, which is the Company's functional and presentation curmsncy. Foreign curency
transactions are franslated into the functional cumency using the exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the transactions. Forelgn exchenge
gains and losses resulting from the settliement of such transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchangs rates of menetary assets and
lizblitties dencminated In forelgn cumencles are recognized In the profit and loss account.

2.21 Revenue recognition
Revenue Is recognized to the extent that It Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Gompany and the amount of revenue can be
measured rsliably, FRevenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recsived or receivable ard is reduced for marksting allowances,
Revenue Is recognized on the following basls:
- Sales mvanue Is recognized when preduct ks dispatched to customers;
- Income on deposits and other financial assets is racognized on accrual basis; and
- Commission income is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreementt.

2.22 Bomowing costs
Bormowing costs are recognized as an expenss in the pericd in which they are incumed axcept whers such costs are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset In which case such costs are capftalzed es part of the cost of that assst. Bormowing

costs includes exchange differencas arising on foreign currency bormowings to the extent these are regarded as an adjustmert to bormowing
costs and net galn / loss on the settiement of dartvatives heciging Instruments.
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2.23

224

2.25

2.28

2.27

31

3.2

3.3

Ressarch and development costs
Ressarch and development costs ars charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Govemmant grant

Governmant grant that compensates the Compary for expensaes incurred I recognized In the profit and loss account on a systematic basls In
the same period in which the expensss are recognized. Govemmsnt grants are deducted from related expenze.

Eamings per share

The Company presenis basic and diuted samings per shara (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS is cakeulated by dividing the profit or
loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is detamined by adjusting the profit or loss attributabie to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of erdinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all diiutive potential ordinary shares.

Transactions with related parties

Sales, purchases and other transactions with nelated parties are carried out on agreed terms and conditions.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial staterments in the period in which these are approved.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical exparience and other factors, including sxpectations of future
events that are beleved to be reasonable under the clrcumstances.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful Iife, reskdual value used In the calculation of deprediation. Further where
applcable, an estimate of recoverable amcunt of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis,

Dertvatives

The Company reviews changes In falr values of the dervative hedging financlal Instruments at sach reporting date based on the valuetions
received from the contracting banks. These valuations represertt estimated fluctuations in the relevant currenciss / interest rates over the
raperting pericd and othar relevent veriables signifying currency and Intarest rate Heks. The falr value of conversion options on IFC loan Is
determined using the option pricing model.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for curment incoms taxes payable by the Comparty, the management considers the applcable laws and the decisions /

Judgments of appellate authortlea on certaln lssuea In the past. Accordingly, the recognitlon of deferred tax ks also made, taking Irto account
these judgments and the best estimates of future results of operations of the Company.
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34 Provision for retirement and other service benefits obligations

The present value of these obligations depend on a number of factors that are determined on actuartal basks using varlous assumptions. Any
changes in thess assumptions will impact the carrying amount of thesa obligations. The present valus of thess obligations and the urderying
assumptions are dsclosed In note 35.2.3 and 35.2.8 respectively.

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

2014 2013
—(Rupees——
Operating assets at net book value (note 4.1) 73,674,133 77,271,365
Capital work in progress (note 4.4} 863,817 1,640,564
Malor spara parts and stand-by equipment 424 767 403,269
74,862,817 76,315,218
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Operating Assets

As at January 1, 2013
Cont

Accumulated depreciation
Net book velue

Yaear ended Decamber 31, 2013
Net book velue - January 1, 2013
Transfors from CWP

Dispasals / write offs (nobe 4.5}
Coat
Accurmulated depreciation

Depreciation chargs (hota 4.2)
Net book value

Aa et January 1, 2014
Cost

Accumulstod depreciation
Net book velue

Year endled December 31, 2014
Net book value - January 1, 2014
Transfers from CWIP

Disposaln / writs offa {note 4.8}
Cost
Accumuiated depreciation

Depreciation cherge (note 4.2)
Net book value

Aa at December 31, 2014
Cost

Accumulated depraciation
Net book value

Arvnual rats of depreciation (%)

Land Bullding on Piant and Ges Catahyst Office Vehicles Total
Frochold Loaschokli Frochokl Leasshokl machinery  Plpelng squipments
{Fupeas}
148,575 187,320 2,385,170 367,171 80,077,924 1,708,826 1,783,177 633,873 487,867 97,758,408
- (47,854}  {813,713) {82,434) (13411,876) {170,060) (874,208) (485,084} (248,847) (16,822,076)
148,575 138468 1,771,457 274,737 76,666,048 1,536,778 808,868 188,779 220,520 81,838,327
1495676 139466 1,771,467 274,737 76,666,049 1,636,778 808,968 188,779 220,620 81.836,327
- - 188,078 751 207,072 - - 38,172 3,335 437 408
- - - - (184,301) 5 - (2,479) 81,884) (228,784)
- - - - 103,912 - - 2470 40,855 147,237
- - - - {60,369) = o ) {21,129) 81.627)
- 4,388}  {135324) 9,188) (4,232,381) (B4,681) [B871,142) (55,883} {57,871) (4,820,843)
149675 136073 1,824,211 266,300 72,680,361 1.482,116 637,826 161,069 144,866 77,271,386
148676 187320 2573248 387,222 90,120,806 1,706,826 1,783,177 663,666 408,718 97,967,047
- 82,247y {(749,037)  {101,822) (17,540,344) 224,711) (1,245351) (518,507} (263,863) (20,695,682)
148,575 185,078 1,824,211 260,300 72,580,351 1,482,115 537,826 151,058 144,855 77,271,365
148,575 135078 1,824,211 288,300 72,580,351 1,482,115 537,826 151,058 144,855 77,271,365
- - 19,6808 85,616 363,884 708,187 178,897 82973 28,164 1445368
= < = - [47.810) = = (18,253} (79,668)  (440,719)
- - - - 62,063 - - 13,154 68,075 123,262
= = = - (ees7s7) = = 8]  (21.881) (817437)
- (4,398} ({135.267) {10,428) (4,190,358) [66,848) (218.414) (63,164} (48,498) (4,725,163)
148,575 130,880 1,708,552 321,487 685,458,100 2,123,806 488,409 180,779 104,845 73,874,133
149,575 187,320 2,502,868 433,537 90,136,748 2414963 1,960,174 730,288 357,226 88,871,688
s (56,840) {884304) (112,050) (21,878,849) (201,867) (1483785) (568,507)  (252,281) (25207 553)
149575 130,880 1,708,662 921,487 68,468,100 2,120,606 486,400 180,779 104,946 73,674,133
- 215 25108 25 51010 5.0 No. of 1025 121025
production
days
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4.2 Depreclation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales {note 268)
Salling end distrbution expeanses (note 27)
Administrative expsnsss (nots 28)
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2014 2013
—{Rupess)}——
4,682,132 4,870,537
23,588 25,7%0
18,433 24,518
4,725,153 4,920,843




{Amounts in thousand)
4.3 The dsteils of operating asssts disposed / written off during the year are as follows:

Description and Sold to Cost Accumulated Net book value Sales
method of diaposal depreclation proceeds
{Rupess}
Plant and machinery
Ok Ammonia | plant Peak Arab Engineering
{dismantled portion)- sale (Private) Limited
through bid 37,197 30,889 6,308 16,236
Cooling Water Pumps
{dismantied portion) Wiitten off 120,210 17,400 102,810 -
Gas Turblne Compressor
{dismantled portion) Witten off 52,007 3,764 48,243 -
209,414 52,053 157,361 16,236
Gas pipeline
Pipeline for raw gas Wiitten off 138,396 - 138,398 -
Vehicles
By Company policy to existing /
separating axscutives Azmat Hayat Bhatti 1,361 1,014 347 342
Muddasslir Shafique 1,490 852 838 842
Masood Khetri 1,358 1,018 340 340
Halder All Isanl 1,359 1,018 340 340
Muhammad Shujaat Bhatti 1,438 1,079 360 360
Omalr Mazhar Qureshl 1,438 1,349 80 80
Mohammad Khalid Mir 8,000 3,375 4,625 4,725
Adeel Qamar 1,439 1,349 80 80
Muhammad Abbas Shahani 2,332 730 1,602 1,602
Kanwer Anwer Saced Khan 6,800 4959 1,941 1,941
S. Abul Fazal Rizvi 1,830 1,086 844 874
Nadeem Sallad 1,389 1,042 347 347
M. Mumtaz Akhtar 1,540 722 818 876
Farooq A. Qezi 1,401 1,054 347 347
Khurshid Mohammad 1,328 1,246 83 23
Mohammad Asghar Janjua 1,329 1,248 83
Qamer Jalosl 1,329 1,246 83 83
Zahid Amin Shah 1,328 1,248 83
Nadesm Munawar 1,389 1,042 347 347
Mohammad Arshad 1,389 1,042 347 347
M. Munawar A. Shahid 1,401 1,061 350 350
Saad Afzaal Shamsi 1,401 1,051 350 350
Khalid Mahmood 1,389 1,042 347 347
Shahid Rashid 1,389 1,042 347 347
Muhammad Ali Mirza 1,401 1,061 350 350
Rizwan Malik 1,401 1,051 350 350
Fahad Majid Hasan 1,401 1,061 350 350
Zamir Hussain 1,389 1,042 347 347
Wages Habib 1,401 841 460 496
Salman Abdullah Gora 1,401 1,051 350 350
Naz Khan 7,160 5,370 1,780 1,790
Muhammad Siddique 1,389 1,042 347 347
Nadesm Ahmed 1,830 1,448 482 483
65,825 45,750 20,175 20,388
Balancs carried forward 413,735 97,803 315,832 36,835

Annual Report 2014 | 87



{Amounts in thousand)

Dascription and Sold to Cost Accumulated Net book value Salea
method of disposal depreciation procesds
{Rupees}
Belance carrled forward 413,735 97,803 315,932 36,835
Insurance claim Harmpshire Insurance Compary 585 800 55 500
Insuranca claim Hampshire Insurance Comparny 1,461 1,050 41 1,400
2,018 1,550 468 1,800
Sale through bid
SultanJan 580 504 58 405
S.M.Sesad 1,015 761 264 892
Sultan Jan Niazi 928 828 - 270
Sased Ahmed 555 500 55 263
Mohammad Jawed 585 529 58 434
Shahnawaz 855 500 55 426
Waseem Mirza 530 477 53 481
Nusrat lgbal 805 545 80 434
Wajid Ali 480 432 48 501
Mohammad Jawed 1,389 1,343 48 1,085
Nusret Igbal 605 545 80 420
Mohammad Abld 605 845 80 448
Shagufta Sased 805 545 80 473
9,015 8,152 863 6,510
Sale to assoclates
Engro Foods Limited 520 520 - 115
Engro Foads Limited 768 &1 77 182
Engro Focds Limited 878 679 - 211
Engro Foads Limited 733 733 - 240
2,700 2,623 77 748
79,656 58,075 21,581 29,557

ttema having net book value upte Rs. 50 each

Fumiturs, fixtures and equipmert 13,253 13,154 23 188
Year ended December 31, 2014 440,719 123,282 317,437 45,862
Yeer ended December 31, 2013 228,764 147,237 81,627 80,868
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(Amourts in thousand)
Capital work in progress

Plant and machinery

Buikiing and civil works including Gas pipsiine
Fumlture, fixture and equipment

Advances to suppliers

Other anclilary cost

Balance as at January 1
Additions during the year
Transfarmad to:
- operating assets (nots 4.1}
- Intanglble assets {note 5)
Balance as at December 31

Intangible Assets

As at January 1, 2013
Cost

Accurmulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended December 31, 2013
Nat book velue - January 1, 2013
Transfers from CWIP
Amortization {note 5.1)

Net book value

As at December 31, 2013
Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended December 31, 2014
Net book valus - January 1, 2014
Transfers from CWIP
Amortization {note 5.1)

Net book value

As at December 31, 2014
Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book velus

2014 2013
{Rupascs)

759,687 1,554,382
66,849 77,603
4,008 1,018
13,074 -
20,304 7563
863,817 1,640,564
1,640,564 608,052
678,548 1,482,728
(1,445,358) {437,408)
(10,838) (12,800)
863,917 1,840,584

Software and Rights for

licensaes future gas Total

utilization

{Rupecs}
226,684 102,312 328,908
{159,674) 7,767) (187,441)
67,010 94,545 161,555
67,010 94,545 161,555
12,809 - 12,809
{30,780) {5,110) {35,000)
49,029 88,435 138,484
230,493 102,312 341,805
{180,464) {(12,877) {203,341)
49,029 89,435 138,464
48,029 80,435 138,484
10,838 - 10,838
(25,855) {5.111) (30,968)
34,012 84,324 118,338
250,331 102,312 352,643
(218,319) {17,988} (234,307)
34,012 84,324 118,336
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{Amounts in thousand)

2014 2013
——{Rupeesj—
51  Amortization for the yeer has been allocated as folows:
Cost of sales {hote 26) 28,290 35,079
Selling and distribution expensses (note 27) 160 118
Administrative sxpanses (note 28) 2,516 706
30,968 35,800
6. Long Term Loans and Advances - Conskiered good
Executives {notes 6.1 and 8.2) 183,374 187,302
Other employees (note 6.3} 8174 34,672
192,548 221,974
Less: Current portion shown under current assets {note 10)
- Considered good 85,108 112,625
- Considered doubtful 3,509 =
88,617 112,625
93,931 108,349
81 Recornclliation of the carrying amount of loans
and advances to exscutives
Balance at beginning of the ysar 187,302 145,659
Disbursements 144,339 85,132
Repayments / amortization {148,267) (53,498)
Balancs at end of the ysar 183,374 187,302

8.2 Includes interest free servics incentive loans to exacutives of Rs, 97,498 (2013: Rs. 92,271}, 1t also includes advances of Rs. 31,309 (2013: Rs.
34,603), Re. 24,994 {2013: Rs. 11,776), Rs. 16,383 (2013: Rs. 12,576)and Ra. 13,192 (2013: Rs. 36,076} to executives for car eam out
assistance, lory) term incentive, houss rent advanca and retention koan respectively. The mexdmum amount cutstarding at the end of ary month
during the year ended December 31, 2014 from execttives aggregated to Rs.220,858 (2013: Fs. 194,564).

8.3 Represents interest free loans given to workers pursuant to Collective Labour Agreament.
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(Amounts in thousand)

2014 2013
—Rupess—
7. Stores, Spares and Loose Tools
Consumable stores 545,483 394,052
Spares 4,257,835 4,063,443
Tools 5,019 4,315
4,808,137 4461810
Less: Provision for surplus and siow maving ftems 94,31 92,947
4,713,748 4,368,863
8. Stock-intrade
Raw materals 714,857 806,352
Packing materials 80,475 58,882
Workin process 89,780 71,880
895,112 938,124
Finished goods 205,810 443,541
1,100,922 1,381,665
9. Trade Debis
Considared good
- Secured (note 9.1} 615,797 663,624
- Unsecurad 141,247 84,629
757,044 758,253
Considered doubtful 24,400 27,073
781,444 785,326
Provision forimpaiment {note 9.2) (24,400) 27,073)
767,044 758,253
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{Amounts in thousand)
91  These debts are secured by way of bank guarantee and Inland letter of cradit.

9.2 AsatDecember 31, 2014, trade debis apgregating to Rs. 24,400 {2013: Rs. 27,073) wers past dus and provided for. The ageing analysis of

these provided for debts Is as follows:
2014 2013
——{Rupess}—
Upto 1 year - 18,000
More than 1 year 24,400 8,073
24,400 27,073
10. Loans, Advances, Deposits and Prepayments
Considered good
Current portlon of long term keans and advancses to
executives and other employees - (note 6) 95,108 112,825
Advances and deposits 72,482 176,440
Prepayments
- Insurance 238,702 227,734
-Others (note 10.1) 25,651 109,033
432,943 625,832
Considersd doubtiul - advances and deposits 3,509 5,770
Provislon for Impalrment (note 10.2) {3,500) (5,770)
432,943 625,832

101 ThisIncludes Rs. NIl (2013: 87,365) expenditure Incurred on account of Inftlal Publlc Offering of 75 milllon ordinary shares, which has been
adjusted against the share premium on allotmert of the shares during the year.

10.2 Asat December 31, 2014, advances and prepayments aggregating to Rs. 3,509 (2013: Rs. 5,770} were Impalred and provided for. The
ageing analysis of impaired advances is as follows:

2014 2013
——{Rupses}—
Upto 1 yaar 3,509 4,258
More than 1 year - 1,512
3,508 5,770
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(Amourts in thousand)

11

1141

Other Receivables

Recelvable from Government of Pakistan
Accrued income on deposits / investments

Due from associated companies:
- Engro Foods Limited
- Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
- Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited
- Sincdh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited
- Engro Hengy Terminal (Private) Limited
- Engro Eximp Agriproducts (Private) Limited
- Engro Viopak Terminal Limited

Claims on forsign suppliers
Workers' profiie participation fund (note 22.4)
Cthers

Less: Provision for impalment

The maximum amount due from the Holding Company / associated companies at the end of any month during the year aggregated

as folows:

Holdirg Company
- Engro Corporetion Limtted
Associated companies
- Engro Eximp (Privats) Limited
- Engro Fooda Limited
- Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
- Engro Powergen Qadineur Limited
- Engro PowerGen Limited
- Sindh Engro Coal Mining Comparty Limited
- Engro Eximp Agriproducts (Prvate) Limited
- Engro Foundation
- Engro Hengy Terminal (Private) Limited
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited

2014 2013

——{Rupeeg)|—
544 291
8,501 13,780
24 1,567
- 1185
100 1,088
21 -
2,830 7
= 133
899 8
13,215 3,842
- 1,565
1,802 4,838
28,128 28177
544 %
27,682 28177

2014 2013

—{Rupees)—
812 1,201
68,036 33,039
3,027 4,705
8,012 9,400
16,457 17,116
1433 132
6,168 1,510
2,252 2,924
282 729
2,830 -
3,088 485
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{Amounts in thousand)

11.2 Asat Dacember 31, 2014, recelvables aggregating to Rs. 15,117 (2013: Rs. B,722) ware past dua but not Impelred. The ageing analyals of
thess receivables is as follows:

2014 2013
—{Rupees)}—
Upto 3 months 8,188 2,873
3to & monthg 27 2,236
More than 6 months 8,734 3,613
15117 8,722
12. Short Term Investments
Financlal essets at falr value through profit or loss
Treasury bills and other ficed income placements (note 12.1) 24,078,488 1,578,851
Loang and receivables
Reverse repurchase of treasury bils {(note 12.1) 998,288 16,478,103
25,075,778 18,058,054

121  These repregent treagury bllis at the Intersst rate ranging from 7.02% to 10.07% per annum (2013: 8.45% to 9.17% per annum}; and local and
Toraign currency deposits with various banks, at interest rates ranging from 7.25% to 9.15% per annum (2013: 8.00% 1o 10.20% per annum)
and at 1.50% per annum (2013: 2.00% per annum) respectivety.
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{Amounts in thousand)

13.

131

13.2

13.3

14,

Cash and Bank Balances

Cash at banks on:
- deposit accounts (notes 13.1 and 13.2)
- current accounts {note 13.3)

Cagh In hand - Imprest funds

2014 2013
——{Rupess}—
4,178,180 2,808,262
3,008 1,844,879
4,181,278 4,451,141
7.250 7.250
4,188,528 4,458,391

Deposlt accounts carrled retum at rates ranging from 8.5% to 8.98% per annum (2013: 6.5% to 10.15% per annum).

Includes Rs. 12,225 [2013: Ra.13,635) held In forelgn currency bank accounts.

Current account includes funded faciities for short term finances available from various banks and institutional investors ameunting to Rs.
4,350,000 (2013: Bs. 5,250,000} along with non-funded faclliies of Rs. 1,300,000 (2013: Re. 1,275,000} for Bank Guarantees. The rates of
markup on funded bark overdraft facilities ranged from 10.83% 1o 12.57% per annum and all the facilities are secured by ficating charge
upon all pressnt and future stocks including rew and packaging materials, finished goods, stores and spares and other merchandise and on
all presert and future bock debts, outstanding monles, recelvable clalms and bllls of the Company. However, no overdrawn amaount was

outstanding as at December 31, 2014.

Share Capital

Authorized Capital

1,400,000,000 (2013 1,400,000,000)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and pald-up capltal

245,541,674 (2013: 150,000,007) Ordinary shares of
Re. 10 each, fully pald In cash

£,800,993 (2013: 9,999,893) Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each issued as at January 1, 2010
on transfer of fartilizer undertaking

1,082,800,000 {2013: 1,082,800,000) Ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each, lssued as fully pald bonus shares

2014 2013
—{Rupees}—
14,000,000 14,000,000
2,455,417 1,500,000
100,000 100,000
10,628,000 10,628,000
13,183,417 12,228,000
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141 Movement In Issued, Subscribad And Pald Up Capital

2014 2013 2014 2013
——Number of sharss—— —{Rupesg}————
1,222,800,000 1,072,800,000 At January 1 12,228,000 10,728,000

Ordinary shares of As. 10 each issued
75,000,000 150,000,000 curing the year as fully pald In cash {14.2) 750,000 1,500,000
Ordinary shares of As. 10 each issusd
upon exercise of conversion cption by
20,541,667 - Intemational Finance Corporation (IFC) (14.3) 205,417 -
1,318,341,687 1,222,800,000 At December 31 13,183,417 12,228,000

14.2 Lastysar, the Company made Initial Public Offer through issue of 75 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. Shares in respact thereof have
been Issued during the year.

14.3 Thess represent shares issued to IFC, pursuant to exerciss of conversion option {nots 17.5),

14.4 As at balance shest date, the Holding Company held 88.8% of the share capital of the Company. However, subsequent to balancs sheet
date, on exercise of conversion option by IFC, as mors fully explained in note 17.5 to the financial statements, the Holding Company now
holds 85.8% of the share capltal of the Compary.

15. Advance Against Issue of Shares

Represents subscription money received against IPO of 75 million sharss that took place during 2013, Out of thess 18.75 million shares were
subscribad by general publlc while 56.25 mlllion shares were subscibed by high net worth Individuals and Investors. All these shares were

allotted during the year.
2014 213
—(Rupses)}—
16. Hedging Reserve
Hedging reserve on interest rate swaps (58,450) (223,703)
Daferred tex therson 19,612 76,059
(39,831} (147,644)

161 Hedging reserve reprasents the effective portion of changes In falr values of designeted cash flow hadges, net off assoclated gains / losses
recognized in initial cost of the hedged item and profit and loss account where applicable.
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{Amounts in thousand)
Borrowings - Secured (Non-participatory)

Note
Long term finance utiized
under mark-up armangemerita:
Re-structured Financlers
Habib Bank Limited 171
Alled Bank Limited 171
Askarl Bank Limited 174
Citibank N.A. 174
Standard Charterad Bank
{Pakistan) Limlted 171
Naticnal Bank of Pakistan 171
Faysal Bank Limited 171
Dubal Islamic Bank Limited 171
Standard Chartered Bank
{Pakistan) Limited 171
Samba Bank Limited 171
Netional Bank of Pakistan 171
Syndicated finance 171ad
172
lslamic offshore finance 171 ad
173
DF Consortium finance 171 ad
174
Intemational Financa
Corporation 171 and
175
Other borrowings
Intemational Finance
Corporation 17.8
HSBC Middie East Limlted
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Pak Kuwait Investment Comparty

{Private) Limited
Dubal lslamic Bank Limited ~ 17.6
Sik Bank Lirmitad
Certiflcates
Term Finance Certlficates
2nd lssue 17.7
Tem Finance Certificates
3nd Issue 17.8
Sukuk Certificates 179
Privatety Placed Subordinated
Term Finance Certificates 17,10
Privately Placed Subordinated
Sukuk Cartificates 1711

Less: Cument portion shown under
current liabilities 171

Mark -up
rate p.a.

8 monthg KIBOR +1.1%
6 months KIBOR+ 1.1%
6 months KIBOR+ 1.1%
6 months KIBOR +1.1%

6 months KIBOR + 1.1%
6 months KIBOR + 1.1%
6 months KIBOR +2.3%
6 Months KIBOR +2.1%
6 Months KIBOR +2.4%
6 Monthe KIBOR +2.4%
6 Months KIBOR + 2.4%
6 months KIBOR + 1.8%
6 months LIBOA + 2.5%

6 months LIBOR + 2.6%

6 months LIBOR + 6%

6 monthg LIBCR + 8%

6 months KIBOR+ 1.1%
6 Months KIBOR +2.4%
6 months KIBOR +2.4%

6 months KIBOR +2.3%
6 months KIBOR + 1%
6 Months KIBOR +2.3%

6 months KIBOR + 1.6%

6 months KIBOR +2.4%
6 months KIBOR + 1.5%

6 months KIBOR + 1.7%

Installments
Number Caommenced /
Commencing from
8 half yearly March 31, 2013
8 half yearty June 26, 2013
8 half ysarly June 30, 2018
8 half yaarly July 22, 2013
8 half ysarly June 30, 2013
10 half yearly March 5, 2013
13 half yearly May 28, 2013
14 helf yearty June 30, 2013
14 half yearty Jne 14, 2013
14 half yeary April 1, 2013
10 helf yearty September 28, 2013
14 half yaarly February 28, 2013
9 half yaarty March 28, 2013
7 half yearty July 29, 2013
3 half yearty Septembar 15, 2016
3 half yearly September 15, 2016
8 half yearly December 29, 2010
10 helf yearty June 21, 2013
14 half yearty May 28, 2010
10 helf yoarty April 30, 2012
4 half yearly June 4, 2018
10 half yearly January 21, 2013
2 half yearly March 8, 2015
10 half yearty January 8, 2015

24 2013

—FRupeeg——
257,290 397,661
514,066 794,655
64,508 100,000
25,840 40,000
128,644 188,816
788,842 1,045,068
857,785 1158373
294,409 444159
691,118 781,322
295954 396,180
543,185 743,208
9,853,119 13,189,193
5,312,289 7,547,088
3,589,561 5,258,103
2,458,031 3,102,937
3,365,332 5,050,806
- 50,000
120,000 120,600
181,708 272,564
180,287 288,516
800,000 -
180,000 180,000
- 3,879,227
1,432,008 1,666,884
2,898,472 2,995,031
6,000,000 6,000,000
3.161,823 -
44,003,351 55,820,681
7.912,728 2,824,299
38,080,622 52,898,382
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(Amounts in thousand)

171

17.2

17.3

174

175

As per the tarms of re-profling agreements of the finance fecllities, the Company had agreed to Implement cash sweep due to which all surplus
cash over and above debt servicing, recuring capex, altemate gas capex and soms pre agreed cushions, wers to be paid fo lenders as
prepayment of outstanding amount which was applicable from December 31, 2014 on one off basis. However, dus 1o improved cash flows, the
Company has implemerted the cash swesp in June 2014, and upto the date of balancs shest Rs. 8,057,958 has been paid to the restructured
financlers whereas remalning amount of Rs. 1,942,041 was pald subsequent to balance sheet date.

During the year, the amended InterCreditor Agreement {CA) was executed between the Company and the senlor debt financlers. The amended
agreement exccludas the covenant for the long term allocation and supply of gas from Kunnar Pasahki Deep from July 1, 2014.

Further, the amended ICA imposed restriction on dividerxd which would be paid only after the repayment of 33% of the senior [oans outstanding
as at June 30, 2012. During the year the Company has fulfiled this condition by making repaymants that exceedad 33% of cutstanding amount
of senior debt as of June 30, 2012.

This reprasents the balance amount of a syndkcated finance agreement with Hablk Bank Limited, National Bank of Pakistan, United Bank
Limited, MCB Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited, Bank Alfalah Limited, Alied Bank Limited, Askari Bank Limited, Habib
Metropolitan Bank Limited, SUMMIT Bank Limited, SONERI Bank Limited and PAK-LIBYA Holding Gomparty (Private) Limited.

This reprasants the balance amaount of an offshore Islamic Finance Faclity Agreement of USD 36,000 with Hablb Bank Limited, Natlonal Bank of
Pakistan and SAMBA Financial Group and Rs. 3,618,000 with Citi Bank N.A, Dubai Istamic Bank Pakistan Limited and Standard Chartered Bank
(Pakistan) Limited.

This represents the balance amount of a facllity agreement amounting to USD 85,000 with a consortium of Development Finance Institutions
comprising of DEG, FMO ard OFID.

The Hokding Compeny entered into a C Loan Agresment {Original Agresmernt) dated September 28, 2008 with Intemational Finarce Corporation
(IFC)for USD 50,000, divided Into Tranche A (USD 15,000} and Tranche B (USD 35,000} Both Trenche A and B were fully disbursed as at
Decemioer 31, 2009 and transferred to the Company under the scheme of demerger effective January 1, 2010, Howser, the option given to
convert the Tranche A loan amount of USD 15,000 remained upon the Holding Company's ordinary shames at Rs. 205 per ordinary share
(rechuced to Rs. 155.30 and Rs. 112.46 as at Dscember 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 respectively consequent to bonus issues) calculated at
the dollar rupee exchangs rate prevailing on the business day prior to the date of the notices issuad by IFC to exercise the conversion option.
Such option was to be exercised within 2 perod of no mora than five years from the date of disbursement of the loan Dacember 28, 2008).
Tranche B, howewver, is not corvertible. The Holding Comparyy, upon shareholders” approval in the Annual General Mesting of February 27, 2010,
heg entered Into an egreement with the Company that In the event IFC exercless the aforementioned conversion option (Tranche A), the loan
amourt then outstanding against the Company would stand reduced by the corversion option amount and the Company would pay the rupes
equivalant of the comeapondng conversion amount to the Holkdling Company which would simuitaneously be gven to the Company as a
subordinated loan, carrying mark-up payabls by the Holding Company for rupee finances of ike maturities plus a margin of 1%. The effect of IFC
conmvarsion resulted in a loan from the Holding Company having the same repayment terms / dates as that of Trancha A

During the year IFC exerclaed Its entire conversion option for an outstanding amount of USD 15,000 of Tranche A and accordingly 12,515,319
shares of Engro Corporation Limited have been issued fo the IFC.

On Decamber 22, 2010, the Comparty and IFG entered into an amendead agreement for further disbursement of USD 30,000 over and above the
aforementioned disbursed amount of USD 50,000. The amount was fully disbursed as at June 30, 2011. The sallent features of the Original Loan
essantially remainec the same and some of the termss of the loan wers further amencded through an agreement dated January 28, 2014. The
additional loan of USD 30,000 is divided into (i) Tranche A2 30% convertible loan on the shares of the Company at Rs. 24.00 per ordinary share
cakeulated at the dollar rupee exchange rate pravallng on the business dey pricr to the deate of the notices Issued by IFC to exercisa the
conversion option and (i) Tranche B2 70% non-corvertible loan. The additional loan is repayable by September 15, 2017 in three equal
Instaliments and carries Interest at six months LIBOR plus a spread of 6%.
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{Amourts In thousand)

During the ysar on June 25, 2014, the Company received a rotica from the IFC for exercise of option on USD 5,000 (oan which, alongwith the fair
vakie of related option on that date has been classified as equity; accordingly 20,541,667 ordinary shares of the Company have been alotted to
the IFC. The fair value of the remaining conversion aption, included in derivative financial instruments, amounts to Rs. 865,326. Subsaguent to
tha year end, the Company recetved a notice from IFC for exerciss of further USD 3,000 loan on January 8, 2015 out of the remalning USD 4,000
of Tranche A2, accordingly 12,580,625 ordinary shares of the Company have bean alkstted to the IFC on January 14, 2015.

176 The Company arranged a loan faclity of Rs. 800,000 from Dukal Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited on December 4, 2014. This loan was used to
repay the subardinated loan received from the Holding Comparty on account of exercisa of IFC conversion oplion as mors fully explained in
aforementionad note.

17.7  This represants secured and listed Term FAnance Certificates (TFCs)of Rs. 4,000,000. It has been redesmed In fts entiraty on Novernber 30,
2014,

17.8 This represants sscured ard listed Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) of As. 2,000,000, The TRCs are structured to redesm as follows:

Year Redemption %age
0.04%
0.04%
7.96%
7.96%
12%
12%
80%

~N O OsE N =

IGl Investmant Bank Limited is the trustee for these TFCs.
17.9 This represants Sukuk Certificates of Rs. 3,000,000. Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited is the trustee for these certificates.

1710 This represents Privatety Placed Subordinated TFCs amounting to Fis. 4,000,000 (PPTRC Issus Iy and Rs. 2,000,000 (PPTFC Issus )
respectivaly. The PPTFCs are perpetual In nature with a fva year call and a ten year put option. The PPTFC | lssus has mark-up of sbx months
KIBOR plus 1.7% whensas the PPTFC Il issus has mark-up of six months KIBOR plus 1.25%. K5l Investment Bank Limited is the trustes for thess
TRCa. In 2011, the aforementioned TRCa have been listed on the Over-The-Counter (OTC) market of the Karachl Stock Exchange.

1711 Thia represents Privately Placed Subordinated Sukuk (PPSS) amounting to Rs. 3,200,000. Pak Brunel Investment Company Limited Is the
Trustes while Meeizan Bark Limited acts as the Investment Agent for this Sukuk. The Comparty used PPSS to refinance the subordinated loan
from the Holding Company.

1712 The abovs financas, excluding those covered in notes 17.5, 17.6, 17.10 and 17.11 are securad by an equitabls mortgage upon the immovable
property of the Company and equitable chearge over current and future fixed assets excluding immovalkde property of the Company. Loans from
IFC are secured by a subordinated morigags upon the immovable property of the Company and sub-ordinated charge over all present and
future fixed assats excluding immaovable property of the Compeny, PPTFCs are secured by a subcrdinated floating charge over all presant and
future fixed asssts excluding land and buildings. Loans from Dubai Islarmic Bank Pakistan Limited used to refinance the subordinated loan from
the Holding Company heve a subordinate mortgage upon the Immaovable property of the Company and a subordinate charge over current and
futurs fixed asssts excluding immaovable property of the Gompany.

1713 Inview of the substancs of the transactions, the sale and repurchasse of assets under long term financs have not been recorded in these financial
statements.
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{Amounts In thousand}
1e. Subordinated Loan from Holding Company - Unsecured

During the year, two tranches of Rs. 814,120 and Rs. 680,880, being the amount equivalent to IFC Tranche A settled upon exsrcisa of option as
more fully explained In note 17.5, camying mark-up at rate of 15.3% and 15% respectively were obtained from the Holding Company. However,
ihe entire amount including amount cutstanding as at December 31, 2013 carmying mark-up at rate of 17.1% was repaid during the year.

2014 2013
Assats Liablities Assets Liablities
{Rupees}
19. Derivativa Financial Ingtruments
Converslon option on IFC loan (note 17.5) E 085,326 - 1,445,968
Cash fiow hadges
- Fomeign exchange forward
contracts - net (note 19.1) - 54,800 130,207 14,974
- Interest rate swaps (note 19.2) - 76,852 - 283,353
- 1,086,778 130,207 1,744,203
Liess: Current portion shown under
currant assets / llabilities
Converslon gptions on IFC loan - 965,326 - -
Cash fiow hadges:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts - 54,800 130,207 14,874
- Interest rate swaps - 89,963 - 198,067
- 1,080,088 130,207 213,041
= 8,689 - 1,531,252

181 Foreign exchangs forward contracts

The Company entered in various USD ; PKR forward contracts to hedge its foreign cumency exqeosurs, As at December 31, 2014, the Company had
forward contracts 1o purchaess USD 84,680 (2013: USD 157,003) at various maturity dates to hedge its foreign curmency espposurs, primarily loan
obdgations. The net falr value of these contracts as at December 31, 2014 ks negative and amounted to Rs. 54,800 2013: Rs. 115,233 postiive).

19.2 Interest rate swap

19.2.1 The Company aitered Into an Intanest rate swap agreement to hadge Its Interest rate expesurs on fioating rate committad bomrowing under an
Offshore lelamic Finance Facility agresment which miatured during the year. The fair value of this armangement as at December 31, 2013
amounted to Rs. 85,852 negathve.

19.2.2 The Company entered Into Interest rate swap agreement to hedge fts Interest rate exposure on fioating rate committed bomowing from a
consortium of Developrmer t Financs Institutions for a notional amount of USD 23,182 2013: USD 38,838) amortizing upto April 2018, Urder the
swap agreement, the Company would recelve USD-LIBOR from Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited on notional amaount and pay fixed
3.73% which will be settled sami-annually, The fair value of the intersst rate swep as at December 31, 2014 is negative and amounted to As.
76,852 {2013: Rs. 197,501 negative).
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2014 2013
20, Deferred Liabilities — T
Deferred taxation (note 20.1) 5,149,668 4,573,678
Defarred Income (note 20.3) 76,980 80,845
5,226,848 4,854,523
201 Deferred taxation
Credlt balancas arising on account of:
- Accelerated depreclation allowance 15,485,581 17,074,406
- Carried forward tax losses substantially
partalning to unabsorbed tex depraciation (6,472,305} (9,472,132}
- Recoupable minimum tumover tax (note 20.2) (1,276,725} (662,568)
- Fair values of hedging instruments {18,618} (76,058)
- Exchange loss - {1.827,034)
- Alternative Corporate Tax (1,362,800} -
- Lossas purchased fram Engro Eximp Agriproducts (Private) Limited (1,157,786} -
- Falr value of IFC converslon option - {355,088)
- Prowision for:
- staff ratiroment bensfits {6,921} (61,062}
- slow moving stores and spares and
doubtiul receivables (40,359) {42,769)
-Others - {4.036)
5,149,668 4,573,678

20.2  In2013, the High Court of Sindh, in respect of ancther company, has overtumed the intsrpretation of the Appalats Tribunal on Section 113 2)c) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 end has dacidad that the minimum tumoer tax cannot be caimed forward whers thera Is no tax pald on aceount of loss for
the year. The Company's management is however of the view, duly supported by legal advisor, that the above order is not comect and would not be
maintained by Suprame Court. Tharsfors, the Comparny has continuad to carry forweard minimum fex as reflacted ebove.

203 Defemed income

This represents an amaount of Rs. 98,827 recalved from Engro Powergen Qadieur Limiiad, en associated comparty for the right 1o use the Comperny's
infrastructure faciities at Daharid Plant by the employees of Engro Powerpen Qacirpur Limited for a period of twerty five years, The amount is being

amaortized over such periad.
204 2M3
—(Rupses}—
2. Service Benefits Obligations
Senvice benefit oblgation 156,683 147,946
Less: Current portion shown under
currant lighilities 43,338 43,883
113,345 104,063
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2014 2013
—{Rupess)}—
22. Trade and Other Payables

Craditors (note 22.1) 14,616,341 6,199,556
Accrued liabiliies {note 22.2) 1,177,824 1,112,684
Advances from customers 6,220,475 7,207,961
Sales tax payable 983,408 1,018,741

Payable to:
- Engro Corporation Limited 103,602 326,329
- Engro Eximp (Private) Limited (note 22.3) 448,680 64,800
- Emgyro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 8,774 -
- Engro PowerGen Limitad - 34
Deposits from dealers refundabls on termination of dealership 15,823 14,852
Contractors' deposits and retentions 44,214 54,484
Workers' welfare fund 614,661 477,807
Payable to Gratuity Fund (note 35.2.1) - 48,308
Peyabla to unsuccessful applicants- IPO - 1,286,081
Workers' profits participation fund {note 22.4) 38,828 -
Others 198,735 200,618
24,472,163 18,012,445

221 Thisihcludes an amount of R8:12,580,333 2013: Rs. 4,313,984) on account of the levy of Ges Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). The
Honourable Supreme Court through its Judgment dated August 22, 2014 had upheld the decision ofthe High Caurt of Peshawar deciaring the entire
levy of GIDC through GIDC Act, 2011 as unconstitutional and Ivalld. The Govemment hes fled a review petition agalnst the deciglonof the
Honourable Supreme Court, which is pending. Inths meanwhile, the President of Pakistan promuigated the GIDC Ordinancs, 2014, on September 25,
2014 seeking to impose GIDC levy since 2011. The Company haes  challenged the valldity and promuligation of GIDC Ordinance, 2014 before the
Honourable High Court of Sindh, whersin the Court has been plsased to passinterim orders, thereby restraining Mari Gas, Sui Northern Gas Pipeline
Limited, O and Gas Development Company Limited, Spud Enengy Pty Limked, Govemment Holdings {Private) Limited and IPR TransOll Corporation
from charging anxi/or recovering GIDC till he pendency of the matter.

2014 2013
—{Rupees)}—
22.2 Accrued llabliities
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 398,832 382,605
Vacation accruals 134,823 127,858
Freight accruals 33,859 18,389
Others 609,310 583,844
1,177,824 1,112,604

223 This Includes amount of Rs. 462,168 (2013: Rs. 74,957) due to Engro Eximp (Privats) Limited In respect of funds collected on their behalf by the
Company under an agreement as a selling agent of imported fertizers partty off set by receivable balances in respect of inter compary reimbursements.
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224

24,

241

242

243

244

2014 2013
—{Rupses}—

Workers' profits participation fund
Recsivabla at begihning of the year (1.565) -
Allecation for the year (note 30) 638,828 453,435
Less: Amount paid to the trustess of the fund (600,000) {455,000}
Less: Amount recehved from the trustees of the fund 1,565 -
Payable / (receivable) at end of the ysar 38,828 (1,565}
Accrued Interest / Mark-up
Accrued Interast / markeup on:

- long term borrowings 1,314,626 1,419,581

- ghort term borowings 47,674 60,086

1,362,300 1,479,687

Contingencies and Commitments

Contingencies

Bank guaraniees of Ris.1,075,119 (2013: Rs. 1,069,118) have been issued in favour of third parties.

Claims, inchuding pending lawsuits, against the Company not acknowladged as debts amounted to Rs. 55,038 (2013: Rs. 58,530).

Tha Company Is contesting a penealty of Rs. 115,631 pald and expensed In 1987, Imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for aleged late
payment of foreign exchange risk cover fes on long term leans and has filed a suit in the High Court of Sindh. A partial Rs. 82,618 however,
recoverad In 1999 from SBP and the recovery of the balance amount Is dependent on the Cowrt's declsion.

The Holding Company had commenced two separate arbliration proceadings agalnst the Govemmeant of Pakistan for non-peyment of
marksting incidertals relating to the years 1883-84 and 1985-86 respectively, The aale arbitrator in the second cass has awarded the Holding
Company Rs. 47,800 whereas the award for the earller years Is awalted. The award for the second arbltration was challenged In High Court of
Sindh. In Decarmber 2013, the High Court of Sindh has uphsld the award. However, as this can be challenged by way of further appeals, it will ba
recognized as Income on realization thereof.

The Company had flled a constitutional petilon In the High Court of Sindh, Karachl agalnst the Minlstry of Petroleum and Natural Resources
MPNR), Ministry of Industries and Production (MIP) ard Sui Northem Gas Pipeline Company Limited (SNGPL) for continuous supply of 100
mmscfd gas per day to the Enven Plant and to prohiblt from suspending, discontinuing or curtalling the afcrementioned supply. The High Court
of Sindh in its order dated October 18, 2011, has ordered that SNGPL shoukd supply 100 mmscid of gas per day to the Company's new plant.
Howaever, fiva petitions hawve been fied in the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the afcrementicnad order of the High Court of Sindh by SNGPL,
MPNR, Agritech Limitad, Pak Arab Fertiizers and Kohincor Mils Limited along with 21 other companies (mainly sngaged in textile business), The
aforemeriioned petitions are pending for further hearing. The Company’s managemert, as confirmed by the legal advisor consider the chances
of petitions belng allowed to ba remate.

Further, the Company upan continual curtallment of gas efter the aforementionsed decislon of tha High Court has filed an application In ragpect of

Conternpt of Court under Article 189 & 204 of the Cangtitution of Pakistan. The Company, in the aforemertioned application has submitted that
SNGPL and MPNR has falled to restore ful supply of gas to the Company's plant desplte the judgment of High Court In the Company’s favor. A
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show causs notice has also been issued against MPNR and SNGPL dated December 31, 2011 by the High Court. The appiication is pandirg for
hearing and no orders have yet been passed In this regard.

24.8 Al Palstan Texdlle Processing Mills Assoclation (APTMA), Agritech Limited {Agritech), Shan Dying & Printing Industries (Privats) Limited and 27
others have each contended, through separate procesdings fied before the Lahore High Court that the supply to the Company’s expansion
plant is premisad on the output from Qadirpur gas field excesding 500 mmscid by 100 mmecfd and the Gas Sale and Purchase Agreement
{GSA) datad Apil 11, 2007 with Sul Northem Gas Plgeline Compeny Limited (SNGPL) be declared vokd ab Inlito becauss the cutput of Qadirpur
has infact decreassed. Agritech has additionally aleged discrimination in that it is receiving less gas than the other fertilizer companies on the
SNGPL system. The Company has out ightly rejacted these contentions, and Is of the view that It has a strang case for the reasons thet (1) 100
mmacfd gas has been alocated to the Company through a transparent interational competitive bidding process held by the Govermmentt of
Pakistan, and upon paymant of valugble license fee, (2) GSA guarantees uninterrupted supply of gas to the expension plent, with right 1o first 100
mmcfd gas production from the Qadirpur gas field, and (3) both the Cormparty and the Qadirpur gas fiekd, that is to inffially supply gas to the
Comparny are kecated In Sindh. Also nelfther the gas allocation by the Govemment of Pakistan nor the GSA predicates the gas supply from
Qadirpur field producing 100 mmscfd over 500 mmacfd. No orders have been passed in this regard and the petition has also been adjourned
sine die. However, the Company’s management, as confimed by the legal advisor, considers chances of petitions belng alowed to be remote.

24.7 The Company along with other fertllzer companies, received a show cause notice from the Competition Commiasion of Pakistan (CCP) for
initiatirg action under the Cormpetition Act, 201G in reladion to unreasaneble incrsase in fertiizer prices. The Comparty has respordad in detal
that factors resuling In such increase were malnly the Impaoslition of Infrastructure cess and sales tax and partially the gas curtaliment. The CCP
has issusd an order in March 2013, whersby it has held that the Company enjoys a dominant position in the urea market and that it has abused
this position by unreasonable increasss of urea pricas in the period from December 2010 to December 2011, The CCP has also held another
fertilizer company to ba responsible for abusing its dominant position. In adaiiion, the CCP has imposed a panalty of Rs. 3,140,000 and Rs.
5,500,000 on the Company and that cther fertiizer company respectively. An appsal has been fied in the Competition Appslate Tribunal {at
presant narHunctional) and a writ has been filed In the Sindh High Court ard stay has been granted agalnst the recovery of the Imposad fine. The
Company's management believes that the chancas of ultimate success are very good, as confirmed by legal advisor. Henca, ne provision has
been made In these financlal statements.
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24,8 Commiments

25.

28,

28.1

Commitments In respect of capital expanditure
and cther opsrational itams

Net Sales

Gross sales
Less: Sales tax

Cost of Sales

Raw materials consumed

Salaries, wages and staff welfare (note 26.1)

Fuel and powar

Repairs and maintsnance

Depreciation (note 4.2)

Amortization (note 5.1)

Consumable stores

Staff recruitment, training, safety and other expenses
Purchased sendces

Travel

Communication, stetionery and other office expenses
Insurance

Rert, rates and taxes

Other expanses

Manufacturing cost

Add: Opening stock of work in process

Less: Closing stock of work In process (note 8)

Cost of goods manufactured

Adgd: Opaning stock of finished goods manufacturad
Less: Closing stock of finished goods manufactured (note 8)
Cost of sales

2014 2013
—{Rupess)}—

917,592 873,019
72,048,248 58,560,410
10,623,314 8,431,474
61,424,834 50,128,836
23,208,543 15,061,914

1,948,037 1,730,238
6,597,224 4,568,639

708,385 477,268
4,682,132 4,870,537

28,280 35,079

384,971 344,569

172,497 85,125

367,700 254,488

55,739 44,824

33,517 28,715

408,818 377,328

7,073 12,073

565 1,608
38,602,592 27,802,319
71,880 3,060

89,780 71,880
38,584,892 27,823,499

443,541 627,047

205,810 443,541
38,822,423 28,007,805

Salaries, wages and staff welfare includes Rs. 107,278 (2013: Rs. 101,618) in espect of staff retiremennt benefits.
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2014 2013
—{Rupess)}—
27.  Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selarles, wages and staff welfare (note 27.1) 447,608 390,596
Staff recruitrment, training, safety and other expenses 62,874 33,380
Product transportation and handing 2,810,382 2,120,449
Royalty expense 878,797 740,313
Repairs and mairmtenance 5713 4,781
Advertlsing and sales promation 42,276 44,876
Rent, rates and taxes 67,178 70,720
Communication, staticnery and other office expenses 20,806 17,535
Travel 45,814 41,820
Depreciation (note 4.2) 23,588 25,780
Amortization (note 5.1} 160 115
Purchased serices 4,681 3,865
Insurance 22,880 8,348
Other expanges B,6%2 8,769

4,441,379 3,511,155

271 Salares, wages and staff welfare Includes Rs. 30,089 (2013: Rs. 28,284) In respect of staff retirement benefits.

2014 2013
——(Rupoes)—
28. Administrative Expenses

Salarles, wages and staff walfare {note 28.1) 332,528 259,588
Staff recruitment, training, safety and other expenses 48,687 15,339
Repairs and maintenance 13,348 11,836
Rent, rates and taxes 50,083 50,067
Communication, stationery and other office expensss 47,285 28,280
Travel 17,920 14,003
Depreciation (note 4.2) 19,433 24,518
Amortization (note 5.1} 2,518 708
Purchased senvices 179,645 170,968
Donations 40,259 17,480
Insurance 1,388 1,891
Provislon agalnst other recelvables 544 -
Other expenses 20,534 6,328

772,161 600,990

281 Salaries, wages and staff welfare includes Rs. 31,283 (2013: Rs, 32,785)in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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Other Income

On financlal agssts

Income on deposits, treasury bills and term deposit certificates
Incorne on Pakistan Investment Bond

Income on mutual funds

On non-financlal assets
Commission income (note 28.1)
Rental income

Galn on disposal of spares / scrap
Others {note 28.2)

2014 2013

—{Rupses}—
1,841,365 773,454
73,835 -
11,580 41,019
182,821 221,748
4,321 3,853
18.277 60,349
208,857 50,593
422,376 336,644
2,449158 1151117

Repregants commission samed as selling agent of Imported fertliizer on behalf of Engro Eximp (Private) Limited, an assaclated undertaking,

under an amended agresmert effective January 1, 2011,

This Includes Rs. 98,226 received agalnst Insurance claim of KS Coll which was written off last year.

Other Operating Expenses

Workers' profits particlpation fund (note 22.4)

Waorkers' wetfare fund

Resaarch and devakopiment (Including salaries and wages)
Auditors' remuneration {note 30.1)

Legal and professional charges

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 4.3)
{Revarsal of) / pravision for trade debts and loans & advances
Others

Auditors' remuneration

Feefor:
- audit of annual financial statements
- gpecial audht / review of half yeary financlal statements
- certifications and audit of retirement funds
- Tax services
- relmbursement of expenses

2014 2013
—{Rupoes}—
638,828 453,435
242,755 231,318
54,339 40,307
8710 11,220
101,504 81,859
o71,448 658
{4,034} 23,258
5,003 35,958
1,317,743 858,013
1,875 1,850
225 2,500
3,810 800
2,000 5112
800 768
8,710 11,220
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2014 2013
—{Rupess)}—
a1. Finance Cost
Interest / mark-up / return on:
- long term bormowings 5,663,082 8,641,870
- shiort term borrowings 28,738 39,483
Loss on falr value of IFC converslon option 210,587 1,202,002
Forsign exchange loss - net 722,080 2,034,683
6,625,397 9,918,038
32. Taxation
Current
- for the year (note 32.2) 2,011,824 535,367
- for prior years {50,529) 1,161,375
1,961,385 1,696,742
Defarrad 1,725,632 1,190,105
3,887,027 2,886,847

32.1 Fortaxysars 201Cand 2011, the income tax department amended the assessment filed by the Company. The Compary had fied the appeals
before Appelant Tribunal Inand Reverue {ATIR) against the seld disallowances. During the year, ATIR decided the epped flad by the Company
where by a refief in respact of certain other tems were alowed whereas certain disallowances were confimed in favor of tax department. The said
disallowances included the charge in respect of exchenge gain and loss incured amounting te Rs. 13,282 for tex year 2010 anxl Rs. 58,847 for tax
year 2011 respectively, and In respect of loss on derivative amounting to Rs. 28,795 for tax year 2011. The Company intends to challenge the sald
decision before High Court of Sindh and is confident of favourable outcome.

32.2 Includes altemative corporate tax amounting to Rs 1,362,800 for the year {2013: Rs, Nil) and minimum tumover tax amounting to Rs 614,248
{2013: Rs 509,083}

Through Finance Act 2014, a new section 113C ‘Altemative Corporate Tax’ (ACT) has been introducead in the Income Tax Ordinance 2001,
whereby tex is payable at the higher of Corporate Tex or ACT; being seventeen per cent of accounting income and the same has besn made
appllcable from financlal year ended December 31, 2013 (Tax Year 2014) onwards.

During the year, the Company has filed sult in the High Court of Sindh, agalnst the Federal Board of Revenus contasting both the
retrospective and prospective application of the above section. Stay has been granted in this respect by the court.

32.3 During the year, the Company has purchased losses surrendered by Engro Eximp Agrioroducts (Private) Limited (assoclated company)to
avai the benefit of Group Relief under section 58B of the Incorme Tax Ordinancs, 2001, aggregating to Rs 3,508,441 reprssenting business
losses of Rs 1,765,178 for financial year ended December 31, 2012 ard Rs 1,743,263 for financial year ended December 31, 2013, These
losses have been duly ad|usted by the Company agalnst taxable profit for the financlal year ended December 31, 2013 (Tax Year 2014) whilst
filing its tax return for the said tax year.
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32.4 Asaresult of demerger, all panding taxissues of the Hokding Company had been transferred to the Comparty. Major issuss pending before

the tax authoritles Is describad below:

In previcus years, the department had filed referance applications in High Court against the below-mentioned ATIR"s decisions in Company's

favor. No hearing has been conducted to-date. The reference application Includes the following matters:
+  Group Rellef (Financlal year 2006 to 2008} Rs. 1,500,847

-+ Imer-Corperate Dividend (Financial year 2007 to 2008). Rs. 338,500

« G.P. Apportiorynent (Financial years 1885 to 2002); As. 853,000

The Company is confident that all pending issues will eventually be decided in its favor.

Relatlonship batwesen tax expense and accounting profit

The tax on the Company's profit bafore tax differs from tha thecretical amount that wiould arise using the Company's applicable tax rate as

follows:
2014 2013
—{Rupses—

Profit before taxation 11,884,887 8,383,852
Tex calculated at the rate of 33% (2013: 34%)} 3,925,346 2,850,544
Depreciation on exampt assets not deductible for tax purposss 3,140 26,073
Tex effect of:

- Expenses not allowed for tax 24,041 18,299

- Final Tax Regime / separats block of incoms (42,887) (63,3C5)
Effect of:

- Tax credits (66,885) -

- Change in tax rates (103,825) (74,052}

- Praor year cumant and defarred tax charge (5,893} 128,288
Others 44,000 -
Tex charge for the year 3,687,027 2,886,847
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a3. Earnings Per Share

Baslc eaminga per share has been calculated by dMding the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by welghted average
number of ordinary shares in issus during the year.

33.1 Dilted eamings per share has been calculated by adjusting the welghted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding for assumed
convarsion of equity option on IFC ksan throughout the year. The sffect of thosa options are anti-dilutive as at Decamber 31, 2014,

The information necessary to calculate basic and diuted eamings per share is as follows:

2014 2013
—{Rupees}—

Profit for the year 8,207,880 5,487,105
Add: Interest on IFC koan - net of tex 27,309 40,664

- Loss on revaluation of conversion options

on IFC loan - et of tax 131,358 738,582

Profit uged for the determination of Dikited EPS 8,336,627 6,278,351
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the

beginning of year 1,222,800 1,072,800
Adjustrment of Bonus factor in right issue - 28,989
Add : Welghted average adjustments for:

Shares issuad during the year {Including conversion of option} 82,404 77,260
Welghted average number of shares for

determination of basic EPS 1,305,204 1,180,059

Assumad conversion of USD 4,000 (2013: USD 9,000) IFC loan 8,836 5,967

Exerclse of conversion option on USD 5,000 IFC Ioan 5,794 -
Weighted average number of shares for

determination of diluted EPS 1,320,834 1,186,026
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34,

Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amounts changed In these financlal statements for remuneration, Including all benefits, to chief executive, directors and
exscutives of the Company are given below:

2014 2013
Directors Executives Diractors Executives
Chief Cthers Chief Others
Executive Executive
{Rupees) {Rupees}

Managerial remuneration 58,278 - 1,508,828 50,865 - 1,263,443
Retirement benefits funds 4,768 - 143,926 4,008 - 126,583
Other benefits A = 58,6858 144 - 64,848
Fees - 1,550 - - 1,850 -
Total 63,067 1,550 1,711,513 54,818 1,880 1,454,082
Nurmbar of persons

including those who

worked part of the year 1 7 447 1 7 430

Tha Company alsa makes contributions based on actuarial cakculations to penslon and gratulty funds and provides certain houssehold ftems
for use of some employees. Cars are also provided for use of some employees and directors.

Pramium charged In the financlal statements In respect of directors' ndemnity Insurance pollcy, purchased by the Company during the year,
amounted to As. 580 (2013: Rs. 885).

Retiremant and Other Sarvice Benefits

Sallent Features

The Company offers a defined postemployrment gratuity bensiit to permanent management and norsmanagement employees. In addition,
untll June 30, 2005, the Company offered a defined post-employment panslon benefit to managemant smployees In service which has been

discontinued and the plan now only covers a handiul of retired pensioners.

The gratulty and pension funds are governed under the Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companlea Crdinance, 1984, the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002.

Rasponsibiity for govermnance of plan, induding investmant decisions and contribution schedule lis with Board of Trustess of the Fund.
During the year such responsibility weas transferred to Board of Trustees of the Furd of its Hokding Compary.

The Company faces tha following risks on account of gratuity and pension funds:
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Final Salary Risks - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is
calculeted on the final salary, the benefit amount would also Increass proportionately.

Assst Volatility - Most assets are invested in sk free investments of 3,5 or 10 year SSC's, RIC's, DSC's or Govemment Bonds. However,
Investments In equity Instruments Is subject to adverse fluctuations as a result of change In the market price.

Discount Rate Auctuation - The plan llablitties are calculated using a discount rate get with refarence 1o corporate bond ylekis. A decreass In
corporate bond yiekds will ncrease plan llabliities, although this will be partially offset by an Increase In the value of the current plans’ bond

holdings.

Investmennt Risks - The risk of tha imvestment undsrperforming and not baing sufficient to mest the liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely

monitorirg the performance of investment.

Risk of Insufficiency of Assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the actuary.

In addition to above, the penslon fund exposes the Company to Longevity Risk |.e. the pensioners sundve longer than expected.

35.2 Valuation Results

The latest actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plans was carried out as at December 31, 2014, using the Prajected Unit Credit Method.

Detalls of the defined benefit plans are as folows:

35.2.1 Balance shest reconclliation

Defined Benefit Gratutty Defined Benefit
Plans - Funded Pension Plan
Funded (Curtalled)
NMPT MPT
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
{Rupees}
Prasent vakue of oblgation 166,212 162,184 135,336 158,367 34,406 32,218
Falr value of plan assets {(178,718) (98,340) (140,235) (177,549} (38,824) {38,535)
{(Surplus}/ deficit of funded plans {12,501) 63,844 (4,899) (24,182) (4,418) {6,317)
Payable to DC Gratuity Fund - - 9,736 8,605 - -
Payable In reapect of Inter-transfers - - 41 41 - -
Unrecognized asset - - - - 4418 8,317
Net (asset)/ llabliity et end of the year (12,501) 63,844 4,878 {15,536} - .
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35.2.2 Movement in net (asaet) / liability recognized

Defined Beneflt Gratulty Defined Benefit
Plans - Funded Pengion Plan
Funded (Curtalled)
NMPT MPT
2014 2013 2014 203 2014 2013
{Rupees}

Net liability / (asset) at beginning

of the ysar 63,844 35,480 (15,538) (18,186) - {1,800)
Charge for the year 17,022 10,895 2,933 {753) {821} 843)
Contributions made during the

yearto the fund (63,844) (10,017) - - - -
Remeasurements charged

1o OCI [note 35.2.7) (29,1886) 27,492 17,144 4,397 821 243)
Inter-fund transfors (337) ®) 337 6 - -
Unrecognized asset - - - - - 2,888
Net (asset)/ liability at end of the year (12,501) 63,844 4,878 {15,536) - -

35.2.3 Movement in defined benefit obligation

As gt beglnning of the year 162,184 122,832 153,367 118,545 32,218 31,289
Current service cost B,214 8,770 8,838 4,733 - -
Interest cost 20,868 14,628 19,458 12,952 3,849 3,638
Benefits paid during the year (10,842) {10,067) 31,133) {16,157) (3,847} (3,742)
Remeasurments changed

to OCI (note 35.2.7) {14,775) 28,027 10,895 1,244 2,086 1133
Inter-fund transfers (337) 6) 337 8 - -
Liability transferred in respect of

Inter group transfers = - (24,189) 34,044 = -
Liability transferred to DC Gratuity Fund - - (357) - - -
Ag at end of the year 166,212 162,184 135,336 153,367 34,406 32,218
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35.2.4 Movement in fair valus of plan assets

Definad Benefit Gratulty Defined Benefit
Plans - Funded Pension Plan
Funded (Gurtailed)
NMPT MPT
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
{Rupess}
At beglnning of the year 88,340 87,352 177,648 149,829 38,535 38,313
Expected retum on plan assets 13,080 10,503 23,483 18,438 4,770 4,381
Contributions by the Company 63,844 10,017 - - - -
Benefits paid during the year {10,842) {10,087) (31,133) {18,157} (3,847) {3,742)
Remeasurments charged
to OCI (note 35.2.7} 14,411 535 (5.475) {3,153} (834) {417y
Assets transferred in respect
of Inter group transfers - - - 35,159 - -
Assets transferred to DC
Gratuity Fund - - - (6,887} - -
Asgets transferred In respect
of inter fund transfers - - {24,168) - - -
As at end of the year 178,713 98,340 140,235 177,549 38,824 38,535
35.2,5 Charge / {Reversal) for the year
Curment sendce cost 9,214 8,770 6,938 4,733 - -
Net interest cost 7,808 4,125 (4,005) {5,486} 821) 843)
17,022 10,895 2933 (753) 821) 843)
35.2.6 Actual retum on plan assets 21,828 11,038 30,012 15,285 3,782 3,064
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35.2.7 Remeasurement recognized in  Other Comprsehensive Income

Defined Beneflt Gratulty Defined Benefit
Plans - Funded Pension Plan
Funded (Curtalled)
NMPT MPT
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 203
{Rupses}

{Gein} / loss from change in

demographic assumptions - (15) - 8 740 -
{Galn)/ loss from change In

experience assumptions (14,430 30,858 10,885 1,818 1,768 1133
{Gain) from change in financial

assumptions (2.914) = {883) (423), -
Remeasurement of Obligation {14,775) 28,027 10,885 1244 2,088 1133
Expected Retum on plan asssts 13, [ 10,508 [ 23,463 | 18,438 | 4770 4,381
Actual Return on plan aasets (21,828) (11,038) (80,012) {15,285) 3.782} {3,964)
Difference in fair value opening (5,842) - 12,024 - 354} -
Remeasurement of Plan Assets (14,411) (535) 5,475 3,153 634 417
Effect of Asset Ceiling - ® e 5 (1,888} {1,783)
Adjstment for DC transfers

pertaining to earller perlods - - 774 - = -

(28,188) 27,482 17,144 4,397 821 (243)

35.2.8 Principal actuarial assumptions used In the actuarial valuation

Discount rate 10.5% 13.0% 10.5% 13.0% 10.5% 13.0%
Expected per annum rate of retum

on plan assets 10.5% 13.0% 10.5% 13.0% 10.5% 13.0%
Expected per annum rate of Increase

in pension - - - - 2.5% 5.0%
Expeacted per annum rate of Increase In

salarieslong term 9.5% 12.0% 10.5% 10.5% 12.0% 11.0%

35.2.9 Damographlc Assumptions
Mortality rate SLC SLIC SuC PMAPFA
{2001-05) (2001-05) (01-05)-1 80)-2

Rate of employse tumover Light Heavy - -
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35210 Sensitivity Analysis

The impact of 1% changs in folowing variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Discount Rate

Long Term Salary Increases

Long Term Pension Increases
Withdrewal Rates: Light

Withdrawal Rates: Heavy / Moderaie

35211 Maturity Profile

Timse In Years

Welghted average duratkon {years)
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Increase In assurmnption Decrease In assumption
Garatuity Fund Pension Greuity Fund Pension
NMPT MPT Fund NMPT MPT Fund
{Rupees)
151,880 128,348 32,337 182,814 141,842 36,738
182,914 141,880 - 151,845 129,333 <
- - 38,807 - = 32,185
158,248 147,766
152,088 140,805
Gratuity Fund Pension
NMPT MPT Fund
{Rupeas}
18,844 28,013 4,155
14,983 19,663 4,259
17,585 11,648 4,385
5,967 43,248 4,474
76,089 64,475 24,107
133,084 87,210 27,274
364,320 68,263 30,858
900,477 268,409 189,672
9. 4,44 6.3




{Amourts In thousand)

35212 Plan assets comprise of the following

Defined Beneflt Gratulty Defined Benefit
Plans Funded Pengion Plan
Funded (Curtalled)
NMPT MPT*
2014 2014 2014
Rupees (%) Rupees (%) Rupees (%)
Fixed incorme instruments 153,362 88 215,549 78 38,375 29
Investment In equity Instruments 22,867 13 41,927 15 - -
Cash 2,484 1 17,753 7 449 1
178,713 100 275,229 100 38,824 100

*  The employess of the Compary in respect of gratuity are membsrs of Defined Benefit Gratuity Fund maintained and funded by Engro
Comoration Limited (the Holding Company). Accordingly, the above Information Is based upan the plan assets of Engro Comporation Limited
Gratuity Fund.

35.213 The expectsd retum on plan assets was determined by considering the expected retums avaiable on the assets underying the current
Investment policy. Expected ylekds on fixed Interest Investments are based on gross redemption yiekds as at the balance sheet date.,

35214 Bepecied fulure cost / freversal) for the yeer snding Decamber 31, 2015 is as follows:

Rupses
- MPT Pension Fund (484)
- MPT Gratulty Fund 4,728
- Nor-MPT Gratulty Fund 8,253
35215 Historical Information of staff retirement benefits:
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
{Rupses}

Penslon Plan Funded
Present valus of defind benefit cbligation 34,406 32,218 31,288 32,023 31,230
Falr valus of plan assets (38,824) (38,535) (38,313} (37,023) {34,855)
Surplus (4,418) 8.317) (7.024) (5,000) {3,625)
Gratulty Plans Funded - NMPT
Present value of defined

bensfit obligation 166,212 162,184 122,832 121,311 88,952
Falr valug of plan asssts (178,713) (28,340) (87,352) {87,019) (79,760)
{Surplus)/ Deficit (12,501) 63,844 35,480 34,282 7,182
Gratulty Plang Funded - MPT
Prasent value of defined

benefit obligation 135,336 153,367 116,545 156,334 182,571
Falr vakia of plan asssts {140,235) {177.549) (149,929} {169,857) (209,820)
Surplus (4,898) {24,182) (33,384) (18,628) (27,249)
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35.3 Defined contribution plans
An amount of Rs. 148,518 has besan charged during the year in respect of defined contribution plans maintained by the Holding Compary.

se. Cash Generated From Operations

2014 2013
—{FAupees)}—
Profit before taxation 11,884,887 8,383,852
Ad|ustrment for non-cash charges and other tems:
Depreciation 4,725,153 4,920,843
Amortization - net 27101 32,035
Loss on disposal of proparty, plant and equipment 271,448 558
Provision for retirement and other service berefits 48,862 38,860
Income on deposits / other financlal assets {2,026,780) {814,473)
Financs cost 6,825,387 9,918,038
Provision for surplus and slow moving stores and spares 1,444 17,747
Provislon agalnst other recelvables 544 -
{Feversal) / provision against trade receivables (2,673) 18,000
{(Revarsal)/ provisken agalnst loans and advances (2,261) 4,258
Working capital changes (note 38.1) 6,661,318 10,054,857
28,225,540 32,578,475
36.1 Working capital changes
(Increase}/ decrease In current assets
- Stores, spares and lcoss focls {34B,327) {278,318)
- Stockdn-trade 280,743 305,407
- Trade debts 3,882 268,838
- Loans, advances, deposiis and prepayments 87,230 {234,040)
- Other recsivablas (net) (5,138) 35,825
30,380 85,811
Increase In trade and other payables 8,830,928 9,958,848
6,861,318 10,054,857
a7. Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash and bank balances {note 13) 4,188,528 4,458,391
Short term investments {note 12) 1,084,882 18,058,054
5,283,420 22,516,445
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s8. Financial Instruments By Category
Financial asssts as per balaénce sheet

- Loans and recsivables
Loans, advances and deposits
Trade debts
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Short term Investment

- Falr value through profit and loss
Short term investments
Derivative financial instruments

Financlal liabliitles as per balance shest

- Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Borrowings
Trade and othar payable
Accrued interast / mark-up

- Falr value through profit and k:ss
Converslon optlon on IFC loan
Derivative financial instrumerts

2014 2013
—{Rupees)}—

156,030 135,845
757,044 758,253
14,011 18,302
4,188,528 4,458,391
£98,288 18,479,103
5,114,201 21,850,824
24,078,488 1,578,851
- 130,207
24,076,488 1,709,158
44,003,351 58,820,681
16,138,450 8,885,153
1,362,300 1,478,667
61,504,101 69,185,501
965,328 1,445,968
131,452 208,327
1,086,778 1,744,293
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390. Financial Risk Management

391 Financlal fisk factors

The Company's activities expose It to a varlety of financlal risks: market risk (inckuding curency risk, Interast rate dsk and other price riak), credit sk
and liuicity risk. The Cormparty’s overall risk management program focuses on having cost efficient furding as well as to manage financial risk to
minimize eamings volatlity and provide maxdmum retumn to shareholders.

Risk management ks carried out by the Company's Finance and Planning department under policles approved by the Management Commilttee.
a) Market risk

i) Currency risk
Cumency Hsk s the rsk thedt the falr value of future cash fiows of a financlal Instrument will fluctuete because of changes In forekin exchange
rates.

This exists dus to the Comparny's exposure resulting from outstanding import paymerts, forsign curency lean liabilities and related intersst
payments. A forsign sxchange sk management pollcy hes been developed and approved by the menagement. The polcy alows the
Company to taks curmency exposurs for limited pericds within predefined limits whils open exposures are rigorously maonitored, The
Company enauras to the extant pessible that It has options avalable to manage exposurs, elther through forward contracts, options or
prepaymeris, stc. subject to the prevailing forsign exchange regulations.

On foreign cumency bormowing of USD 122,844 as on December 31, 2014, the Company has Rupee / USD hedge of USD 83,551,

At Decarnber 31, 2014, if the cumency had weakened / strengthened by 1% against the US dollar with all other variables held constant,
past-ax profit for the year would have been lkower / higher by Rs. 18,245 malnly as a result of forelgn exchange loss / galn on translation of
US dollar denominated loans.

iy Irterest rate rsk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate becauses of changes in market interest
rates. The Compeany's Interest rate rsk arisas from short and longr-term bomowings. Thess are benchmarked 1o varlable rates which exqxose
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company analysss its intersst rate exposure on a regular basis by monitoring interest rate trends to determine whether they should enter
Into hedging altemartives.

The Company has entared Into Interest Rete Swaps for USD 23,182 out of ts non-current foreign cumency bormowings of USD 122,644 ason
December 31, 2014 (note 18.2). Aates on short temm loans vary as per markst movement.

As at Decemnber 31, 2014, if interast rates or Company's borrowings had been 1% higher / kewer with all other variables hekd constant, post
tex profit for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 279,330 malnly as a result of Interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

) Other price risk
Gther price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial nstrument wil filuctuate bacesise of changes in markest prices
{other than thosa arising from cumancy risk or interest rate risk), whether thosa changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors effecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at December 31, 2014, the
Company is not expoesad to any significart price risk.
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b) Credit risk

Cradit risk represants the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to discharge an obligation.

Cradit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trada debts, loans, advances, deposits, bank guarantess and ather
receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with a reasonably high credit rating or mutual
funcis which In tum are depostted In banks and govemmeant sacurities. The Company meintalns an Intemal policy to place funds with
commercial banks and mutual funds of asset management companies having a minimum short term credit rating of A1 and AMB3 respectively.
Howaver, the Company maintalns cperational balances with certain banks of kwer rating for the purpose of effactive collection of bank
guarantess and to cater to loan disbursements.

The Company is exposad to a concentration of credit risk on its trade debts by virtus of all its customers being agri-based businesses in
Pealdstan. However, this risk ls mitigated by appiying Indivicual credit Imits and by sacuring the malority of trade debts agalnst bank
guarantess and inland letter of credit.

The credit risk arising on account of acceptance of these bark guarantess is managed by ensuring that the bank guarantees are issued by
banks of reasonably high credit ratihgs as approved by the management.

The Company monttors the credit quallty of its inanclal assets with reference 1o historical performance of such assets and avalable extemal
cradit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due ner impaired are as under:

2014 2013
—{Rupses}—
Loans, advances and deposits 156,030 135,845
Trade debts 757,044 758,253
Other receivables 14,011 16,720
Short term investments 25,075,776 18,058,054
Cash and bank balances 4,188,528 4,458,3H
30,181,388 23,427,263
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The credit quallty of recelvables can be assessed with reference to thelr historlcal performance with no or negligible defautis In recent history. The
crecht quality of Company's bank balances ard short term investmenis can be assassed with reference to recent extemal credit ratings as folkows:

Rating Rating

agency Short term Long term
Alied Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Agker Bank Limited JCRVIS Al+ AA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Bank AL Hablb Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA Al A
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA-
Barclays Bank PLC MOODY'S P-1 A2
Bur Bank Limited JCRWVIS A A
Citi Bank N.A. MOODY'S P-1 A2
Dubal Isiamic Bank {Pakistan} Limited JCRWVIS A At
Faysal Barik Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Hablb Bank Limited JCRVIS A1+ AAA
Habib Metropolitar Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al At
KASB Bank Limited PACRA C B
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCRVIS A+ AA
National Bank of Pakistan JCRVIS A1+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited JCRVIS A AA-
Sik Bank Limited JCRVIS A2 A
Scnerl Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Summit Bank Limitad JCRVIS A A-
United Bank Limited JCRVIS A1+ AAT

¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company wil encounter difficuities In mesting cbligations assoclated with financial llablites.
Prudent llquidity risk management implies malmaining sufficlent cash and marketable securities, the avallabllity of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Due ta dynamic nature of the business, the Compary maintains flexdbility in funding by maintaining
committed cradit lines available.

The Company's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid asssets necsssary tc meet these, monitoring
balance sheet kuidity retios against Intemal and extemal regulatory requirements and malntaining delot financing plans.
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Tha table bekow analyses the Compary’s financial liabilities into relevart maturity groupings bassd on the remaining pericd at the balance shest
date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed In the table are the contractual undiscountad cash fiows.

2014 2013
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
upto after Total upto after Total
ong year ong year ong year ane year
{Rupees}) {Rupees}———
Financlal llabliities
Derivatives 1,080,088 6,689 1,088,778 213,041 1,531,252 1,744,293
Trade and other payables 16,138,450 - 16,138,450 8,885,153 - 8,885,153
Accrued Interest / mark-up 1,362,300 - 1,362,300 1,479,687 = 1,479,667
Borrowings 7,812,728 36,547,430 44,480,158 2,024,298 53,524,001 58,448,300
Subordinated loan from
Holding Company - - - - 3,000,000 3,000,000
28,503,588 38,554,118 63,057,867 13,502,160 58,085,253 71,557,413
39.2 Capital risk managemert

The Company's cbjective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abiiity to cortinue as a going concem in order to provide retums
for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to malntaln an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capttal.

The Company manages Its capital structure and makes adjustrments to it In the light of changes in economic condlitions. To malntain or ad|ust the
capital structurs, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issus new shanas.

The total lorgy term borrowings to ecuity ratio as at December 31, 2014 based on total long term bormowings of Rs. 44,003,351 and total equity of
Rs. 34,478,095 was 56%:44%.(2013: 70%:30%)

The Company financss its operations through equity, borowings and managament of working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriata
mix betwean various sources of finence 1o minimize rigk.
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353 Falr value estimation

The table balow analyzes financial instrurmnents carriad at fair value by valuation method. The differant levels have been defined as folows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (evel 1)
-Inputs other than quoted prices inchuded within level 1 that are observable for the assst or iability, either directly {.e. as prices}orindirectly (i.e.

dertved from prices) (level 2)
-Inputs for the asset or abilty that are not based on observable market data (level 3)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totel
{Aupees}
Assets
Fnancial assets at fair valus through profit and loss
- Short term investments - 24,076,488 - 24,076,488
Liabilities
Derivatives
- Derivative financial instruments - 131,452 - 131,452
- Corwersion option on IFC loans - 985,326 - 985,328
- 1,086,778 - 1,086,778

39.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value of all financial assets ard liabilities reflected in the financial staterments approximate their fair values,
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40,

Transactions with Related Parties

Related parties comprises of Holding Company, associated companies and other companies with common director, retirement benefits funds,

drectors and key management personngl.

Detals of transactions with related partles during the vaar, other than those which have been disciosed elsewhere In these financlal statements,

are as follows:

Holding Company

Purchasss and services

Senvces provided to Hokding Company
Royalty

Relmbursements

Mark-1p pald on Long tevm subordinated loan
Use of asssts

Recslpt of Issued right shares

Payment in respect of setlement of IFC option
Payment of sub-ordinated loan

Recelpt of subordinated loan

Associated companies

Purchassa and servicas

Sale of assets {sales proceeds)

Sals of product

Senvices provided

Reimbursements

Funds collected against sales made on behalf of an associate
Payment of mark-up on TFCa and repayment of principal amount
Purchass of T-Bill

Sele of T-Bill

Income / Markup on T-BIII

Commission on galss collection

Purchass of mutual fund unfts

Redemption of mutual fund units

Donation to Engro Foundation

Commissicn expanse

Use of assets

Contribution to staff retirement benefits
Pension fund

Gratuity fund

Provident fund

Others
Remuneration of key management personnel

2014 2013
——{Rupeea}—

202,798 186,916
18,780 17,328
878,797 715,638
108,020 138,885
240,238 513,000
4,720 9,807
a 1,500,000
1,485,080 =
4,485,080 -
1,495,080 -
307,288 749,569
748 ”
4,988 4,828
93,067 103,489
185,480 143,448
27,812,867 28,795,343
41,897 22,667
2 4,087,897
s 4,161,893
- 40,864
185,322 221,749
g 780,000
= 781195
32,500 12,800
31168 24,967
8912 12,317
16,977 16,597
104,393 44,032
86,498 83,412
167,734 134,811
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41. Donations

Donetions Include the folowing In which a director or his spousa Is Intarested:

Aliuddin Ansari and
Ruhail Mohammed

42. Production Capacity

Urea plant | & 11
NPK plant

43. Number Of Employees

Managemant employess
Nommanagement employees
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Interest Name and
In Donea addrass
of Dones
Prasident and Engre Foundation
Trustee
Designed capacity
Matric Tons
2014 2013
2,275,000 2,275,000
100,000 100,000
Number of employees as at
2014 213
456 448
880 685
1138 1,113

2014 2013
{Rupees}
32,500 12,800
Actual production
Metric Tona

2014 2013
1,818,837 1,581,575

117,183 92,839

Avarage number of employees

2014 2013
452 465
873 881
1125 1,148
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44, Provident Fund

The employees of the Company participate in Provident Fund mairtained by Engro Corporation (the Holding Company). Morthly contribution
are made both by the Company and employeas to the fund malntained by the Holding Company at the rate of 10% of baslc salary. Accordingly,
the following information is basad upon the latest audited financial staterments of the providert fund maintained by the Holding Company as at
Juna 30, 2014 and the audited financlal statements as at June 30, 2013.

2014 2013
——{Rupeeg)}—
Size of the fund - Total assets 2,091,284 1,550,126
Cost of the investments mads 1,679,824 1,227,618
Percentage of investmants made 88% 88%
Falr vakse of Investmants 1,861,191 1,374,390
The braak-up of Imvestments Is as follows:
2014 2013
Rupessa % Rupess %
National Savings Scheme 290,609 18 251,180 18
Govemmant securities 901,642 48 693,247 50
Listed securities 518,263 28 408,383 30
Balarices with banks in savings account 150,677 B 21,570 2
1861191 100 1,374,390 100

441 The Investments out of the fund have been made In accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the
rules fomulated for the purposs.

45, Seasonality

The Compary's fartiizer business is subject to seasonal fluctuations as a resuft of two different farming seasons viz, Rabi (from October to
March) and Kharif (from April to Septernber). On an average fertilizer sales are mons tilted towards Rabi season. The Company manages
geasonallty In the business through appropiate Inventory management.

26. Loss of Certain Accounting Records

During 2007, a fira broke out at PNSG Bullding, Karachl where the Holding Company's reglsterad office was located. Immedately following this
evert the Holding Company launched its Disaster Recovery Plan due to which operational disruption and financial impact resulting from this
Incident remalnad minimal.

The fire destroyed a substantial portion of ita hard copy records, including that of Fertlitzer Undertaking (note 1.2), related to the financlal vears
2005, 2008 ard the period January 1, 2007 to August 18, 2007 although, slectronic data remained intact dus to the eforementioned Disaster
Recovery Plan. The Hokdng Company launched an Inflative to recreate significant lost records and was successiul in gathering the same In
respect of the financial ysar 2007. Hard copy records related to the financial years 2005 and 2006 have not bean recreated.
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47. Non-Adjusting Event After Balance Sheet Date
The Board of Cirectors In ts meeting held on February 08, 2015 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 3.00 per share for the year ended
December 31, 2014 amourting to Rs. 3,882,787, for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be hekd on April 29, 2015. The

amount of total dividend [2 calculated at the total number of shares outstanding as at December 31, 2014 and the shares ssued to IFC after
balance shest date as rmere fully explained in note 17.5.

4¢. Comresponding Figures
Comespondirg figures and balances have bean rearrargied and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the purposs of comparison, the sifects of
which are not matertal, except loss on falr value adjustments of embedded derivatives amounting to Rs. 1,202,002 classifled from cther operating
expensss to finance cost.

49, Date of Authorisation For Issue

Thesa financlal staterments wers authorised for Issue an February 08, 2015 by the Board of Dirsctors of the Company.

[ TPodnn
Ruhail Mohammed Javed Akbar
Chief Exscutive Director
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proxy form

I/We
of being a member of ENGRC FERTILIZERS LIMITED
and holder of
Number of Shares)
Ordinary shares as per shame Register Folio No. and/or CDG
Participant 1.D. Na. and Sub Account No. , hereby appoirt
of orfalling him

of

as myj/our proxy to vote for me and on my/our behalf at the annual general mesting of the Company to be hekd on the 29th day of Aprl,
2015 and at any adjournment thersof.

Signed this day of 2015.

WITNESSES:
1) Slgnature
Name

Addrass

CNIC or
Passpaort No.:

Signature
2) Signalure Signature should ﬁhrseuﬁmmﬂlespeclmen
Name

Address

CNIC or
Passport No.:

Note:
Proxies In order 1o be effective, must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours befors the meeting. A Proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

CDC Sharsholders and thelr praxies ara sach requested to attach an aitested photocopy of thelr Computerized Natlonal identity Card or
Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Compary.






electronic transmission consent form

The Securitles & Exchange Commission of Paklstan through SRO 787(1)/2014 of Ssptember 8, 2014 allowed the Company to circulate
its annual balance sheet and profit & loss accounts, auditor's report and directors’ report ete. (Audited Financial Staternents) along with
the Company's Notkes of Annual General Meeting to Its sharehoklers through emall. Those shareholders who wish to recelve the
Company’'s Annual Report through email are requested to complete the requisite form below.

CDC shareholders are requested to submit thelr Electronlc Transmisslon Consent Form along with thelr CNIC directly to thelr broker
(participantyCDC; while shareholders having physical shares are to send the forms and a copy of their CNIC to the Company's
Registrar, FAMCO Associatas {Pvt) Limited, 8, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S, next to Hotel Faran, Nurssry, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Electronic Transmission Consent Form

Pursuant to the directions given by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 787(1)/2014 of Septernber 8,
2014, |, Mr. /Ms. S/o0, D/o, W/o
hereby consent to have the Engro Fertilizers Limited"s Audited Financial Statemertts and Notice of Annual General Meeting delivered to
me via emall on my emall eddress provided below:

Name of Member/Sharsholder

Follo/CDC Account Number

CNIC

Email Addrass

It Is stated that the above mentkoned Information Is frue and conrect and that | shall notify the Company and lts Share Reglstrar In writing
of any change in my email address or withdrawal of my consent to emalil delivery of the Company's Audited Financial Statements and
Notics of the Meeting.

Date:

Signature of Member/Shareholoer






request for video
conferencing facility form

Members can also avall video confersnce facliity In Lahore and Islamabad. If the Company recetves conaent at least 10 days pror to date
of meseting, from members helding in aggragate 10% or mors sharsholding and residing at either Lahore and/or Islamabad to participate
in the meeting through video corference, the campany may armangs vidso conference facility in that city.

In this regard please fill up the following form and submit it to registered eddress of the Company 10 days before holding of the
annual general mesting.

1/We, of being a member of Engro Fertliizers Lid.,
holder of Ordinary Share{s) es per Register Falio No/CDC A/c No,
hereby opt for video conference facllity at

Date:

Slgnature of Member/Sharaholder





